
AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE & TIME Wednesday, February 21, 2024 - 6:30 PM  
LOCATION 

Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda - Ruth Rambeau Memorial 
Community Room  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  Public access to this meeting is available as follows: 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83030077310?pwd=fv5xIYAEFr5k4f7GI6KQMDOK4vRw4g.1 

Meeting ID: 830 3007 7310 
Passcode: 790402 

Persons wishing to address the Board of Commissioners are asked to submit 
comments for the public speaking portion of the Agenda as follows: 

 Send an email with your comment(s) to jpolar@alamedahsg.org and 
vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the Board of Commissioners 
meeting 

 Call and leave a message at (510) 871-7435. 

When addressing the Board, on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners, members of the public may speak for a maximum of three minutes per 
agenda item when the subject is before the Board. 

Persons in need of special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-
4325 (voice), TTY/TRS: 711, or jpolar@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of 
Commissioners to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility or language 
assistance.   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. ROLL CALL

2. AB2449 COMPLIANCE The Chair will confirm that there are 4 members in the



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners February 21, 2024 

same, properly noticed meeting room within the jurisdiction of the City of 
Alameda. Each board member who is accessing the meeting remotely must 
disclose verbally whether they are able to be remote under AB2449: (1) just 
cause (max. 2 per year), or (2) emergency circumstances.” For Emergency 
Circumstances, the request must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of 
Commissioners for the emergency circumstances to be used as a justification to 
participate remotely. Remote Commissioners must provide a general description 
of the circumstances relating to need to appear remotely at the given meeting. 
Commissioner must also publicly disclose at the meeting, prior to any action, 
whether any other individuals 18 years or older are present in the room with the 
member at the remote location, and the general nature of the member’s 
relationship with such individuals. Note: A Commissioner cannot participate in 
meetings of the Board of Commissioners solely by teleconference from a remote 
location for a period of more than 3 consecutive months or 20% of the regular 
meetings for AHA within a calendar year, or more than 2 meetings if the Board 
of Commissioners regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year. 

3. COMMISSIONER RECUSALS

4. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

5. Closed Session - 6:30 p.m. - Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider:

5.A.  Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation:
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code Section 54956.9: 
One potential case 

5.B.  CONFFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8. 
Property Location: 1628 Webster Street, Alameda CA 94501 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 73-418-4-1 
Agency Negotiators: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, Sylvia Martinez, 
Director of Housing Development, and Joseph Nagel, Construction Project 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Alameda Hospitality, LLC; 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 

6. Adjournment of Closed Session

7. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

8. Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

10. CONSENT CALENDER 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or
accepted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or
explanation is received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the
public.

10.A.  Approve Minutes of the Regular Board of Commissioners Meetings held on
December 20, 2023 and January 17, 2024. Page 5



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners February 21, 2024 

10.B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.

10.C.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department.

10.D.  Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).

10.E.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for The Estuary I.

10.F.  Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Executive/HR Department.

10.G.  Accept the Quarterly Overview Report For Administrative Services Department.

10.H.  Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Housing Development
Department. 

10.I.  Accept the Quarterly Development Report for The Estuary II.

10.J.  Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Asset Management Department.

10.K.  Accept the Quarterly LIHTC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal Year to Date
Financial Report through September 30, 2023. 

10.L.  Accept the Quarterly Financial Report for the month ended December 31, 2023.

10.M.  Accept the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending December 31,
2023. 

10.N.  Accept the 2024 Communications and Community Relations Report.

10.O.  Accept Report on Housing Authority Records Disposition.

10.P.  Approve the Budget for Removal and Replacement of (30) Exterior Elevated
Balconies at Anne B. Diament Plaza. Authorize the Executive Director to Sign a 
Contract with AmOne Construction Not to exceed $862,600. 

10.Q.  Approve the Annual Intern Program and Continuation of a One-Year Rotating
Fellowship Program for Graduates of the Intern Program. 

10.R.  Authorize the Executive Director to approve a contract between the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda, Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation and 
Transystems Corporation for Relocation Services for a not to exceed amount of 
Five Hundred Thousand dollars and Zero cents ($500,000.00) until February 28, 
2027. 

10.S.  Accept conflict of interest letters from Goldfarb and Lipman for a number of
transactions. 

11. AGENDA

11.A.  Conduct the Public Hearing for the Annual Plan and Moving to Work
Supplement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

11.B.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Linnet Corner and Adopt the
Authorizing Resolution No. 1068 for the Ground Lease and Cash Loans and 
Approve the Financing and Ownership Structure for Linnet Corner 

11.C.  Accept the Quarterly Development Report; Approve a $2,100,000
Predevelopment Loan and 20 year Option to Ground Lease to Island City 
Development; Authorize the Executive Director or Designee to Negotiate and 
Execute the Predevelopment Loan and Option Agreement for The Poplar (2615 

Page 17
Page 21

Page 24
Page 28

Page 32
Page 37

Page 44
Page 51

Page 55

Page 72
Page 88

Page 105
Page 117

Page 123

Page 137

Page 141

Page 144

Page 162

Page 172

Page 256



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners February 21, 2024 

Eagle Avenue). 

11.D.  Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the approved Moving
To Work activities and other procedural updates. 

12. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

14. COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the
Commissioners)

15. CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION OF HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS – IF NEEDED

16. Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

17. ADJOURNMENT

* * * Note * * *

Documents related to this agenda are available on-line at:  
https://www.alamedahsg.org/meetings/ 
Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to 
serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of 
Commissioners exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations 
are conducted before the people and are open for the people’s review.  In order 
to assist the Housing Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe 
allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may 
be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the Housing 
Authority accommodate these individuals. 

Page 275

Page 286



 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Wednesday, December 20, 2023 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  
 



 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

  
Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.

 

  
 

  



 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 



 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  
 



 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.

 

  
 

  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

  

 

 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Siyuan (Steven) Zhou, Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.  

BACKGROUND 
This memo provides a high-level overview of the Property Operations Department’s 
activities for the last month.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The attached table (Attachment 1) summarizes property performance for all sites 
including Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and affiliate-owned sites for 
the month of January. 
 
As of July 1, 2023, FPI Management (FPI) has taken over management duties for all 
properties previously managed by AHA and the John Stewart Company (JSCo). Staff 
will continue to work closely with FPI, LifeSTEPS and our residents to ensure that all 
properties continue to have a smooth transition. 
  
VACANCY 
The attached table (Attachment 1) reflects twenty-three (23) vacancies out of six 
hundred eighty-six (686) units for all properties for the month of January 2024. Staff are 
working diligently to fill the vacancies and fourteen (14) units have move-ins scheduled 
for the next month. 
  
Lease up coordination between AHA Property Management, FPI, and AHA Housing 
Programs continues with the goal of filling vacancies as expeditiously as possible. 
Vacancies that do not have a waitlist are posted on the AHA website and applications 
are available through the Resident Managers, as well as GoSection 8, the Section 8 
online search engine, and on Craigslist. 
  
RENT COLLECTIONS 
The attached table (Attachment 1) provides the collection rate versus rent billed for all 
AHA owned and affiliate-owned sites, and sites managed by FPI. An explanation for 



properties with a collection rate below 98% or above 101% is provided below. 
  
The collection rate for Independence Plaza is 91.3%. China Clipper is at 92.8%, Anne B 
Diament is at 92.1%, Eagle Village is at 96.4%, Parrot Village is at 88.5%, Rosefield 
Village is at 89.5% and AAHC owned scattered sites are at 93%. Esperanza is at 97.5% 
 and Parrot Garden is at 94.6%. The higher collection rates are primarily due to past 
rent and subsidy amounts being recorded in the month of October. The lower collection 
rates are primarily due to the units pending legal action and past due balances for 
residents affected by COVID-19. Generally, senior properties have a higher rent 
coleciton rate, in part because the units are smaller. 
 
The total delinquency (unpaid rent) for the portfolio for current tenants is $772,443. All 
residents with a past due balance have been referred to LifeSTEPS for assistance. 
Property Management and LifeSTEPS continue to engage residents and encourage 
them to enter into a repayment agreement. Starting January 6, 2024, tenants who owe 
over $100 are being referred to legal counsel for review of their cases and, where 
necessary, a 30-day notice to pay or quit has been filed with the court. Prior to this, only 
tenants who owe over $1,000 were being issued such notices. Counsel is working with 
these families to enter into a "stay and pay" stipulated agreement. 
  
RENT INCREASES 
Rent increases will follow at all sites in the coming months, in accordance with the new 
payment standards implemented in November 2023. This will result in increases to the 
total contract rent going forward, but these rent increases to meet the new payment 
standards generally will not impact subsidized residents’ tenant rent portion, as long as 
they are not over-housed. Independence Plaza rent increases will follow Board 
directions from February 2023 to include annual rent increases. 
  
SOCIAL SERVICES 
LifeSTEPS has been providing aid to tenants and households and continues to link 
them to financial and social service agencies, as needed.  
 
The Food Bank has continued the farmer’s market structure that was being utilized prior 
to the pandemic and LifeSTEPS has resumed running this model. Town hall meetings 
are being held for each site in the months of October and November. 
  
MAINTENANCE 
The attached table (Attachment 1) shows the Maintenance Requests completed in 
January 2024.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Report only.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 



RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. February BOC Report 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Siyuan (Steven) Zhou, Management Analyst 





    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Lynette Jordan, Director of Housing Programs  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs 
Department.  

BACKGROUND 
This memo is a high-level overview of Housing Programs Department (HPD) activities 
for the month of January 2024.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Landlord Incentives 
Under the new Moving to Work designation, landlords who participate in AHA’s Housing 
Choice Voucher (HCV) program are eligible to receive new landlord incentives. AHA 
staff strives to provide the best possible customer service to our HCV landlords and 
provide the best possible incentives to HCV landlords as well. 
 
The new incentive program has been well received by our landlords participants, and 
staff are tracking the incentives monthly. In March, staff plan to do a presentation for the 
Board on the incentives and the progress we have made since the MTW incentive 
increases.  Below is a list of the new incentives AHA is offering to our landlord 
participants: 

 $1,500 for a unit that has never been previously leased by a participant in AHA’s 
HCV program. The tenant on the new lease must be an AHA HCV program 
participant. 

 $2,000 for an ADA accessible unit when it is leased to an AHA HCV program 
participant. 

 $100 for a unit that passes initial HQS inspection on the first inspection (at move-
in) and an AHA HCV program participant then leases the unit.  

 $1,000 for a unit that was previously leased by a participant in AHA’s HCV 
program participant and is then leased to a new HCV program participant at 
AHA. 



NOTE: Landlords can receive multiple incentives for a unit, but the total of all payments 
has to be equal to or less than one month of rent. 
 
Leasing Update 
In December 2023, staff selected 50 applicants from the Housing Choice Voucher wait 
list using the applicant portal. The applicant portal automated the wait list selection 
process, making it streamlined for applicants to respond directly to the portal. Applicants 
are able to sign in and update their information and upload supporting documents to be 
reviewed by staff. Staff had 28 applicants respond to the selection and scheduled a 
briefing to distribute vouchers to the applicants. Those applicants that did not respond 
by the deadline were removed from the wait list, but are afforded an informal review if 
they respond after the deadline.  
 
The staff plan to continue our leasing efforts by selecting another 50 applicants by 
March 1, 2024.      
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
For report only, no fiscal impact.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Overview of the Housing Programs Department.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. 10-C HPD Attachement 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

  
Lynette Jordan, Director of Housing Programs 



Av
er

ag
e 

D
ur

at
io

n 
fr

om
 v

ou
ch

er
 is

su
an

ce
 to

 
th

os
e 

le
as

ed
 u

p 
in

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
24

 (d
ay

s)

Pr
og

ra
m

Vo
uc

he
rs

 L
ea

se
d

Am
ou

nt
 

Aw
ar

de
d/

Fu
nd

ed
Vo

uc
he

rs
 F

un
de

d 
Bu

t 
N

ot
 L

ea
se

d
19

2.
3

Sh
el

te
r P

lu
s 

Ca
re

18
18

0
Av

er
ag

e 
Te

na
nt

 R
en

t t
o 

O
w

ne
r

SR
O

 
29

30
1

57
5.

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Av
er

ag
e 

TT
P

61
9.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

H
CV

 (7
10

0)
97

1
Av

er
ag

e 
H

H
 in

co
m

e
PB

V 
(7

30
0)

32
1

25
,5

19
.9

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

AH
A-

ow
ne

d 
H

CV
 

22
9

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f I
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 P
as

se
d 

Fi
rs

t-
Ti

m
e 

(J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

4)

Po
rt

 O
ut

s 
0

EH
V 

(7
76

0)
 in

 A
la

m
ed

a
40

2%
FU

P 
33

EH
V 

Po
rt

 O
ut

s
16

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 (J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

4)
VA

SH
36

To
ta

l L
ea

se
d

56
12

9
To

ta
l V

ou
ch

er
s 

Le
as

ed
15

90
To

ta
l A

w
ar

de
d

57

U
ni

ts
 o

n 
AC

C
18

93
Vo

uc
he

rs
 F

un
de

d 
Bu

t 
N

ot
 L

ea
se

d
1

Bu
dg

et
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(F
or

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
24

 - 
Av

er
ag

e 
Ac

ro
ss

 1
2 

m
on

th
s)

AC
C 

Vo
uc

he
rs

 
Fu

nd
ed

 B
ut

 N
ot

 
Le

as
ed

30
3

3,
10

5,
05

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l H

AP
 e

xp
en

de
d

3,
34

4,
90

0.
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Be

dr
oo

m
 S

iz
e

Av
er

ag
e 

H
AP

Co
un

t o
f H

ou
se

ho
ld

s
H

AP
/B

ud
ge

t A
ut

ho
rit

y
0

69
9.

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

9
10

7.
7%

1
1,

68
4.

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

55
9

2
1,

98
2.

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

48
6

3
2,

68
1.

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
1

4
3,

11
3.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

28

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 V

ou
ch

er
s

To
ta

l A
CC

 V
ou

ch
er

s 
Le

as
ed

 B
y 

Ty
pe

To
ta

l N
O

N
-A

CC
 V

ou
ch

er
s 

Le
as

ed
 B

y 
Ty

pe

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

as
hb

oa
rd

 fo
r J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
4

Av
er

ag
e 

of
 H

AP
 p

er
 B

ed
ro

om
 s

iz
e



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and its affiliate, the Alameda 
Affordable Housing Authority (AAHC), own and operate multifamily property throughout 
Alameda.  Periodically, work is scheduled to maintain and upgrade existing buildings, or 
to improve property that is anticipated to be redeveloped in the future. In 2022, AHA and 
AAHC obtained Physical Needs Assessments on all properties over 5 years old.  These 
assessments delineated capital needs over a 15-year period, but also highlighted any 
health/safety needs and items for short-term attention.  AHA and AAHC have completed 
or begun all health/safety items, and plan to address short-term needs through the 
annual budgeting process for every property.   
 
In addition, three properties (China Clipper, Independence Plaza and Esperanza) were 
targeted as having substantial long-term needs, and staff is beginning to study how 
these investments might be funded.  There are multiple sizeable projects being planned 
or underway at this time.  Staff prioritizes work that is health and safety-related, lender-
required, or provide risk mitigation. This report serves to provide updates on this work. 
 A formal update to the Board is expected in 2024.  
 
DISCUSSION 
The following construction projects are in progress as of this Board Meeting. 
 
1. North Housing Master-Plan Site Preparation 
                                                                                                                          
Block A of Site: North Housing, 501 Mosley Ave 
Purpose: Prepare site for future development of affordable housing 
Timeline: October 2023 to March 2024 
Status: Notice to proceed issued on 10/4/2023. The contractor began site mobilization 
on 10/10/2023.  By the end of January, site preparation was 95% complete.  The rains 
have caused delays and made scheduling the completion of the work unpredictable. 
 The construction contract may need to be extended if weather continues to cause 



delays in completion beyond 2/12/24. Staff extended the Builder's Risk Insurance in 
anticipation of a contract extension for time due to weather delays. At the time of this 
report, no cost increases to the contract are anticipated for time extension. 
 
2. North Housing Block A - Offsite Improvements  
                                                                                                                          
Site: North Housing Block A, 501 Mosley Ave 
Purpose: In addition to the soil stabilization work being completed at North Housing 
Block A to serve the future housing developments. AHA contracted with J.H. Fitzmarice, 
Inc. (JHF) for offsite improvements such as the realignment of Lakehurst Circle, the new 
water main extension, and the new Mabuhay Street. Offsite improvements work is 
expected to take approximately ten months to complete and is on a parallel track to the 
two upcoming housing development projects (Estuary I and Linnet Corner). Costs for 
the work are budgeted in each of the housing developments at Block A and funding was 
previously approved by the Board of Commissioners in December 2023. 
Timeline: February 2024 to February 2025 
Status: A Notice to proceed was issued on 1/31/2024 and the contractor is expected to 
mobilize on or before 2/14/2024. Construction completion is at 0%. 
 
3. Below Market Rent unit renovation 
 
Site: 410 Tucker Ave. 
Purpose: Renovate this recently-purchased affordable home so that it can be rented. 
Timeline: Complete.                                                                                                             
       
Status: The renovation is complete. The HQS inspection was performed and passed on 
1/25/2024. Keys were turned over to FPI for lease-up on 2/6/2024. 
 
4. Parrot Village Siding/Paint Repairs 
                                                                                                                                       
Site: Parrot Village 
Purpose: Lender required exterior repairs and new exterior paint  
Timeline: Work is expected to take 3–4 Months (Weather Permitting).  
Status: The siding is complete, the painting has experienced weather delays and is 
scheduled to begin the week of 2/26/2024. 
 
5. Eagle Village Siding/Paint Repairs. 
Site: Eagle Village 
Purpose: Lender required exterior repairs and new exterior paint 
Timeline: Work is expected to take 4-5 Months (Weather Permitting). 
Status: The work has experienced weather delays and is scheduled to begin the week 
of 2/26/2024 and be completed by July 2024. 
 
6. Guardrail and Stair Handrail Renovations                                                                       
                                                       
Sites: Esperanza, China Clipper, Lincoln House, Anne B. Diament, Stanford House and 



Parrot Gardens 
Purpose: Upgrade guard rails and handrails for safety reasons as noted in the 2022 
Physical Needs Assessments (PNAs). 
Timeline: The work should take 8–10 weeks to complete. 
Status: An RFP was issued on 8/28/2023 and a bid walk conducted 9/26/2023. AHA 
received (1) proposal for the work at these (6) properties and AHA has hired a 
consultant, Leland Saylor Associates, to perform a cost analysis of the sole proposal 
that was received. 
 
7. China Clipper Electrical Upgrade                                                                                     
                                                       
Site: China Clipper 
Purpose: Upgrade electrical panels for safety reasons as noted in 2022 PNA. 
Timeline: The work is expected to take 6–8 weeks. 
Status: The permit for this work was approved on 1/25/2024 and work is expected to 
begin in February 2024. 
 
 
8. Anne B. Diament Balcony Repairs                                                                                 
                                                         
Site: Anne B. Diament 
Purpose: Repair balconies in compliance with Senate Bill 721. 
Timeline: This scope of work is expected to take 6 months to complete. 
Status: The permit was approved by the City of Alameda Building Department on 
2/5/2024, and the work is expected to begin in early March 2024. 
 
 
9. Wayfinding Signage Installation at Parrot Garden, Parrot Village, and Eagle Village 
 
Sites: Parrot Garden, Parrot Village, and Eagle Village  
Purpose: Install wayfinding "YOU ARE HERE" signs to assist emergency services and 
visitors. 
Timeline: Complete. 
Status: This work was completed on 1/4/2024. 
 
10. Independence Plaza Balcony Repairs/Sewer Study                                                     
                                                        
Site: Independence Plaza 
Purpose: Balconies were repaired in 2022-23 in accordance with Senate Bill 721. To 
finalize the permits, the private sewer laterals must be pressure/vacuum tested by East 
Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD). 
Timeline: This work is expected to take 2–3 weeks to complete. (Weather  Permitting) 
Status: This work is scheduled to begin in the middle of November 2023. (Weather 
 Permitting). 
 
11. Wayfinding Signage Installation at Everett Commons and Littlejohn Commons. 



 
Sites: Everett Commons and Littlejohn Commons 
Purpose: Install wayfinding "YOU ARE HERE" signs to assist emergency services and 
visitors. 
Timeline: Install before 2/19/2024. 
Status: Signage has been fabricated and is scheduled to be installed prior to 2/16/2024. 
 
12. SB 721 Inspections 
 
Sites: Lincoln House,China Clipper, Stanford House, Esperanza, LittleJohn Commons, 
Everett Commons, Independence Plaza 
Purpose: Senate Bill 721 enacted 9/17/2018 requires all properties with 3 or more 
multifamily dwelling units have all exterior elevated elements and associated 
waterproofing assemblies be inspected every 6 years. 
Timeline: Inspections to be completed and reports received by July 2024. 
Status: An RFP was issued on 12/5/2023 and (5) proposals were received. Interviews 
for the (5) respondents have been completed, and an intent to award decision is 
expected  by 2/15/2024.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the North Housing Master Plan was approved by the Board of 
Commissioners in August 2023.  Funding for the North Housing Block A Offsite 
Improvements was approved by the Board of Commissioners in December 2023. 
Funding for repairs and maintenance on existing properties owned by either AHA or the 
AAHC is from either project reserves or the 2022 Reserve Policy Preservation Budget, 
as adopted by the AHA Board of Commissioners.  Funding for the Independence Plaza 
Balcony repair is also being supported by redevelopment funds from the City of 
Alameda.    
 
CEQA 
None  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Monthly Development Report for The Estuary I.  

BACKGROUND 
The Estuary I, formerly known as North Housing PSH I, is the first of three projects 
within North Housing Block A and Block A is the first phase of the larger 12-acre North 
Housing parcel redevelopment at the former Alameda Naval Air Station (NAS) at the 
site known as Coast Guard Housing. As of May 30, 2019, The North Housing parcel is 
under the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) ownership. 
  
The Estuary I project, located at 500 Mosley Avenue, includes the new construction of 
45 units permanent supportive housing for formerly homeless individuals and 
households. AHA is leading the development under a homeless accommodation 
conveyance, alongside providers Alameda Point Collaborative (APC) and Building 
Futures. Island City Development (ICD) is the developer. The overall project scope 
includes construction of a new building featuring onsite laundry, property management 
offices, social services coordination offices, a community room, bicycle parking, and 
ground improvements to Lakehurst Circle and Mabuhay Street. 
  
Please see previous Board reports for project details prior to this report.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Funding 
The project was awarded Section 8 Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs) for 40 of the 45 
total units. The Partnership and AHA executed the Agreement to Enter into a Housing 
Assistance Payment contract (AHAP) in October 2023. 
  
In December 2023, the Board approved Authorizing Resolution No. 1065 and the 
financing and ownership structure for The Estuary I project. Project financing includes 
investor equity through the sale of 9% Low Income Housing Tax Credits and California 
State Tax Credits; two soft loans (repaid by cash flow) from AHA, one for sponsor 
takeback financing and one from AHA cash reserves; Alameda Affordable Housing 



Trust Fund (AAHTF) loan from Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC); PLHA 
loan, CDBG funds, HOME funds, and waived development impact fees from the City of 
Alameda; Affordable Housing Program (AHP) loan from AHA as the Sponsor through 
the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco (FHLB); and General Partner (GP) 
equity. 
 
Staff are working on the disbursement requests for the City CDBG funds, FHLB AHP 
funds, and matching funds from the state Local Housing Trust Fund committed to the 
project. 
 
Bank of America (construction lender) credit approval requires a lien-free construction 
completion milestone of November 30, 2025 in their loan documents. This item was 
brought to AHA attention, because it was missed in the original loan documents and is 
now requested to be added. This milestone may be challenging to meet given the 
planned timelines of the project and the offsite work. If there is a possibility the metric 
may be missed, Bank of America allows a request for a loan modification to revise the 
dates 60 days prior to the deadline.   However, the risks to ownership include lack of 
compliance with loan covenants, filing an early notice of completion, requirement to 
indemnify title and the Bank against liens and other considerations.   Staff will remain 
diligent to monitor progress on meeting all the funder-required timelines on this project. 
 
Construction 
The Estuary I closed on its financing and began construction at the end of January 
2024. Construction of The Estuary I will take approximately 18 months. The overall 
project completion and billing percentage through January 31, 2024 is 0%.  
 
Related Agreements and Development Items 
Staff is working with legal counsel and design consultants to prepare a document to be 
recorded against the land demonstrating the condo air space division of the parcel 
shared between The Estuary I and The Estuary II projects. This condo will be the legal 
parcel for The Estuary II, which is adjacent to The Estuary I and on the same parcel. 
Staff is also working to prepare a reciprocal access easement between The Estuary I 
partnership, The Estuary II partnership, and Linnet Corner partnership that will outline 
shared amenities and utilities, including but not limited to, common areas, car and 
bicycle parking, lighting, sidewalks, and utility infrastructure, as needed to support the 
operations of each project. The condo division and reciprocal access easement are 
contemplated as part of the master plan for the Block A site. 
  
The North Housing Site has an existing Reciprocal Easement Agreement between AHA 
and the neighboring property owner of Admirals Cove Apartments, CP VI Admirals 
Cove, LLC for the use of Lakehurst Circle. The approved first phase parcel map made 
adjustments to Lakehurst Circle, a private street located on the western portion of the 
site. Staff is working with the neighbor on a street maintenance and lien agreement for 
Lakehurst Circle. 
  
The three agreements referenced above will be brought back to the Board for 



ratification in 2024.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Board authorized a pre-development loan to ICD totaling $10,000,000 for costs 
associated with master planning, carrying costs, demolition, and redevelopment work 
for Block A of the North Housing project, which includes 155 units of permanent 
supportive and senior housing, including Estuary I. Funds are disbursed to ICD on an 
as-needed basis. Please refer to the attached chart summarizing expenses through 
January 31, 2024. (Attachment 1) 
 
At the closing, a portion of the outstanding balance of $1,958,597 on the 
predevelopment loan net of anticipated soil stabilization costs and predevelopment 
costs was recast to the permanent loan by the AAHTF loan.  The remaining costs will 
be recast in the next month's construction loan draw.  Staff is drafting a reimbursement 
agreement to document recasting all expenses paid through the predevelopment loan to 
the AAHTF funds, and to cover all future master plan costs undertaken by AHA. All prior 
and future costs incurred by the project through conversion will be paid by financing 
committed to the Partnership through a monthly draw request to the construction and 
soft lenders. 
   
 
CEQA 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Development Report for The Estuary I.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. North Housing Expenses Chart Through January 31, 2024 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager 



North Housing Block A Predevelopment Expenses Chart Through January 31, 2024

North Housing Block A Total
The Estuary I -  45 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs), $1,958,598 has been reclass to 
permanent sources at loan closing. The remaining costs will be reclass by the 
next construction loan draw. $71,330
The Estuary II -  46 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,209,665
Linnet Corner -  64 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,502,340

Grand Total $2,783,335
Anticipated Soil Stabilization Costs $5,003,993
Predevelopment Funds Remaining $254,074

North Housing Total
Remaining Nine (9) Acre Land Carrying Costs and Site Predevelopment 
(includes master planning and demolition) 
*Shown for informational purposes only $4,000,000



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Alicia Southern, Director of Human Resources and Operations  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Executive/HR 
Department.  

BACKGROUND 
This memo provides a high-level overview of agency activities in the prior three month 
period for the Executive Department, including Human Resources, Data and Policy, and 
MTW.  
 
DISCUSSION 
  
Human Resources and Operations 
 
A summary of unfilled positions that are on the Schedule of Authorized positions is 
presented below.  Positions are listed by department, and information about current and 
recent recruitment is included.  Information is current through the end of January 2024.  
 

Department Position Number 
of Vacant 
Positions 

Recruitment 
Status 

Other 
Updates 

Executive Deputy Executive 
Director 

1 FTE Position 
temporarily on 
hold 

 

     

Administration Program Assistant Filled Internal 
transfer. 
Candidate 
selected and 
started in 
December.  

 



     

Finance Management Analyst 1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

New position 

     

Housing 
Programs 

Assistant Director of 
Housing Programs 

1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

Open due to 
turnover 

 Management Analyst 1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

Open due to 
turnover 

 Housing Programs 
Supervisor 

1 FTE Position 
vacated in 
January. 
Interviewing 
candidates 

Open due to 
turnover 

 Program Assistant Filled Internal 
transfer. 
Candidate 
selected and 
started in 
January. 

Open due to 
staff transfer 

     

Property 
Operations 

Director of Property 
Operations 

1 FTE Candidate 
selected and 
started in 
January. 

 

 Assistant Director of 
Perm. Supportive 
Housing  

1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

New position 

 Management Analyst 1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

Title change. 
Open due to 
turnover 

 Program Assistant 0.50 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

New position 

     

Housing 
Development 

 0 FTE  Dept. fully 
staffed 

     

Asset Associate Asset 1 FTE Interviewing New position 



Management Manager candidates 

     

Data and 
Policy 

Management Analyst 1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

New position 

 Program Assistant Filled  New positon. 
Candidate 
selected and 
started in 
December. 

     

Human 
Resources 

Human Resources 
Manager/Management 
Analyst 

1 FTE Recruitment 
posted; closes 
2/16 

Open due to 
staff 
promotion 

 Program Assistant 1 FTE Interviewing 
candidates 

Open due to 
turnover 

     

 
Summary: 
Total FTE's approved for FY 2023/24: 55 
Number of vacancies:  12.5 FTE's 
Number of active recruitments:  7 (Program Assistant and Management Analysts may 
be filled from the same recruitments) 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) has welcomed two new staff 
members since the last quarterly report, including a Director of Property Operations, 
and a Program Assistant.  Two Program Assistant positions were filled internally with 
transfers to different Departments. Interviews are in process for several other positions, 
and while the candidate pool for most positions is smaller than in the past, Management 
anticipates filling additional positions in the upcoming months.  HR is also looking for a 
recruiter to assist with coordination and outreach to active and passive candidates who 
might not otherwise respond to traditional job postings.  Recruiting expenditures are 
higher as a result, but are covered by savings from vacant positions, and the investment 
can pay off in securing candidates sooner and provide outside support to internal HR 
staff involved in multiple recruitments. 
 
During this period, staff attended NAHRO, CAHA, and Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
conferences.  Training was received on the following topics: Defensive Driver, Annual 
Employment Law and Benefits Update, Laserfiche, OneDrive, An Introduction to HR 
and Leaves, Brown Act and Public Records Act Requests, Customer Service for Clients 
with Mental Health Challenges, Certified Housing Asset Manager, Advanced Financial 
Tools for Asset Managers, Tax Credit Specialist, Asset Management Fundamentals, 
and Financial Fundamentals for Asset Managers.  



  
On December 13, 2023, staff were also invited to a holiday celebration lunch. Monthly 
events continue to be planned by the Events and Celebrations Committee. On February 
5, 2024, the Directors held a team building lunch and meeting. In February, the Events 
and Celebrations Committee put up celebratory items for Black History Month and the 
Lunar New Year.  
 
Moving to Work (MTW) Designation 
During the last quarter, the AHA received approval to implement two Agency Specific 
Waiver activities that were included in prior plans.  These two activities are allowing all 
project-based voucher (PBV) contracts to request a rent increase once a year effective 
for July 1st rather than at the anniversary date of the contract (2023-05) and allowing 
PBV families to remain in smaller units rather than requiring the family to relocate to a 
larger unit (2022-14).  There are still three pending Agency Specific Waiver activities for 
the two submitted MTW Supplements.    
 
Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) Vouchers 
The AHA is waiting on HUD in D.C. to respond to two requests to transfer VASH 
vouchers from other Public Housing Authorities.  The Housing Authority of the County of 
Alameda (HACA) agreed to reallocate 20 VASH vouchers from HACA to AHA and the 
Oakland Housing Authority (OHA) agreed to reallocate 15 VASH vouchers from OHA to 
AHA. 
 
Faircloth to RAD 
The AHA has 120 Faircloth units that may be used.  The Faircloth limit is the number of 
Public Housing units that the AHA had October 1, 1999.  This quarter, a capitals needs 
assessment was completed and AHA received from HUD the Notice of Anticipated RAD 
Rents (NARR).  This document will be revised once AHA is further in the RAD process 
and can determine the amount of MTW funds that may be used to augment the base 
rents of $701 for a 1-bedroom and $852 for a 2-bedroom.   
 
The AHA is in discussion with two other Public Housing Authorities who have a Faircloth 
limit, but not the capacity to develop units, about the possibility of transferring their 
Faircloth limits to the AHA.   
 
Data and Policy 
The Data and Policy Department hired a Program Assistant to help with the tracking 
and special projects completed by the department.  The Management Analyst has also 
completed numerous online forms for the Housing Programs Department MTW 
activities and for the PBV program.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Report only, no financial  impact.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable to this item.  



 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Executive Department.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

  
Alicia Southern, Director of Human Resources and Operations 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sean Prevette, Asst. Director of Administrative Services  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Overview Report For Administrative Services 
Department.  

BACKGROUND 
The Administrative Services Department manages a number of areas within the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA); including procurement, information 
technology, reasonable accommodations, community relations and risk management. 
This report serves to provide the Board with a quarterly overview of notable 
developments within these areas of the agency.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Procurement 
The following are some highlights of the AHA’s current procurement initiatives: 
  
Internal Training: AHA Procurement Days will continue to be offered on a bi-annual 
basis to provide updates for current staff. AHA last provided a Procurement Overview 
training for new staff in November 2023 and has scheduled the next training for 
February 2024. Staff reviewed the procurement process checklist outlining the various 
steps in the process, starting with vendor selection through purchase order initiation. 
Staff also plan on implementing an e-procurement system by spring 2024 to streamline 
the procurement process, outreach to a broader range of vendors, and manage contract 
and insurance documents.  
 
AHA solicitations can be found here: https://www.alamedahsg.org/contracting-with-aha 
  
A summary of notable past, present, and upcoming RFPs and ITBs for 2023 is provided 
below: 

RFP/ITB DESCRIPTION ORG STATUS ISSUE DATE 

Rent Reasonable Studies AHA Upcoming ITB Spring 2024 



Telephone Answering Services AHA Upcoming ITB Spring 2024 

Eviction and Property Management 
Counsel 

AHA Upcoming RFP Summer 2024 

Housing Choice Voucher Program 
(HCVP) Consulting Services 

AHA RFP closed; under 
review 

December 19, 
2023 

Financial and Accounting Consulting 
Services 

AHA RFP closed; 
contract awarded 

November 30, 
2023 

Landscaping Services AHA ITB closed; contract 
pending 

November 30, 
2023 

HVAC Services AHA ITB closed; contract 
awarded 

September 19, 
2023 

Relocation Services AHA RFP closed; 
contract pending 

August 21, 
2023 

Temporary Agency Support Services AHA RFP closed; under 
review 

July 18, 2023 

HR Legal Services AHA RFP closed; under 
review 

June 21, 2023 

Towing Services AHA  ITB closed; contract 
awarded 

June 5, 2023 

  
The number of agreements and amendments executed from November 1, 2023 - 
January 31, 2023, is provided below: 

Agreements Executed Amendments Executed 

11 9 

 
Reasonable Accommodations 
The table below provides a summary of monthly and year-to-date statistics on 
Reasonable Accommodation (RA) processing as of January 31, 2024. 

Month New 
submissions by 
month 

Requests 
still in 
process 

Closed 
RAs 
(letter 
sent) 

Submissions 
YTD 

Closed 
RAs YTD 

January 14 0 14 14 14 

February 18 0 18 32 32 

March 25 0 25 57 57 

April 17 0 17 74 74 



May 26 0 26 100 100 

June 33 0 33 133 133 

July 15 0 15 148 148 

August 24 0 24 172 172 

September 50 0 50 222 222 

October 32 0 32 254 254 

November 37 0 37 291 291 

December  16 0 16 307 307 

 
The subsequent table displays the percentage of approved, denied, and closed RA 
requests that have been finalized by month. For example, during October 2023, there 
were thirty-two RAs that had been finalized. Of those thirty-two, eleven requests were 
approved, resulting in a 34% approval rate.  

Month Approved Denied Closed 

January 57% 36% 7% 

February 44% 56% 0% 

March 28% 72% 0% 

April 41% 59% 0% 

May 23% 73% 4% 

June 33% 52% 15% 

July 47% 47% 6% 

August 46% 54% 0% 

September 24% 66% 10% 

October  34% 62% 4% 

November 48% 52% 0% 

December  19% 69% 12% 

 
The following table provides a year-to-date total of the type of accommodation requests 
received. The "other" category includes requests such as extensions of time for 
completing a recertification, reinstating a voucher, and/or providing approval for an 
assistance animal. 

Categories YTD 



Extra Bedroom 71 

Live-In Aides 62 

Parking 10 

Unit Modifications/requests 16 

Voucher extension 47 

Other - Misc. 101 

 
Staff continue to accept RA requests via e-mail, fax, in person, by phone, and through 
the electronic form available on the AHA website; and to complete quality control 
reviews on reasonable accommodation processes and outcomes. 
  
Community Relations Summary 
The bullet points below provide a summary of AHA’s community relations activities 
during the fourth quarter of 2023: 

 In partnership with the Alameda Food Bank and LifeSteps, residents at AHA's 
largest senior communities (Independence Plaza and Anne B. Diament) have 
been receiving free food deliveries on a bi-weekly basis.    

 The Alameda Food Bank also provides free snacks, fruit, and water for AHA 
youth programs hosted at Esperanza Apartments.  

 The City of Alameda Recreation and Parks department (ARPD) has been 
providing free, bi-weekly afterschool recreational programming (on Wednesdays) 
for AHA youth via ARPD’s mobile recreational unit.  

 AHA contracts with Drawbridge (www.drawbridge.org) to provide bi-weekly art 
activities (on Wednesdays) at Esperanza Apartments.   

 The goal of the Drawbridge and ARPD programs is to provide a safe space for 
AHA youth at AHA’s largest family property (Esperanza Apartments) on a weekly 
basis.      

 In October, AHA partnered with the Rica Vista property owners (Lincoln Avenue 
Capital) to host a community resources event at Rica Vista apartments, during 
which AHA provided outreach materials and information to attenders, alongside 
other community resources (Alameda Food Bank, Alameda County Food Bank, 
LifeSteps).  

 In December, AHA staff worked with the College of Alameda staff to coordinate a 
toy drive in December that generated gifts for the Alameda Firefighter Holiday 
Toy Program (which benefits AHA residents).     

 
Communications Summary 
AHA's efforts to  increase community awareness of agency activities, during these 
reporting period, included the following: 
   
 1) Press Releases:  During Q4, two press releases (Poppy Place and EHV) were 



published. Both were picked up by 564 AP Media outlets. An advertorial placement ran 
in the Alameda Post in December:  https://alamedapost.com/op-ed/housing-authority-
services-extend-beyond-just-housing/  
   
 2) AHA newsletters:  During Q4, Housing Choice Voucher program participants and 
AHA tenants were mailed (and emailed) the quarterly tenant newsletter, the bi-annual 
landlord newsletter was mailed (and emailed) to AHA landlords and the bi-annual 
newsletter was emailed to a variety of government agencies. The annual vendor 
newsletter was also mailed (and emailed) to AHA vendors.   
    
 3)  Public Outreach:  During Q4, AHA staff launched a significant outreach campaign 
for the Poppy Place pre-application period, which included public presentations at 
Alameda City Council, Board of the Alameda Unified School District, Rotary Club. Plus, 
AHA’s Community Relations Manager conducted the monthly landlord portal meeting 
for AHA landlords, the quarterly meeting for legal advocates, the monthly meeting with 
LifeSteps and FPI Management, and the quarterly meeting with Mayor to provide AHA 
updates.  
   
Website Update 
During Q4, both agency websites (www.alamedahsg.org 
and www.islandcitydevelopment.org) continued to undergo content updates, to reflect 
accurate and timely information. Also, both websites are reviewed monthly for ADA 
accessibility (WCAG 2.1 level AA) and any required content updates. New staff, who 
are authorized to perform website editing, underwent internal training on the WordPress 
(back-end) platform to learn how to update the system. Both websites continue to 
feature intuitive navigation and are optimized for mobile devices.  
 
Online Data Metrics 
The information below tracks AHA’s growing digital presence by capturing website 
analytics, social media metrics, and email activity in Q4 2023:   
  
Website Data (for www.alamedahsg.org) 
Total unique visitors:  25,362 
Total page views by unique visitors: 90,197    
Average engagement per active unique visitor:   1 minute 16 seconds 
  
 Facebook Data 
 Total Followers:  811 
 Post Reach (Number of people that saw any content on AHA Facebook page):  2,036 
   
 LinkedIn Data 
 Total Followers:  795 
 Unique Visitors:  355   
 Impressions Delivered (Total page views by unique visitors): 8.091 
 
   



Email Data  
 Agency Marketing Emails Sent out by AHA:  37,724  
 Email List Contact Growth (from previous quarter):  6,017 
 Total Contacts: 22,188 
 Email Open Rate:  64% 
 Click Rate:  10%   
   
Ombudsperson Data 
The AHA Ombudsperson is a solution-oriented community resource available to all AHA 
tenants, AHA program participants, AHA landlords, and other community organizations 
that represent AHA tenants or clients. The Ombudsperson is a community liaison and 
provides an array of duties, including: 

 Resolving AHA tenant or Section 8 complaints. 
 Identifying AHA staff members to answer specific questions. 
 Developing and expanding community partnerships. 
 Serving as neutral AHA representative to help our clients find resolutions. 
 Ensuring that tenant and/or landlord concerns are fully addressed. 

 
Since program inception in May 2021, the Ombudsperson Program has continued to 
coordinate with internal departments, primarily the Housing Programs Department and 
Property Management staff, to quickly identify solutions and resolve participant issues. 
 
Total Q4 2023 Ombudsperson Contacts:   40 
Contacts from the general public (Non-AHA landlord/tenant matter):  14   
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Potential lease violation):  1   
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Neighbor dispute): 2 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Property management dispute): 5   
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Reasonable accommodation):  1 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Property condition):3 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Rental payment): 4 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (Lease up):  4 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (complaint related FPI staff): 3 
Contacts related to AHA tenant (complaint related AHA staff):  0 
Contacts related to landlord (Portal, HAP, etc.):  3 
  
IT Project Updates 
IT Procedures: Staff is in the process of updating and expanding the agency's standard 
operating procedures for AHA’s IT-related operations. including implementing a new 
Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for the AHA IT Quality Control scope and 
methodology. 
  
LaserFiche: Staff continue to utilize Laserfiche Forms to digitalize our existing forms to 
increase efficiencies. 
  



Yardi: IT staff has been coordinating with Yardi to ensure our software is up-to-date for 
the new procedural changes related to the updated MTW and HOTMA regulations. 
  
 IT support Tickets 

 IT Support Tickets October November December Quarter 4 

Access Rights 82 76 75 233 

Hardware 32 38 18 88 

Software 30 33 26 89 

On Boarding/Off Boardin 6 2 3 11 

On-Site Visits 5 8 5 18 

Cyber security 2 8 1 11 

 157 165 128 450 

 
Brief analysis of Q4: 
1. Access rights remain a frequent subject of IT tickets, as AHA has tight security 
measures. 
2. We have implemented new end-point protection software, Deep Instinct, on all AHA 
computers. It acts as enhanced antivirus software to add more protection to AHA's 
cybersecurity.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal details involved in individual solicitations can be found 
here: https://www.alamedahsg.org/contracting-with-aha/  
 
Non-procurement costs are covered under the approved AHA budget.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Administrative Services Department.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sean Prevette, Asst. Director of Administrative Services 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Housing 
Development Department.  

BACKGROUND 
This memo provides an overview of the Housing Development departmental activities 
for the prior quarter.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Reserve Policy 
The 2022 Reserve Policy allowed for funding to 'spring back' to various projects if the 
development at 1628 Webster Street did not move forward. Staff proposes to utilize the 
$1,500,000 available under this provision to improve the competitiveness of the project 
in the February 13, 2024, nine percent (9%) tax credit funding application to the 
California Tax Credit Allocation Committee. Staff also proposes to utilize part of the 
spring back commitment to The Poplar as a pre-development loan. Please see the 
respective agenda items and requests for more detail. The 2022 Reserve Policy is 
attached for reference (Attachment 1). An update to the Reserve Policy will be brought 
to the Board before mid-2024. 
 
Challenges to Development 
The recent closings for Estuary I and Linnet Corner have highlighted an issue for the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) regarding the contingent liabilities of 
HAP loss, or the loss of Housing Assistance Payments. Contingent liabilities are 
guarantees that the AHA needs to disclose that are not currently active, but may be 
triggered by some sort of event in the future. An example is the operating deficit 
guarantee. If the project is operating well, this guarantee is silent. However, if the 
property starts running into operating deficits, a lender will typically invoke a financial 
provision that AHA or Island City Development (ICD) will loan the project funds to 
continue operations. That loan amount is usually defined up to a certain amount, and 
can be a priority repayment if the project stabilizes. All of ICD's developments have 
permanent lenders or investors that require operating deficit guarantees, as do the four 
properties owned by the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) that have 



mortgages. 
 
HAP loss is a special kind of operating deficit guarantee. Since projects rely on the 
income from a project based rental assistance contract from AHA, the potential loss or 
substantial delay of housing assistance payments are a serious issue for the project's 
solvency. For Estuary II, the lender and investor are requiring a separate HAP loss 
guaranty of up to $3.4 million in the event that HAP is lost during the first 15 years of 
operations. This is in addition to the operating deficit guarantee of $487,000, which is 
triggered during the initial two years if a certain debt service coverage is not maintained. 
The guarantees are also in addition to any actual reserves at the properties. In past 
transactions, the investor and lender have been satisfied with the operating deficit 
guarantees, which are much lower. However, with the increased reliance on HAP 
payments, the lenders and investors are requiring these longer term and more 
significant HAP loss guarantees. It is anticipated that Linnet Corner, and also Estuary II 
will have similar contingent liability guarantees. As AHA shifts from owning many of its 
properties free and clear of debt, to partnering with outside investors and lending 
institutions to support its projects, these guarantees will be an additional requirement of 
operations.   
 
Island City Development 
AHA does not have an outstanding pre-development loan to ICD on behalf of North 
Housing, as that loan was transferred to AAHC in order to leverage state funds to the 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund (AAHTF). In July 2021, the AAHTF awarded 
$7,500,000 and a Letter of Intent for $2,500,000 (contingent on an award from the Local 
Housing Trust Fund program of the State of California). The total of $10,000,000 are 
committed to Estuary I and Estuary II. In May 2023, the AAHTF awarded $2,438,000 
and a Letter of Intent for an additional $1,000,000 (contingent on an award from the 
Local Housing Trust Fund). The total of $3,438,000 are committed to Linnet Corner. 
AHA, has also provided options to ground lease for the four ICD pipeline projects 
(Estuary I and II, Linnet Corner, and The Poplar). The loan balance and project details 
are discussed in the subsequent project specific Board reports.   
 
In September 2023, ICD signed two Agreements of Housing Assistance Payment 
Contract (AHAP) with the AHA for eighty vouchers at Estuary I and Linnet Corner. 
There is an outstanding voucher commitment to Estuary II for forty vouchers as well, 
pending full financing of the projects. 
  
Affordable Housing Project Pipeline 
Staff has now implemented a periodic pipeline newsletter system to communicate with 
interested parties. The most recent newsletter was released in February 2024. 
 

 Rosefield Village – Rosefield converted to permanent financing in August 2023. 
 It has submitted its Placed in Service package to the California Tax Credit 
Allocation Committee and is waiting for its final tax forms (IRS 8609) to be able to 
deliver tax credits to its investor. This should occur by the end of first quarter 



2024. 
 Estuary I, Estuary II, Linnet Corner – Estuary I closed on 1/30/24. Linnet 
Corner is planning to close the week of February 26, 2024.  An update report on 
these projects is presented as a separate Board item. 

 North Master Plan - The Board approved the contract for site stabilization work 
at North Housing Block A in July 2023, and work is nearly complete. There is an 
update on this work in the CIP Report. 

 The Poplar (2615 Eagle) - An updated report on the project is presented as a 
separate Board item.   

 Feasibility Studies – Utilizing data from recent PNAs, appraisals, and 
accessibility studies, staff is conducting financial feasibility analysis on three 
portfolio projects (Independence Plaza, China Clipper, and Esperanza) regarding 
needs and opportunities for renovation. Staff continues to explore avenues to 
utilize the AHA's Faircloth voucher allocation. 

 
Acquisitions 
Staff continues to evaluate potential real estate development and acquisition 
opportunities throughout Alameda as they become available. 
 
New Funding Opportunities 
Staff is working on the 3rd and 4th major funding applications of the year. From earlier 
applications, ICD projects are still waiting for results from the State of California 
SuperNOFA for Estuary II and the National Housing Trust Fund. 
  
Construction in Progress 
A separate report to the Board tracks the many different activities that are underway to 
improve the portfolio and prepare sites for development. 
 
Staffing 
The Housing Development Department is fully staffed and has benefited from part-time 
work from Richard Yoshida and Bridget Galka to assist in covering staff leave and 
providing support for the two North Housing closings. The Finance department has 
provided significant support to the HD department for the two North Housing closings. 
Staff is also transitioning tasks to the new Asset Management Department.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing Development.  
 



ATTACHMENTS 
1. Att 1 2022 Reserve Policy Calculations and Background_May BOC (3) 
2. Housing Development Newsletter Q1 Final 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development 





                                                                                       1                                                 www.alamedahsg.org 

February 2024

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE QUARTERLY UPDATE 
Housing Development Under construction:  



                                                                                       2                                                 www.alamedahsg.org 

February 2024

Groundbreaking! 

 

 

Construction In Progress:  

 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development, Tony Weng, 
Senior Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Development Report for The Estuary II.  

BACKGROUND 
The Estuary II, formerly known as North Housing PSH II, is one of the first three projects 
within North Housing Block A and Block A is the first phase of the larger 12-acre North 
Housing parcel redevelopment at the former Alameda Naval Air Station (NAS) at the 
site known as Coast Guard Housing. The Estuary II is expected to have 46 units of 
permanent supportive housing for formerly homeless individuals and/or households. 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is leading the development under a 
homeless accommodation conveyance, alongside partners Alameda Point Collaborative 
(APC) and Building Futures. Island City Development (ICD) is the developer. On 
February 21, 2016, the Board authorized acceptance of the Quit Claim deed for 
conveyance of the property to AHA. On June 5, 2018, City Council approved the 
resolution to transfer the North Housing site to AHA. The North Housing parcel was 
successfully transferred to AHA ownership on May 30, 2019. The Board approved the 
Agency’s Vision for the North Housing site at its August 2019 meeting. On August 17, 
2020, the Planning Board approved the Development Plan, and on September 15, 
2020, the City Council approved the Tentative Map. 
 
Please see previous Board reports for project details before this month’s update.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Funding 
AHA has made a funding commitment through its Reserve Policy in the amount of 
$3,750,000 which is flowing through the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
(AAHTF) administered by the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC). The 
AAHTF commitment has been awarded matching funds from the State Local Housing 
Trust Fund (LHTF) Program with $1,250,000 of the matching funds committed to the 
Estuary II project. Together, the AAHTF commitment is $5,000,000. AHA has also 
approved an option to ground lease the property, at a subsidized rate in 2021. 



 
The 2022 Reserve Policy allowed for funding to 'spring back' to various projects if the 
development at 1628 Webster Street did not move forward. Staff included the 
$1,500,000 available under this provision to improve the competitiveness of the project 
in the February 13, 2024, nine percent (9%) tax credit funding application to the 
California Tax Credit Allocation Committee. Please see agenda item 10I Quarterly 
Overview Report for the Housing Development Department for an overview of the 2023 
Reserve Policy. 
 
On June 23, 2023, the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco awarded $690,000 in 
Affordable Housing Program (AHP) funds to the project. 
 
On May 18, 2023, the State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) published the Super Notice of Funding Availability (Super NOFA) 
which includes multiple HCD funding programs. On July 12, 2023, staff submitted a 
Super NOFA Funding Application to the State HCD requesting funds from the 
Multifamily Housing Program (MHP). Awards for the Super NOFA are expected in 
February 2024. If the development receives a Super NOFA award in February 2024, it 
will apply for four percent (4%) tax credits and tax-exempt bonds in April 2024.  
 
On January 5, 2024, staff applied to the National Housing Trust Fund program for 
funding. Funding awards are expected in May 2024, and a 9% tax credit application will 
be made in July 2024 if necessary. 
 
On January 15, 2024, staff submitted a Letter of Intent to the Bay Area Housing Finance 
Agency (BAHFA) for funding for Estuary II. An invitation to submit a full application is 
expected by April 2024. A 9% tax credit application will be made in July 2024 if 
necessary.  
 
On December 13, 2021, AHA conditionally awarded forty (40) Section 8 Project-Based 
Vouchers (PBV) for this project. The initial Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract 
for a total of forty (40) PBVs over twenty (20) years is expected to be approximately $10 
million. On April 19, 2023, AHA approved an extension for the project to enter into an 
Agreement To Enter Into A Housing Assistance Payment Contract (AHAP) to April 
2024.  
 
Permit 
The building permit is ready to be issued upon payment of building permit fees. 
 
Procurement 
Staff is working on two active procurements: an Owner’s Representative/Construction 
Management Consultant, and a Materials Testing/Special Inspections Consultant. 
 
Timing 
This development will not start construction until the end of 2024 at the earliest, as it is 
still waiting for its final financing commitments.  



 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Board previously authorized a pre-development loan of $10,000,000 for costs 
associated with master planning, carrying costs, demolition, and redevelopment work 
for the first phase of the North Housing project, which includes 155 units, including 
Estuary II. Funds are disbursed to ICD on an as-needed basis. Please refer to the 
attached chart summarizing expenses through January 31, 2024 (Attachment 1). 
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Development Report for The Estuary II.  

ATTACHMENTS 
1. 24_0131_North Housing Block A Expenses Chart 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development, Tony Weng, Senior Project 
Manager 



North Housing Block A Predevelopment Expenses Chart Through January 31, 2024

North Housing Block A Total
The Estuary I -  45 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs), $1,958,598 has been reclass to 
permanent sources at loan closing. The remaining costs will be reclass by the 
next construction loan draw. $71,330
The Estuary II -  46 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,209,665
Linnet Corner -  64 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,502,340

Grand Total $2,783,335
Anticipated Soil Stabilization Costs $5,003,993
Predevelopment Funds Remaining $254,074

North Housing Total
Remaining Nine (9) Acre Land Carrying Costs and Site Predevelopment 
(includes master planning and demolition) 
*Shown for informational purposes only $4,000,000



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Asset Management 
Department.  

BACKGROUND 
The Asset Management Department manages the long term health and financial 
stability of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's (AHA) owned and partner real 
estate assets and our third party loan portfolio. In late 2023, AHA hired two new staff to 
build out the Asset Management team. One additional hire is in process. Asset 
Management tasks have been done by various teams including Finance, Development 
and Administrative Services. Those tasks will be reassigned to the Asset Management 
Department over the next 3-6 months.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Work in the last three months has included developing property profiles, conducting site 
inspections, submitting project reports to lenders and vendors, and reviewing property 
financials. Additional work has been done on the Shinsei buyout, compliance with our 
homeowners associations,  and with our regulatory agreements at Playa del Aameda 
and Rica Vista. Staff has also been completing Asset Management and LIHTC 
compliance training. The next quarter will focus on the 2024-25 budgets.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  
 
CEQA 
n/a  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Overview Report for the Asset Management Department.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Sept2023 Quarterly Staff Report for Non-LIHTC_Final 



2. Item 10.J - Attachment 2 July-Sept 2023 Fin Rpt for Non-LIHTC Properties_Final 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Vanessa Cooper 
Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 



    

  

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 

From:  
 

Bulbul Biswas Goswami

Date: 
 

February 20, 2024  

Re: Accept the AHA/ AAHC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal Year to 
Date Financial Report through the Month of September 2023. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and the Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation (AAHC) hold a portfolio of affordable housing stock. The 
cumulative unit count is 543 units, of which 47% house seniors and 53% house families. 
Most of the units are supported by Project-Based Voucher and Housing Choice Voucher 
rental subsidy programs and do not have hard debt. 
 
 AAHC's portfolio includes Anne B. Diament Plaza (65 units), Independence Plaza (186 
units), China Clipper Plaza (26 units), Eagle Village (36 units), Parrot Village (50 units), 
Esperanza (120 units), and Scattered Sites - Lincoln Willow (5 units), Stanford House (4 
units), and Pulte Homes (18 units). The total number of units is 510.  
 
AHA's portfolio includes Parrot Gardens (8 units) and Scattered Sites 1-Senior Condos 
(7 units), Mulberry Town Homes (4 units), Paru House (1 unit), Lincoln House (4 units), 
and Sherman House (9 units). The total number of units is 33.
 
Units owned by ICD and other properties with tax credits are reported on in the ICD 
packet.  
 
For the months of July 2023 to September 2023, the property management duties were 
contracted to the FPI Management Company. The resident services were contracted to 
LifeSTEPS. 
 
DISCUSSION
This memo provides an overview of the AHA/ AAHC portfolio asset management fiscal 
year-to-date financial report through the month of September 2023. This report tracks 
performance per the budget and includes achievements, items of note, and upcoming 
events or changes. Please note the properties’ fiscal year end is June 30 2024, and the 



figures used in this report may change and not match the audit.
 
The properties faced some challenges last year including a transfer to a new property 
management. 

 Budgets were carried forward from JSCO to FP with minimal changes. Staff 
expect a full zero-based budget for 2024-25. 

 
Due to the COVID moratorium portfolio has significant tenant delinquencies of
$777,606 in total as of September 30, 2023. Staff and FPI have worked through 
a systematic plan to get tenants on payment and to seek significant assistance. 
However, for many households facing a termination notice, rent cannot be 
collected so the delinquency numbers worsened before getting better.  

 Total Operating Revenue: $3,239,370 was 15% lower than budgeted $3,819,791, 
there were a higher than usual outstanding vacant units that took longer than 
expected to be filled, which resulted in higher vacancy loss costs. Staff and FPI 
are working to reduce the time to lease.  

 
 Rent increases were also not sent in a timely manner for some sites by the prior

property management company JSCO and, as such, the tenant revenue and 
subsidy revenue does not cover the full amount of Gross Potential Rent allowed 
by the affordability agreements. Regular rent increase submission has restarted 
under FPI in the fall and will continue monthly. 

 
 In regards to the Operating Expenses,overall expenses are 16% lower than 

budgeted. The properties were short-staffed for some time, lowering the payroll 
expenses for most properties for this period. 

 
 The NOI overall is 15% lower than the budget. 

 Statements that apply to all properties:
 

 The financials are for three months only. Therefore, annualized numbers are a 
little skewed.  

 Operating Revenue - Includes tenant rent, rental subsidy (HAP), vacancy loss, 
laundry income, and interest on accounts.

 Tenant Account Receivable and Subsidy Receivables. Property Management 
and Resident Services assist residents with applying for assistance and 
repayment agreements.  

 Operating Expense - Includes marketing, administrative, property management 
fees, salaries and benefits, utilities, operating and maintenance, taxes and 
insurance, and resident services.

 Net Operating Income (NOI) - Operating Revenue minus Operating Expense.
Total Net Cash Flow will be distributed in accordance with the loan and 



regulatory agreements.
Occupancy rate isas of September 30, 2023.

 
 Anne B Diament Plaza (65 units)

 Operating Revenue is $382,496, which is 2% ($7,996) lower than budget. 
Occupancy is 98% (1 vacant unit).
Tenant Revenue is $115,003 and Subsidy Revenue is $302,276 vs. budget 
$302,276 and $277,446 respectively. 
Tenant AccountsReceivable is $26,294 and Subsidy Receivable is $7,362.
Operating Expenses are $69,532, which is 58% (113,882) lower than budget due 
to lower payroll and administrative costs as a result of vacant positions and for a 
significant reduction in Operating and maintenance costs. Staff expect this to pick 
up in the fourth quarter as permanent maintenance was hired. 

 Net Operating Income (NOI) is $312,964, which is 38% ($86,686) higher than 
budget, which is mainly due to a 50% drop in Operating Costs as described 
above.  

 Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $0.
 Total Net Cash Flow is $312,964. 

 
 Independence Plaza (186 units)

 Operating Revenue is $772,436, which is 30% ($328,980) lower than budget 
mainly due to not receiving the CIC payment (other income) until January 2024, 
and for a large number in Accounts Receivable.      

 Occupancy is 98% (4 vacant units). 
 Tenant Revenue is $729,100 and Subsidy Revenue is $342,945 vs.Budget 

$446,952 and $302,155 respectively.
Tenant Account Receivable is $102,664 and Subsidy Receivable is $3,455.
Operating Expenses are $299,644 which is 7% ($21,727) lower than budget. 
Net Operating Income (NOI) is $472,792, which is 39% ($307,253) lower than 
the budget.
Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $194,274 and 
$12,033.  Debt Service Coverage Ratio is 2.37.

 Total Net Cash Flow is $266,485. 

 
 China Clipper Plaza (26 units) 

 Operating Revenue is $155,027, which is 2% ($2,405) higher than budgeted 
amount.  

 Occupancy is 100% (0 vacant unit). 
 Tenant Revenue is $51,848 and Subsidy Revenue is $109,858 vs. budget 

$47,598 and $115,287 respectively.  



Tenant Account Receivable is $13,780 and Subsidy Receivable is $1,799.
 Operating Expenses are $47,902, which is 31% ($21,988) lower than budget, 

which is mainly due to missing payments in utilities, and in taxes and insurance.  
 Net Operating Income (NOI) is $317,685, which is 40% ($91,408) higher than the 

budget. 
 Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $0. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $317,685. 

 
 Eagle Village (36 units) 

 Operating Revenue is $279,556, which is 2% ($4,631) lower than budget. 
Occupancy is 94% (2 vacant units).
Tenant Revenue is $70,927 and Subsidy Revenue is $218,021 vs. budget 
$63,827 and $233,070. 
Tenant Account Receivable is $13,796 and Subsidy Receivable is $8,049.

 Operating Expenses are $49,030, which is 49% ($47,526) lower than budget 
mainly due to reduced staffing, and operating & maintenance costs.  

 Net Operating Income (NOI) is $230,526, which is 23% ($42,895) higher than the 
budget. 

 Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $46,848 and 
$6,375.  Debt Service Coverage Ratio is 4.78. 

 Total Net Cash Flow is $177,303. 

 
 Parrot Village (50 units)

 Operating Revenue is $362,752, which is 20% ($91,003) lower than budget due 
to a long standing vacant units. 

 Occupancy is 86% (7 vacant units). 
Tenant Revenue is $94,426 and Subsidy Revenue is $301,124 vs. budget 
$114,837 and $346,128 respectively.  
Tenant Account Receivable is $317,219 and Subsidy Receivable is $824.
Operating Expenses are $174,733, which is 14% ($21,148) higher than budget; 
this is primarily due to increases in repairs and maintenance including planned 
exterior siding repairs and refurbishing vacant units. 
Net Operating Income (NOI) is $188,019, which is 37% ($112,151) lower than 
the budget.  
Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $64,695 and 
$6,375. Debt Service Coverage Ratio is 2.81. 
Total Net Cash Flow is $22,076. 

 
 Parrot Gardens (8 units) 

Operating Revenue is $28,684, which is 46% ($24,339) lower than budget. Most 



of these units were subject to termination and for those units rent was not being 
collected in September.  

 Occupancy is 100% (0 vacant unit). Note: one unit is used for a management 
office and one for staff housing.  
Tenant Revenue is $46,241 and Subsidy Revenue is $25,511 vs. budget 
$17,211 and $40,269. 
Tenant Account Receivable is $23,588 and Subsidy Receivable is $2,043.
Operating Expenses are $16,656, which is 35% ($8.782) lower than budget.
Net Operating Income (NOI) is $12,028, which is 56% ($15,557) lower than the 
budget. 
Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $0.
Total Net Cash Flow is $11,201. 

 
 Esperanza (120 units) 

 Operating Revenue is $991,084, which is 7% ($71,977) lower than budget. 
 Occupancy is 97% (3 vacant units). 
 Tenant Revenue is $253,816 and Subsidy Revenue is $786,898 vs. budget 

$234,771 and $869,556. 
 Tenant Account Receivable is $225,828 and Subsidy Receivable is $9,088.
 Operating Expenses are $282,590, which is 6% ($18,029) lower than budget.
 Net Operating Income (NOI) is $708,494, which is 7% ($53,948) lower than the 

budget. 
 Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are $246,936 and 

$9,150. Debt Service Coverage Ratio is 2.83. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $399,350. 

 
 
 
AHA Scattered Sites (25 units)

 Operating Revenue is $152,731, which is 6% ($9,415) lower than budget.  
 Occupancy is 100% (0 vacant units). 
 Tenant Revenue is $13,059 and Subsidy Revenue is $115,373 vs. budget 

$46,299 and $117,831. 
 Tenant Accounts Receivable is $22,708 and Subsidy Receivable is $0. 
 Operating Expenses are $79,039, which is on budget.  
 Net Operating Income is $73,692, which is 12% ($9,596) lower than budget.
 Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are zero.  
 Total Net Cash Flow is $69,460. 

 
AAHC Scattered Sites (27 units)



Operating Revenue is $114,604, which is 30% ($48,968) lower than budget
mainly due to higher vacancy loss and Tenant Account Receivable. .
Occupancy is 85% (4 vacant units).

 Tenant Revenue is $110,607 and Subsidy Revenue is $66,622 vs. budget 
$76,485 and $92,481. 

 Tenant Account Receivable is $31,729 and Subsidy Receivable is negative $327. 
 Operating Expenses are $71,190, which is 22% (20,617) lower than budget, 

mainly due to lower admin expenses.  
Net Operating Income is $43,414, which is 40% ($28,351) lower than the budget. 
Mandatory hard debt service and reserve deposit requirements are zero. 
Total Net Cash Flow is $16,796. 

  
 
FISCAL IMPACT
The properties are generally cash flowing positively and NOI overall is 15% lower than 
the budget.  Continued efforts to collect tenant receivables and to fill units in a timely 
manner should help with lower-than-expected income going forward. In addition, PBV 
vacancy loss payments for 2023 were not paid until January 2024 so will show an
income in later financials. On the expense side FPI has been directed to replace 
temporary site staff with permanent staff to reduce staff cost overruns. Staff are also 
working with FPI to ensure payables are paid more timely in January a certain amount 
of bad debt was also approved to be written off by the board.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION
Accept the AHA/ AAHC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal Year to Date Financial 
Report through the Month of September 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. AHA/AAHC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal Year to Date Report through 

September 2023
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Bulbul Biswas Goswami, Director of Asset Management 



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 186

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 729,100$          446,952$          282,148$             63% 15,680$          
Subsidy Revenue 342,945$          302,155$          40,790$                13% 7,375$            
Vacancy Loss (31,494)$           (14,908)$           (16,586)$              111% (677)$               
Accounts Receivable (275,351)$        (4,483)$             (270,868)$           NA (5,922)$           
Other Income 7,236$               367,217$          (359,981)$           -98% 156$                
Total Operating Revenue 772,436$          1,096,933$      (324,497)$           -30% 16,612$          

-$                       
Administrative Expenses 51,090$            85,449$            (34,359)$              -40% 1,099$            
Utilities Expense 57,679$            69,422$            (11,743)$              -17% 1,240$            
Operating and Maintenance 119,086$          111,499$          7,587$                  7% 2,561$            
Taxes and Insurance 49,460$            43,665$            5,795$                  13% 1,064$            
Resident Services 22,329$            11,336$            10,993$                97% 480$                
Total Operating Expenses 299,644$          321,371$          (21,727)$              -7% 6,444$            

Net Operating Income 472,792$          775,562$          (302,770)$           -39% 10,168$          

Replacement Reserves 12,033$            
Debt Service 194,274$          

Net Cash Flow 266,485$          569,255$          (302,770)$            -53% 5,731$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.37

Operating Expense PUPY 6,444$               6,911$               
Operating Expense PUPM 2,148$               2,304$               

Number of Units 186
Months In YTD 3

Independence Plaza



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 65

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 115,003$          118,989$          (3,986)$                 -3% 7,077$            
Subsidy Revenue 302,276$          277,446$          24,830$                9% 18,602$          
Vacancy Loss (15,488)$           (7,929)$             (7,559)$                 95% (953)$               
Accounts Receivable (22,202)$           0$                         (22,202)$              NA (1,366)$           
Other Income 2,907$               1,986$               921$                      46% 179$                
Total Operating Revenue 382,496$          390,492$          (7,996)$                  -2% 23,538$          

Administrative Expenses 19,247$            40,784$            21,537$                53% 1,184$            
Utilities Expense 6,654$               38,031$            31,377$                83% 409$                
Operating and Maintenance 23,926$            53,230$            29,304$                55% 1,472$            
Taxes and Insurance 17,101$            24,369$            7,268$                  30% 1,052$            
Resident Services 2,604$               7,800$               5,196$                  67% 160$                
Total Operating Expenses 69,532$             164,214$          94,682$                58% 4,279$             

Net Operating Income 312,964$          226,278$          86,686$                38% 19,259$          

Replacement Reserves N/A N/A
Debt Service N/A N/A

Net Cash Flow 312,964$          226,278$          86,686$                38% 19,259$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio N/A N/A

Operating Expense PUPY 4,279$               10,105$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,426$               3,368$               

Number of Units 65
Months In YTD 3

Anne B. Diament



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 26

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 51,848$            47,598$            4,250$                  9% 7,977$            
Subsidy Revenue 109,858$          115,287$          (5,429)$                 -5% 16,901$          
Vacancy Loss -$                    (3,258)$             3,258$                  -100% -$                 
Accounts Receivable (2,355)$             -$                    (2,355)$                 NA (362)$               
Other Income (4,324)$             (7,005)$             2,681$                  -38% (665)$               
Total Operating Revenue 155,027$          152,622$          2,405$                   2% 23,850$          

Administrative Expenses 13,767$            16,082$            2,315$                  14% 2,118$            
Utilities Expense (70)$                    13,661$            13,731$                101% (11)$                 
Operating and Maintenance 24,842$            20,984$            (3,858)$                 -18% 3,822$            
Taxes and Insurance 8,220$               14,592$            6,372$                  44% 1,265$            
Resident Services 1,142$               4,569$               3,427$                  75% 176$                
Total Operating Expenses 47,902$             69,890$             21,988$                31% 7,370$             

Net Operating Income 317,685$          226,277$          91,408$                40% 48,875$          

Replacement Reserves N/A N/A
Debt Service N/A N/A

Net Cash Flow 317,685$          226,277$          91,408$                40% 48,875$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio N/A N/A

Operating Expense PUPY 7,370$               10,752$            
Operating Expense PUPM 2,457$               3,584$               

Number of Units 26
Months In YTD 3

China Clipper



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 36

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 70,927$            63,827$            (7,100)$                 -11% 7,881$            
Subsidy Revenue 218,021$          233,070$          15,049$                6% 24,225$          
Vacancy Loss (9,779)$             (5,934)$             3,845$                  -65% (1,087)$           
Accounts Receivable (4,157)$             (7,936)$             (3,779)$                 48% (462)$               
Other Income 4,544$               1,160$               (3,384)$                 -292% 505$                
Total Operating Revenue 279,556$          284,187$          4,631$                  2% 31,062$          

Administrative Expenses 22,604$            43,058$            20,454$                48% 2,512$            
Utilities Expense 16,034$            22,891$            6,857$                  30% 1,782$            
Operating and Maintenance 2,885$               17,753$            14,868$                84% 321$                
Taxes and Insurance 7,507$               12,854$            5,347$                  42% 834$                
Resident Services -$                    -$                    -$                       
Total Operating Expenses 49,030$             96,556$             47,526$                49% 5,448$            

Net Operating Income 230,526$          187,631$          (42,895)$              -23% 25,614$          

Replacement Reserves 6,375$               -$                    (6,375)$                 708$                
Debt Service 46,848$            24,782$            (22,066)$              -89% 5,205$            

Net Cash Flow 177,303$          162,849$          (14,454)$              -9% 19,700$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 4.78 7.57

Operating Expense PUPM 454$                   894$                   
Operating Expense PUPY 5,448$               10,728$            

Number of Units 36
Months In YTD 3

Eagle Village



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 50

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 140,835$          114,837$          (25,998)$              -23% 11,267$          
Subsidy Revenue 301,124$          346,128$          45,004$                13% 24,090$          
Vacancy Loss (64,767)$           (9,219)$             55,548$                -603% (5,181)$           
Accounts Receivable (13,670)$           (864)$                  12,806$                NA (1,094)$           
Other Income (770)$                  2,873$               3,643$                  127% (62)$                 
Total Operating Revenue 362,752$          453,755$          91,003$                20% 29,020$          

Administrative Expenses 42,839$            37,343$            (5,496)$                 -15% 3,427$            
Utilities Expense 17,535$            44,438$            26,903$                61% 1,403$            
Operating and Maintenance 89,680$            48,704$            (40,976)$              -84% 7,174$            
Taxes and Insurance 22,612$            17,109$            (5,503)$                 -32% 1,809$            
Resident Services 2,067$               5,991$               3,924$                  65% 165$                
Total Operating Expenses 174,733$          153,585$          (21,148)$              -14% 13,979$          

Net Operating Income 188,019$          300,170$          112,151$             37% 15,042$          

Replacement Reserves 6,375$               6,375$               
Debt Service 64,695$            34,179$            

Capital Expense + Tenant Relocation 94,873$            -$                    

Net Cash Flow 22,076$             259,616$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.81 7.60

Operating Expense PUPM 1,165$               1,024$               
Operating Expense PUPY 13,979$            12,287$            

Number of Units 50
Months In YTD 3

Parrot Village



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 8

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue  $            46,241 17,211$                   (29,030)$             -169% 23,121$         
Subsidy Revenue  $            25,511 40,269$                   14,758$               37% 12,756$         
Vacancy Loss  $                       -   (3,449)$                    (3,449)$                100% -$                 
Accounts Receivable  $          (14,926) (7,158)$                    7,768$                 -109% (7,463)$          
Other Income  $          (28,142) 6,150$                      34,292$               558% (14,071)$        
Total Operating Revenue  $             28,684  $                     53,023 24,339$               46% 14,342$         

Administrative Expenses  $               6,070 5,179$                      (891)$                    -17% 3,035$            
Utilities Expense  $               3,790 9,562$                      5,772$                 60% 1,895$            
Operating and Maintenance  $               4,161 6,806$                      2,645$                 39% 2,081$            
Taxes and Insurance  $               2,139 3,273$                      1,134$                 35% 1,070$            
Resident Services  $                   496 618$                          122$                     20% 248$                
Total Operating Expenses  $             16,656  $                     25,438 8,782$                 35% 8,328$            

Net Operating Income  $             12,028  $                     27,585 15,557$               56% 6,014$            

Replacement Reserves  None 
Debt Service  None 
Capital Expense  $                   827 -$                           (827)$                    414$                

Net Cash Flow  $             11,201  $                     27,585 16,384$               59% 5,601$            

Debt Service Coverage Ratio N/A

Operating Expense PUPM  $                   694  $                      1,060 
Operating Expense PUPY  $               8,328  $                   12,719 

Number of Units 8 (6+1 MGR+1 OFF)
Months In YTD 3

Parrot Gardens



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 120

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 253,816$          234,771$          19,045$                8% 8,461$            
Subsidy Revenue 786,898$          869,556$          (82,658)$              -10% 26,230$          
Vacancy Loss (34,972)$           (33,130)$           (1,842)$                 6% (1,166)$           
Accounts Receivable (2,573)$             (10,906)$           8,333$                  -76% (86)$                 
Other Income (12,085)$           2,770$               (14,855)$              -536% (403)$               
Total Operating Revenue 991,084$          1,063,061$      (71,977)$              -7% 33,036$          

Administrative Expenses 62,552$            68,988$            (6,436)$                 -9% 2,085$            
Utilities Expense 47,691$            79,955$            (32,264)$              -40% 1,590$            
Operating and Maintenance 117,302$          87,214$            30,088$                34% 3,910$            
Taxes and Insurance 48,915$            50,684$            (1,769)$                 -3% 1,631$            
Resident Services 6,130$               13,778$            (7,648)$                 -56% 204$                
Total Operating Expenses 282,590$          300,619$          (18,029)$              -6% 9,420$            

Net Operating Income 708,494$          762,442$          (53,948)$              -7% 23,616$          

Replacement Reserves 9,150$               -$                    9,150$                  305$                
Debt Service 246,936$          173,604$          73,332$                42% 8,231$            
Capital Expense 53,058$            -$                    53,058$                1,769$            

Net Cash Flow 399,350$          588,838$          (189,488)$           -32% 13,312$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.83 4.39 (2)$                          -36%

Operating Expense PUPM 785$                   835$                   (50)$                       -6%
Operating Expense PUPY 9,420$               10,021$            (601)$                     -6%

Number of Units 120
Months In YTD 3

Esperanza Apartments



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 25

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue  $             13,059 46,299$                    33,240$               72% 2,089$            
Subsidy Revenue  $          115,373 117,831$                 2,458$                  2% 18,460$         
Vacancy Loss  $                        -   (3,283)$                     (3,283)$                 100% -$                 
Gain/Loss to Lease  $             22,298 644$                           (21,654)$              NS 3,568$            large amount of vouchers?
Other Income  $               2,001 655$                           (1,346)$                 -205% 320$                
Total operating Revenue  $          152,731  $                  162,146 9,415$                  6% 24,437$         

Administrative Expenses  $             73,451 42,194$                    (31,257)$              -74% 11,752$         
Utilities Expense  $                    854 6,625$                       5,771$                  87% 137$                
Operating and Maintenance  $               1,036 17,528$                    16,492$               94% 166$                
Taxes and Insurance  $               3,698 12,511$                    8,813$                  70% 592$                
Resident Services
Total Operating Expenses  $             79,039  $                     78,858 (181)$                     0% 12,646$         

Net Operating Income  $             73,692  $                     83,288 9,596$                  12% 11,791$         

Replacement Reserves
Debt Service 
Capital Expense  $               4,232 -$                            (4,232)$                 677$                

Net Cash Flow  $             69,460  $                     83,288 13,828$               17% 11,114$         

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Operating Expense PUPM  $               1,054 
Operating Expense PUPY  $             12,646 

Number of Units 25
Months In YTD 3

AHA-Scattered Sites



Income Statement Jul-Sept 
Number of Units 27

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue  $         110,607 76,485$                    34,122$               45% 16,386$         
Subsidy Revenue  $            66,622 92,481$                    (25,859)$             -28% 9,870$            
Vacancy Loss  $          (36,995) (8,448)$                     (28,547)$             338% (5,481)$          
Accounts Receivable  $          (24,935) 2,399$                      (27,334)$             -1139% (3,694)$          
Other Income  $                 (695) 655$                           (1,350)$                -206% (103)$              
Total operating Revenue  $         114,604  $                 163,572 (48,968)$             -30% 16,978$         

Administrative Expenses  $            36,184 54,445$                    (18,261)$             -34% 5,361$            
Utilities Expense  $            17,119 6,200$                      10,919$               176% 2,536$            
Operating and Maintenance  $            10,159 15,890$                    (5,731)$                -36% 1,505$            
Taxes and Insurance  $               7,017 13,219$                    (6,202)$                -47% 1,040$            
Resident Services  $                   711 2,053$                      (1,342)$                -65% 105$                
Total Operating Expenses  $            71,190  $                    91,807 (20,617)$             -22% 10,547$         

Net Operating Income  $            43,414  $                    71,765 (28,351)$             -40% 6,432$            

Replacement Reserves
Debt Service 
Capital Expense  $            26,618 -$                            26,618$               3,943$            carpet and flooring

Appliance replacement
Net Cash Flow  $            16,796  $                    71,765 (54,969)$             -77% 2,488$            Water mitigation

Sounds like a big leak at one of the sites?
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Operating Expense PUPM  $                   879 
Operating Expense PUPY  $            10,547 

Number of Units 27
Months In YTD 3

AAHC-Scattered Sites



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Trevor Jones, Asset Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly LIHTC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal 
Year to Date Financial Report through September 30, 2023.  

BACKGROUND 
The portfolio includes seven Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Partnership 
properties: Breakers at Bayport, Shinsei Gardens, Park Alameda, Jack Capon Villa, 
Littlejohn Commons, Stargell Commons, and Everett Commons. The projects were built 
between 2006 and 2018 with a cumulative unit count of 255 units (80% family, 12% 
senior, and 8% special needs), of which, 50% of the units are supported by a 
combination of various Section 8 rental subsidy programs (Project Based Voucher, 
Housing Choice Voucher, and Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing.) 
   
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) owns all the land with the 
exception of Park Alameda; thus, all partnerships include a land lease, and AHA’s role 
varies from Co-General Partner (Co-GP), General Partner (GP), toSpecial Limited 
Partner (SLP). Island City Development (ICD) is the developer for Rosefield Village, 
Littlejohn Commons and Everett Commons and co-developer for Stargell Commons.  
 
DISCUSSION 
This memo provides an overview of the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
partnership properties’ year- to- date financial report through the month of September 
2023. These properties run on a fiscal year ending December 31st. This report tracks 
performance per the budget and includes achievements, items of note, and upcoming 
events or changes. Please note the figures used in this report may change and not 
match the audit. 
  
Statements that apply to all properties: 
  
Operating Revenue - Includes tenant rent, rental subsidy, vacancy loss, laundry income, 
and interest on accounts. 
Tenant Receivables - Property Management and Resident Services assist residents 
with applying for assistance and repayment agreements. 



Operating Expense - Includes marketing, administrative, property management fees, 
salaries and benefits, utilities, operating and maintenance, taxes and insurance, and 
resident services. 
Net Operating Income (NOI)- Operating Revenue minus Operating Expense 
Total Surplus Cash Flow will be distributed per the waterfall in accordance with the LPA, 
lender, and regulatory agreements. 
  
 
Breakers at Bayport- 459 Neptune Gardens Avenue 
  
Breakers at Bayport is a 52-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development 
for families. Resources for Community Development (RCD) is the General Partner (GP) 
and The Breakers at Bayport L.P. is the Limited Partner (LP). The Housing Authority of 
the City of Alameda (AHA) owns the land. The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
(AHA) provided an original loan of $2,015,000 and has a current balance of $1,408,790, 
that bears no interest and matures in January 2059. John Stewart Company (JSCo) 
provides property management services. Operation Dignity provides resident services. 
The project was placed in service on March 29, 2006.  
 
 Unit matrix: 2Bed- 34 units, 3Bed- 18 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 20 units 
 Income and rent limits: 50%-60% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $509,774, which is 3% ($13,360) higher than budget. 
 Occupancy is 99.9% (1> vacant units). 
 Tenant Revenue is $116,774 and Subsidy Revenue is $445,085. 
 Tenant Accounts Receivable are $59,886. No tenants are currently facing 
termination for nonpayment. This includes residents with balances over 12 
months delinquent. 

 Operating Expenses are $215,474, which is 15% ($37,002) lower than budget 
due to high occupancy, low turnover, and lower than budgeted property 
insurance. 

 Net Operating Income is $294,474, which is 19% ($47,363) higher than budget 
due to consistently high occupancy and lower than budgeted insurance. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $15,500 annually. 
 Mandatory hard debt service is $177,381. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $105,293 which is $47,363 over budget. 
 DSCR is 1.59x. 

  
Shinsei Gardens- 401 Willie Stargell Avenue 
  
Shinsei Gardens is a 39-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development for 
families. RCD is the GP, Operation Dignity is theSLP, and National Equity Fund (NEF) 
is the LP. AHA owns the land, and also holds an Option to exercise the Right of First 
Refusal (ROFR) AHA is in the process of closing the investor Limited Partner buyout in 



February 2024.  JSCo provides property management services. Operation Dignity 
provides resident services. There is a loan of $2,129,336 from AHA/CIC that bears no 
interest and matures on March 23, 2063. The project was placed in service on 
September 03, 2009. 
  
 Unit matrix: 1Bed- 6 units, 2Bed- 18 units, 3Bed- 12 units, 4Bed- 3 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 21 units 
 Income and rent limits: 20%-60% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $667,519, which is 4% ($24,691) lower than budget due to 
Occupancy being lower than budget. 

 Occupancy is 94% (2 vacant units). 
 Tenant Revenue is $294,031 and Subsidy Revenue is $410,898. 
 Tenant Accounts receivable are $3,363. No tenants are currently facing 
termination for non-payment. 

 Operating Expenses are $342,036, which is 5% ($15,857) higher than budget 
due to higher turnover and associated administrative fees. 

 Net Operating Income is $325,036, which is 11% ($40,548) lower than budget 
due to lower than budgeted occupancy and higher turnover. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $23,400 annually. 
 No mandatory hard debt service. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $307,933 which is $40,548 under budget. 
 DSCR is N/A due to no hard loans.  

 
Park Alameda- 2428 Central Avenue 
  
Park Alameda is a 62-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development for 
families. RCD is the managing Co-GP, AHA is the Co-GP, and Union Bank (UB) is the 
LP. AHA holds an Option to exercise the Right of First Refusal (ROFR) beginning in 
January 2025. RCD, the GP, owns both the land and the property. There is a loan of 
$8,600,000 from AHA/CIC that bears no interest and matures September 2068. JSCo 
provides property management services. Operation Dignity provides resident services. 
 The project was placed in service on December 27, 2012. 
  
 Unit matrix: 0Bed- 61 units, 2Bed- 1 unit (manager’ unit) 
 Section 8 PBV: 15 units 
 Income and rent limits: 50%-120% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $575,331, which is 3% ($18,203) lower than budget as a 
result of occupancy falling short of budget. 

 Occupancy is 91% (6 vacant units) 
 Tenant Revenue $382,666 and Subsidy Revenue are $248,755. 
 Tenant Accounts Receivable are $124,640. No tenants are currently facing 
termination for nonpayment. 

 Operating Expenses are $582,277, which is about 26% ($118,782) higher than 



budget.  
 The Administrative and Maintenance Payroll is $38,045 over budget. 
 Elevator maintenance is $8,307 over budget. 
 Flooring costs are $6,444 over budget. 
 A collection loss of $54,964 was accounted for as an expense compared to 
$7,091 budgeted. 

 Net Operating Income is $(6,946), which is 105% ($136,985) lower than budget. 
 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement $31,930 annually. 
 No Mandatory Hard Debt Service. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is ($30,894). 
  

Stargell Commons- 2700 Bette Street 
  
Stargell Commons is a 32-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development 
for families. RCD is the GP, Wells Fargo Bank (WFB) is the LP, and ICD is the SLP. 
AHA provided a loan of $2,000,000 at 3% interest payable through excess/distributable 
cash with a maturity date of December 2072. At this time, no principal payments have 
been made and $238,298 of interest has accrued. AHA holds an Option to exercise the 
Right of First Refusal (ROFR), which can be exercised on or after December 31, 2031. 
JSCo provides property management services. Operation Dignity provides resident 
services. The project was built in May 2017. 
  
 Unit matrix: 1Bed- 5 units, 2Bed- 17 units, 3Bed- 10 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 7 units 
 Income and rent limits: 30%-60% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $452,992, which is 5% ($21,142) higher than budget. 
 Occupancy is 99% (1> vacant unit). 
 Tenant Revenue is $274,584 and Subsidy Revenue is $173,635. 
 Tenant Accounts Receivable are $9,794. No tenants are currently facing 
termination for nonpayment. 

 Operating Expenses are $289,996, which is 3% (7,787) lower than budget due to 
high occupancy and low turnover. 

 Net Operating Income is $162,996, which is 22% ($28,929) higher than budget 
due to consistently high occupancy. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $19,200 annually. 
 Mandatory hard debt service is $69,156. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $79,440 which is $28,929 over budget. 
 DSCR is 2.15x. 

  
Jack Capon Villa- 2216 Lincoln Avenue 
  
Jack Capon Villa is a 19-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development for 
Persons with Developmental Disabilities. Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 



(SAHA) is the managing Co-GP, AHA is the Co-GP, and Bank of America (BofA) is the 
LP. AHA also holds an Option to exercise the Right of First Refusal (ROFR), which can 
be executed a on or after December 31, 2028 AHA has 3 current loans secured by the 
property. The first loan was for $225,000 with an interest rate of 5% and current balance 
of $52,238. The second AHA/CIC loan was for $1,400,000 with an interest rate of 3% 
and current balance of $1,400,000 excluding accrued interest of $331,285. The third 
AHA loan was for $200,000 with an interest rate of 3% and deferred payments until 
2070. SAHA Property Management provides property management services. Housing 
Consortium of East Bay (HCEB) provides resident services. The project was placed in 
service on January 9, 2014. 
  
 Unit matrix: 1Bed- 16 units, 2Bed- 3 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 18 units 
 Income and rent limits: 50% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $316,384 which is 8% ($26,928) lower than budget due to 
higher than budgeted vacancy. 

 Occupancy is 89% (2 vacant units) 
 Tenant Receivables are $110,040 and Subsidy Receivables are $245,154. 
 Operating Expenses are $241,981, which is 20% ($59,752) lower than budget. 
 Total Net Operating Income is $74,403, which is 79% ($59,752) higher than 
budget. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $11,400 annually. 
 Mandatory hard debt service is $21,474. 
 DSCR is 3.07. 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $44,379. 
 The property budgeted aggressively with 1 vacant unit 
and conservatively with operating expenses, including large expenses that were 
not utilized, which explains the positive variance in total net operating income. 
  

Littlejohn Commons- 1301 Buena Vista Avenue 
  
Littlejohn Commons is a 31-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development 
for Seniors. ICD is the GP and NEF is the LP. ICD also holds an Option/ Right of First 
Refusal. FPI Management provides property management services as of January 1, 
2023. LifeSteps provides resident services. The project was placed in service on July 
31, 2018. 
  
 Unit matrix: 1Bed- 30 units, 2Bed- 1 unit 
 Section 8 PBV: 25 units 
 Income and rent limits: 30%-50% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $495,639, which is 0% ($776) higher than budget due to 
high occupancy and a manager unit. 

 Occupancy is 99% (1> vacant unit). 



 Tenant Revenue is $104,661 and Subsidy Revenue is $444,933. 
 Tenant Accounts receivable are $47,220.  
 Operating Expenses are $215,474, which is 15% (37,302,) lower than budget 
due to lower payroll, lower turn costs and maintenance, as well as lower than 
budgeted accrued taxes and insurance. 

 Net Operating Income is $280,465, which is 15% ($36,526) higher than budget 
due to high occupancy and lower than budgeted expenses. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $15,500 annually.  
 Mandatory hard debt service is $177,381 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $91,459 which is $36,526 over budget. 
 DSCR is 1.52x 

  
Everett Commons- 2437 Eagle Avenue 
  
Everett Commons is a 20-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development 
project for families. ICD is the GP and Enterprise is the LP. ICD also holds an Option to 
exercise the  Right of First Refusal (ROFR) effective on or after the end of the 
compliance period in 2033. FPI Management provides property management services 
as of January 1, 2023. LifeSteps provides resident services. The project was placed in 
service on December 17, 2018. 
  
 Unit matrix: 1Bed- 4 units, 2Bed- 11 units, 3Bed- 5 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 12 units 
 VASH PBV: 5 units 
 Income and rent limits: 30%-60% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $420,747, which is 3% ($13,610) higher than budget. 
 Occupancy is 97% (1> vacant unit). 
 Tenant Revenue is $105,534 and Subsidy Revenue is $338,164. 
 Tenant Accounts Receivables are $6,143.  
 Operating Expenses are $177,464, which is 11% (23,013,) lower than budget 
due to lower administrative expenses (auditing and compliance), lower turn costs 
and maintenance, as well as lower than budgeted property insurance. 

 Net Operating Income is $243,283, which is 18% ($36,623) higher than budget 
due to conservative expense budgeting and not having to utilize some large 
anticipated expenses. 

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $12,000 annually. 
 Mandatory hard debt service is $171,117 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $63,166 which is $36,623 over budget. 
 DSCR is 1.37x. 
  

Rosefield- 727 Buena Vista Avenue  
  
Rosefield is a 92-unit Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) development project for 



families. FPI Management provides property management services as of January 1, 
2023. LifeSteps provides resident services. The project was placed in service in 2022. 
Please note 2024 is the first full year of operating so some numbers are skewed by the 
2023 conversion to perm financing.  
  
 Unit matrix: Studio- 7 units, 1Bed- 35 units, 2Bed- 26 units, 3Bed- 23 units 
 Section 8 PBV: 23 units 
 Income and rent limits: 20%-80% AMI 

 Operating Revenue is $1,463,684, which is 1% ($20,357) higher than budget. 
 Occupancy averaged 97% (2 vacant units) over the past nine months. After the 
lease-up Rosefield maintained high occupancy, ending the quarter 95% 
occupied. 

 Tenant Revenue is $933,278 and Subsidy Revenue is $517,492. 
 Tenant Accounts receivable are $212,677. 12 tenants are currently facing 
termination for non-payment.    

 Operating Expenses are $483,271, which is 32% (226,458) lower than budget 
due to the per unit expenses being materially lower than the rest of the portfolio. 
The size of the property and age of construction contribute significantly to the 
lower per unit costs.  Please anticipate expenses to stabilize with the budget in 
2024. 

 Net Operating Income is $799,884, which is 9% ($66,286) higher than budget 
due to per unit operating expenses being $3,284 lower than budget.  

 Replacement Reserve deposit requirement is $55,200 annually. 
 Mandatory hard debt service is $543,519 
 Total Net Cash Flow is $214,965 which is $66,286 over budget. 
 DSCR is 1.4x. 

 
Overall, the portfolio is performing strongly and stabilized. All the assets are able to fulfill 
mandatory hard debt service and deposit reserves with a debt service coverage ratio 
averaging at 2.81, ranging from 1.4 to 4.48. Also, all assets produce surplus cash/ 
residual receipts for distribution. Reserve balances are attached.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the LIHTC Portfolio Asset Management Fiscal Year to Date Financial Report 
through the Month of September 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 



1. Q3 LIHTC Financials 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Trevor Jones, Asset Manager 



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 31

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 116,774$          111,641$          5,133$                  5% 5,023$            
Subsidy Revenue 445,085$          413,941$          31,144$                8% 19,143$          
Vacancy Loss (129)$                  (10,511)$           10,382$                -99% (6)$                    
Accrued Accounts Receivable (32,998)$           -$                    (32,998)$              NA (1,419)$           
Other Income (18,958)$           (18,656)$           (302)$                     2% (815)$               
Total Operating Revenue 509,774$          496,415$          13,359$                3% 21,926$          

Administrative Expenses 84,005$            78,247$            (5,758)$                 -7% 3,613$            
Utilities Expense 30,560$            39,371$            8,811$                  22% 1,314$            
Operating and Maintenance 52,523$            65,823$            13,300$                20% 2,259$            
Taxes and Insurance 32,570$            51,576$            19,006$                37% 1,401$            
Resident Services 15,816$            17,459$            1,643$                  9% 680$                
Total Operating Expenses 215,474$          252,476$          37,002$                15% 9,268$             

Net Operating Income 294,299$          246,936$          47,363$                19% 12,658$          

Replacement Reserves 11,625$            
Debt Service 177,381$          

Net Cash Flow 105,293$          57,930$             47,363$                82% 4,529$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.59 1.33

Operating Expense PUPY 9,268$               10,859$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,030$               1,207$               

Number of Units 31
Months In YTD 9

Breakers at Bayport



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 39

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 294,031$          303,822$          (9,791)$                 -3% 10,052$          
Subsidy Revenue 410,898$          393,939$          16,959$                4% 14,048$          
Vacancy Loss (42,811)$           (9,180)$             (33,631)$              366% (1,464)$           
Other Income 5,401$               3,629$               1,772$                  49% 185$                
Total Operating Revenue 667,519$          692,210$          (24,691)$               -4% 22,821$          

Administrative Expenses 103,116$          97,051$            (6,065)$                 -6% 3,525$            
Utilities Expense 49,802$            52,752$            2,950$                  6% 1,703$            
Operating and Maintenance 109,015$          93,115$            (15,900)$              -17% 3,727$            
Taxes and Insurance 55,616$            57,524$            1,908$                  3% 1,901$            
Resident Services 24,487$            25,737$            1,250$                  5% 837$                
Total Operating Expenses 342,036$          326,179$          (15,857)$               -5% 11,694$          

Net Operating Income 325,483$          366,031$          (40,548)$               -11% 11,128$          

Replacement Reserves 17,550$            
Debt Service None

Net Cash Flow 307,933$          348,481$          (40,548)$               -12% 10,528$          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio None None

Operating Expense PUPY 11,694$            11,151$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,299$               1,239$               

Number of Units 39
Months In YTD 9

Shinsei Gardens



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 62

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 382,666$          334,269$          48,397$                14% 8,229$            
Subsidy Revenue 248,755$          272,520$          (23,765)$              -9% 5,350$            
Vacancy Loss (59,744)$           (15,505)$           (44,239)$              285% (1,285)$           
Other Income 3,654$               2,250$               1,404$                  62% 79$                   
Total Operating Revenue 575,331$          593,534$          (18,203)$               -3% 12,373$          

Administrative Expenses 223,329$          146,247$          (77,082)$              -53% 4,803$            
Utilities Expense 57,923$            66,190$            8,267$                  12% 1,246$            
Operating and Maintenance 162,236$          117,856$          (44,380)$              -38% 3,489$            
Taxes and Insurance 83,734$            82,218$            (1,516)$                 -2% 1,801$            
Resident Services 55,055$            50,984$            (4,071)$                 -8% 1,184$            
Total Operating Expenses 582,277$          463,495$          (118,782)$            -26% 12,522$          

Net Operating Income (6,946)$              130,039$          136,985$              105% (149)$                

Replacement Reserves 23,948$            
Debt Service None

Net Cash Flow (30,894)$           106,092$          (136,985)$            -129% (664)$                

Debt Service Coverage Ratio None None

Operating Expense PUPY 12,522$            9,968$               
Operating Expense PUPM 1,391$               1,108$               

Number of Units 62
Months In YTD 9

Park Alameda



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 32

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 274,584$          260,315$          14,269$                5% 11,441$          
Subsidy Revenue 173,635$          179,219$          (5,584)$                 -3% 7,235$            
Vacancy Loss (2,627)$             (12,031)$           9,404$                  -78% (109)$               
Other Income 7,400$               4,347$               3,053$                  70% 308$                
Total Operating Revenue 452,992$          431,850$          21,142$                5% 18,875$          

Administrative Expenses 90,839$            88,807$            (2,032)$                 -2% 3,785$            
Utilities Expense 42,201$            41,418$            (783)$                     -2% 1,758$            
Operating and Maintenance 70,014$            81,444$            11,430$                14% 2,917$            
Taxes and Insurance 58,458$            55,363$            (3,095)$                 -6% 2,436$            
Resident Services 28,484$            30,751$            2,267$                  7% 1,187$            
Total Operating Expenses 289,996$          297,783$          7,787$                   3% 12,083$          

Net Operating Income 162,996$          134,067$          28,929$                22% 6,792$             

Replacement Reserves 14,400$            
Debt Service 69,156$            

Net Cash Flow 79,440$             50,511$             28,929$                57% 3,310$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.15 1.73

Operating Expense PUPY 12,083$            12,408$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,343$               1,379$               

Number of Units 32
Months In YTD 9

Stargell Commons



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 19

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 110,040$          76,581$            33,459$                44% 7,722$            
Subsidy Revenue 245,154$          276,075$          (30,921)$              -11% 17,204$          
Vacancy Loss (39,514)$           (10,580)$           (28,934)$              273% (2,773)$           
Other Loss/Gain (490)$                  -$                    -$                       0% (34)$                 
Other Income 1,194$               1,236$               (42)$                       -3% 84$                   
Total Operating Revenue 316,384$          343,312$          (26,928)$               -8% 22,202$          

Administrative Expenses 78,784$            78,769$            (15)$                       0% 5,529$            
Utilities Expense 21,062$            27,663$            6,601$                  24% 1,478$            
Operating and Maintenance 72,671$            111,114$          38,443$                35% 5,100$            
Taxes and Insurance 22,229$            30,878$            8,649$                  28% 1,560$            
Resident Services 47,235$            53,309$            6,074$                  11% 3,315$            
Total Operating Expenses 241,981$          301,733$          59,752$                20% 16,981$          

Net Operating Income 74,403$             41,579$             32,824$                79% 5,221$             

Replacement Reserves 8,550$               
Debt Service 21,474$            

Net Cash Flow 44,379$             11,555$             32,824$                284% 3,114$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.07 1.54

Operating Expense PUPY 16,981$            21,174$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,887$               2,353$               

Number of Units 19
Months In YTD 9

Jack Capon Village



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 31

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 104,661$          111,641$          (6,980)$                 -6% 4,502$            
Subsidy Revenue 444,933$          413,941$          30,992$                7% 19,137$          
Vacancy Loss (129)$                  (10,511)$           10,382$                -99% (6)$                    
Accrued Accounts Receivable (34,868)$           -$                    (34,868)$              NA (1,500)$           
Other Income (18,958)$           (18,656)$           (302)$                     2% (815)$               
Total Operating Revenue 495,639$          496,415$          (776)$                      0% 21,318$          

Administrative Expenses 84,005$            78,247$            (5,758)$                 -7% 3,613$            
Utilities Expense 30,560$            39,371$            8,811$                  22% 1,314$            
Operating and Maintenance 52,523$            65,823$            13,300$                20% 2,259$            
Taxes and Insurance 32,270$            51,576$            19,306$                37% 1,388$            
Resident Services 15,816$            17,459$            1,643$                  9% 680$                
Total Operating Expenses 215,174$          252,476$          37,302$                15% 9,255$             

Net Operating Income 280,465$          243,939$          36,526$                15% 12,063$          

Replacement Reserves 11,625$            
Debt Service 177,381$          

Net Cash Flow 91,459$             54,933$             36,526$                66% 3,934$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.52 1.31

Operating Expense PUPY 9,255$               10,859$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,028$               1,207$               

Number of Units 31
Months In YTD 9

Little John



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 20

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 105,534$          94,770$            10,764$                11% 7,036$            
Subsidy Revenue 338,164$          344,151$          (5,987)$                 -2% 22,544$          
Vacancy Loss (12,152)$           (11,704)$           (448)$                     4% (810)$               
Other Gain/Loss 7,017$               -$                    7,017$                  NA 468$                
Other Income (17,816)$           (20,080)$           2,264$                  -11% (1,188)$           
Total Operating Revenue 420,747$          407,137$          13,610$                3% 28,050$          

Administrative Expenses 36,976$            55,850$            18,874$                34% 2,465$            
Utilities Expense 42,136$            31,513$            (10,623)$              -34% 2,809$            
Operating and Maintenance 35,603$            37,168$            1,565$                  4% 2,374$            
Taxes and Insurance 25,750$            38,947$            13,197$                34% 1,717$            
Resident Services 36,999$            36,999$            -$                       0% 2,467$            
Total Operating Expenses 177,464$          200,477$          23,013$                11% 11,831$          

Net Operating Income 243,283$          206,660$          36,623$                18% 16,219$          

Replacement Reserves 9,000$               
Debt Service 171,117$          

Net Cash Flow 63,166$             26,543$             36,623$                138% 4,211$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.37 1.16

Operating Expense PUPY 11,831$            13,365$            
Operating Expense PUPM 1,315$               1,485$               

Number of Units 20
Months In YTD 9

Everett Commons



Income Statement Jan-Sept 
Number of Units 92

Actual Budget Difference ($) Difference (%) PUPY
Rental Revenue 933,278$          693,432$          239,846$             35% 13,526$          
Subsidy Revenue 517,492$          793,764$          (276,272)$           -35% 7,500$            
Vacancy Loss (37,963)$           (26,439)$           (11,524)$              44% (550)$               
Accrued Accounts Receivable (102,857)$        -$                    (102,857)$           NA (1,491)$           
Other Income (26,795)$           (17,430)$           (9,365)$                 54% (388)$               
Total Operating Revenue 1,283,155$      1,443,327$      (160,172)$            -11% 18,596$          

Administrative Expenses 113,232$          189,616$          76,384$                40% 1,641$            
Utilities Expense 134,034$          192,584$          58,550$                30% 1,943$            
Operating and Maintenance 68,531$            85,678$            17,147$                20% 993$                
Taxes and Insurance 97,168$            145,101$          47,933$                33% 1,408$            
Resident Services 70,306$            96,750$            26,444$                27% 1,019$            
Total Operating Expenses 483,271$          709,729$          226,458$              32% 7,004$             

Net Operating Income 799,884$          733,598$          66,286$                9% 11,593$          

Replacement Reserves 41,400$            
Debt Service 543,519$          

Net Cash Flow 214,965$          148,679$          66,286$                45% 3,115$             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.40 1.27

Operating Expense PUPY 7,004$               10,286$            
Operating Expense PUPM 778$                   1,143$               

Number of Units 92
Months In YTD 9

Rosefield



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Louie So, Director of Finance  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Financial Report for the month ended 
December 31, 2023.  

BACKGROUND 
This high-level, Finance and Budget Variance Report covers preliminary unaudited 
financial operating results of July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 activity compared 
to the FY 2024 budget for the same period.  In May 2023, the Housing Authority of the 
City of Alameda (AHA) Board of Commissioners approved a one-year FY 2024 
operating budget for the period covering fiscal year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 
 Although the audited financial statements are on an accrual basis, the month-to-month 
financial statements are on a hybrid accrual and cash basis.  The numbers presented 
are subject to change based on the adjustments from the final audited financial 
statement report by the independent financial auditors, including information that are 
provided in arrears such as the pension calculation from AHA actuaries.  
 
AHA financial reports incorporate the financial activities of the properties which were 
transferred to AHA’s affiliate, Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC).  All 
members of the AHA Board of Commissioners also serve as the Board of Directors of 
AAHC and, due to this common control, the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) has opined that AAHC is a blended component unit of AHA.   
 
Please note that the activity of AHA's affiliate, Island City Development (ICD) and 
related low-income housing tax credit partnerships (which owns Rosefield Village, 
Everett Commons and Littlejohn Commons and is developing the North Housing site), 
are not included in this memorandum.  Financial activity is presented at a separate ICD 
Board meeting.  HUD has opined that ICD is a discretely presented component unit of 
AHA, and presented separately in the audited financial statements of the agency.    
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Overview  
The following Financial Snapshot showcases Net Operating Income (Cash Flow of 



AHA) for the fiscal year to date (July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023). Further 
discussions on the cause of these variances are presented below.   
 

Financial 
Snapshot 

PTD Actual PTD Budget Variance % Variance 

TOTAL 
REVENUE 

$30,681,219 $30,192,682 $488,537 1.62% 

 
LESS: 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

-$26,097,540 -$30,051,313 -$3,953,773 -13.16% 

 
NET 
OPERATING 
INCOME 

$4,583,680 $141,370 $4,442,310 3,142.33 

 
The following Risk Indicator showcases whether AHA has sufficient cash and 
investments to meet its near-term obligations.  Note that these numbers do not include 
additional reserves held by HUD (approximately $3 Million as of December 31, 2023) 
and the expenses only provide trending snapshots of actual expenses are subject to 
change.  There are currently substantial cost savings as the agency have vacant 
budgeted positions but as AHA fills these positions the expectation is that the "Month 
Covered" column be lower. 
 

Performance Indicator Cash and 
Investments 

YTD Expenses / 
12 Months 

Months Covered 

Cash and 
Investments/Total 
HAP (Average of 6 
month Actuals) 

$31,229,401 $3,202,773 9.75 

Cash and 
Investments/Operating 
Expense (Average of 
6 month Actuals) 

$31,229,401 $1,142,854 27.33 

Cash and 
Investments/HAP and 
Operating Expense 
(Average of 6 months) 

$31,229,401 $4,345,627 7.19 

    

 
Furthermore, the leverage ratio AHA Debt ($128,879,472) to AHA Assets 
($267,773,847) percentage of 48% showcases that AHA is lowly leveraged. 
 Additionally, some of the AHA debt is internal debt (i.e. seller note from the AHA to 



AAHC property transfers).  During the period reported, AHA has received additional 
redevelopment loan funding from Capital Impact Partners for The Poplar (formerly 
known as Tilden Commons and AUSD Land) of approximately $2.4 Million. 
 
Third Party Management  
AHA Finance and FPI Accounting continues to work closely for reporting and staff 
continues to monitor for critical invoices to be paid on time (mortgages, insurance, 
vendors etc.).  Additionally, AHA Finance staff have access to view FPI bank account 
activity online, and FPI Yardi financial statement online access to view accounting and 
ledger transactions in real time.  Monthly financial packages are received approximately 
15 days after the month end of our properties. 
 
Operations Budget – Revenue 
Year-to-date - Rental income (Total Tenant Revenue) of $6,873,527 is predominantly 
made up of Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) received for AHA/AAHC units and 
tenant rents received for these properties. Please note that the tax increment subsidy 
for Independence Plaza is received as two lump sum from the City of Alameda and 
recognized on a monthly prorated basis on the financial statements for budget purposes 
(accrual basis).  As of December 2023, this tax increment has not been received but is 
expected to be received in January 2024.  The increment has been accrued as of 
December 2023.  The tenant portion of rents received is higher than budget by 
$328,690 (14.21%), with vacancies higher than budget by $170,859 (79.66%), offset by 
a lower HAP subsidy received of $112,479 (2.36%).  Staff will continue to monitor 
tenant and HAP income closely, and a reconciliation effort continues to be in progress 
for all properties under FPI's management.  Additional tenant funding from the 
emergency rental assistance payment program was also received for the properties.   
 
Other Grants (7080000) is higher than budgeted as AHA received the Alameda Unified 
School District Recognized Obligation Payments of $1,299,231.  This is a one time 
payment for this period to date reporting. 
 
Total Other Income and Restricted Income is higher than budget by $84,115 (13.28%). 
 Interest earned from CAMP and LAIF investments are higher than budgeted due to a 
rising rate environment, and AHA, as soft lender to LIHTC and other affordable housing 
projects, has received interest payments from properties' excess cash flow.  Funds were 
spun out of CAMP for Rosefield Village permanent loan conversion in September 2023, 
but due to delays in acquisitions and low-income housing tax credit project partnership 
closings, more funds were retained with AHA thus generating a higher return. 
 
Expenses 
Total operating expenses, including HAP, are substantially lower period-to-date by 
$3,953,773.  Aside from HAP (discussed in the following paragraph), this is mainly due 
to lower paid out salary and benefit expenses, which are under budget due to vacant 
positions (e.g. unfilled openings, resignation, retirement or long-term leaves), and 
includes cost savings due to budgeted travel not heavily utilized in the first 3 months of 
the fiscal year, offset by higher maintenance costs in the properties due to deferred 



maintenance and certain costs that were planned for to be reclassified as capital costs 
on the balance sheet.  Please see Monthly Overview Report Executive Department for 
an overview of active recruitment. Staff expects these operating expenses to increase 
as AHA becomes more staffed, with multiple positions filled, including the Director of 
Asset Management and Asset Manager in the month of November 2023, and various 
staff joining AHA in calendar year 2024 (Director of Property Operations). 
 
Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Pass-through 
The Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) pass-through includes all the Housing Choice 
Voucher/Section 8, Shelter Plus, and Bessie Coleman ("SRO") programs.  Year-to-date 
HAP revenue (8010000 HUD Operating Grants) is below budget by $135,374 (0.72% 
below budget).  It is expected that as AHA completes lease up from the wait list and 
increases utilization, additional funding from HUD to pass-through for HAP payments 
will occur.  Finance staff continues to make progress on $382,818 (Account 9700800 
Port-In AR Billings) for Port-In billings from other public housing authorities.  This 
amount is subject to change due to net Port-Outs.  Port-In billing collections was not 
budgeted in the FY 2024 budget process as it’s dependent on other housing authorities 
and participant portability.  AHA was allotted 10 stability vouchers from HUD, and this is 
pending disbursements to Alameda landlords. 
 
Statement of Net Position 
AHA and its legal affiliates has adequate cash resources for operations and reserves. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, AHA, AAHC and its affiliates have $11.3 Million in cash, and 
$19.9 Million held in Local Area Investment Trust Fund ("LAIF") and California Asset 
Management Program ("CAMP") investments.  Please see below to showcase a 
breakdown of AHA’s cash position and restricted and unrestricted cash breakout. 
 Please refer to the separate Investment Memorandum which showcases the 
statements of the December 2023 LAIF and CAMP investments presented to the Board 
of Commissioners in a separate memorandum this month which showcases withdrawal 
of investment to cash. 
  

I) Cash and Cash Equivalents Position 

 

Cash $11,307,551 

LAIF (Local Area Investment Fund) $12,081,330 

CAMP (California Asset Management Program) $7,840,520 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $31,229,401 

  

II) Restricted and Unrestricted Cash and Equivalents Breakout 



 

Restricted Property Funds (Security Deposit, Replacement 
Reserve, Escrow Deposits, etc.) 

$1,951,117 

Restricted Federalized Funds (Section 8, Family Self 
Sufficiency, etc.) 

$1,032,004 

Restricted Cash - Board of Commissioners pursuant to the 
Reserves Policy 

$28,246,280 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $31,229,401 

 
In May 2022, the Reserves Policy was approved by the Board of Commissioners on the 
medium term plan to maintain adequate operating and HAP reserves and also for 
acquisition and development purposes.  This Reserves Policy is updated periodically 
and will be brought back to the Board of Commissioners. 
 
OTHER ISSUES IMPACTING FINANCE DEPARTMENT  
 
Administrative and Staffing 
The satellite office's lease has been extended through March 2025, which currently 
houses the finance and asset management departments.  AHA staff have begun 
negotiations on potentially extending the office lease beyond March 2025. 
  
The Finance Department is fully staffed.  The Development Accounting Officer was 
successfully recruited and started with AHA in July 2023.  Nan McKay and Associates, 
AHA's PHA Financial Consultants, continues to provide limited consulting services, 
including HUD's monthly Voucher Management System ("VMS") report submittal and 
support of the annual unaudited Financial Data Schedule ("FDS").  Nan McKay's 
extended contract expires in March 2024, which is the maximum allowed per HUD 
regulations of 5 years.  In December 2023, a request for proposal has been published in 
anticipation of the need for a PHA financial consultant that supports both Housing 
Programs Department and Finance, as well as any adhoc reporting needs.  Additionally, 
a temporary financial consultant from Robert Half International and a separate financial 
consultant are providing assistance with reconciliation efforts and financial review 
support.  The updated contracts and amendments to existing contracts will be executed 
in calendar Q1 2024.  Please refer to the administrative department memo for more 
information. 
 
An accounting specialist attended the NAHRO conference training in January 2024. 
 
Alameda Housing Authority Audit and Tax 
Novogradac and Company (AHA's CPA firm) has started FY 2023 audit work, and 
anticipates financial statement finalization no later than March 2024.  The draft audited 
financial statements and footnotes will be brought to the Board of Commissioners in the 
March 2024 meeting.  AHA is not required to file an entity tax return. 



 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Tax 
AAHC's financial information is consolidated with AHA, and therefore there is no 
separate audited financial statements.  The AAHC tax return will be filed in May 2024 by 
the extended tax filing deadline. 
 
Island City Development Audit and Tax 
AHA is working with the CPA firm Holthouse, Carlin & Van Tright LLP ("HCVT") for audit 
work of Island City Development and the three low-income housing tax credit (LIHTC) 
project partnerships (Sherman and Buena Vista, L.P. and Everett and Eagle, L.P., and 
Constitution & Eagle, L.P. the “LPs”).  
 
ICD is under a separate contract with Novogradac & Company LLP (San Francisco 
Office) as it relates to North Housing Block A and the upcoming low-income housing tax 
credit syndication.  This includes 3 low-income housing tax credit partnerships, including 
agreed-upon procedures reports, audited financial statements, tax returns and cost 
certifications.   
 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
AHA was granted an extension of submission of the unaudited financial data summary 
("FDS") by HUD until October 31, 2023, when it is generally due August 2023.  The 
request was due to the FPI property management transition, accounting standards 
implementation and Moving-To-Work (MTW) implementation.  HUD rejected the 
submission due to a minor presentation request for MTW purposes, and AHA staff 
resubmitted the FDS to HUD on November 15, 2023.  HUD has since approved the 
unaudited financial data submission. 
 
Finance staff continues to have discussions with HUD for MTW financial reporting. 
 Additionally, Finance staff will be reporting on boutique programs to HUD (i.e. SRO 
Bessie Coleman) and an analysis of HUD held reserves to request disbursement of 
cash due to MTW flexibility (previously approved by the Board of Commissioners). 
 
HUD financial auditors will be onsite March 2024 to conduct reporting audit procedures. 
  
 
Unfunded Pension Liabilities  
Although it is expected that the unfunded accrued pension liability will be fully paid 
within the next 15 years as projected by the soft fresh start mechanism, this is based on 
the assumption that the investment assets held at CalPERS as well as funding of the 
liabilities continue as projected.  In July 2022, CalPERS has stated that there is a 
preliminary negative 6.1% net return on investments for the 12-month period that ended 
June 30, 2022, and a preliminary positive 5.8% investment return for the 12-month 
period that ended June 30, 2023.   
 
Finance staff will return to the Board of Commissioners to present the 2023 actuarial 
reports in the annual audited financial statements no later than the 1st calendar year 



quarter of 2024.  As previously presented to the Board of Commissioners, this will be 
reviewed on an annual basis within a 90%-110% guardrail and any substantial deviation 
will be reviewed and presented. 
 
Budget 
A detailed budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 was brought to 
the Board of Commissioners at the May 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting and 
was approved by both AHA and AAHC boards.  The fiscal year July 1, 2024 through 
June 30, 2025 budget review season with internal staff started in January 2024.  AHA 
staff anticipates to bring the budget to the Board on or around May 2024. 
 
Banking Activities 
There were no new accounts or closures during this period.  It is anticipated that new 
bank accounts for newly formed entities (e.g. ICD Shinsei, LLC) will be created this 
month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  This is for reporting purposes only.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Financial Report for the month ended December 31, 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. EXHIBIT A - DECEMBER 2023 BALANCE SHEET 
2. EXHIBIT A - JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2023 PTD FISCAL YEAR 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Louie So 
Louie So, Director of Finance 



Current Balance
1000000 ASSETS
1100000 CURRENT ASSETS
1101000 CASH
1110010 Cash Unrestricted 7,264,427
1110012 Cash Reserve for Building 266,960
1110018 Cash Operating Checking with 3rd Party 1,120,633
1110019 Petty Cash with 3rd Party 3,500
1110020 Cash Petty cash 1,250
1110021 Cash Benefit Account 4,549
1110030 Cash FSS 102,490
1110040 Cash Replacement Reserve Bldg 220,000
1130010 Cash Restricted Other 37,096
1130030 Cash Restricted Sec Dep 27,327
1140050 Cash Tenant Security Deposits with 3rd Party 475,115
1199000 TOTAL CASH 9,523,347
1200000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
1240010 Accounts Receivable Government 3,246,944
1240070 Accounts Receivable HUD 7,698
1250010 Accounts Receivable Other 111,296
1250020 Accounts Receivable Owners 319,904
1250050 Accounts Receivable 3rd Party Management 30,571
1255000 Subsidy Suspense Receivable 8,087
1260000 Accounts Receivable Tenant 456,599
1260050 Accounts Receivable Tenant Rent with 3rd Party 699,500
1261000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Dwelling Rent (454,125)
1280000 Fraud Recovery 59,387
1281000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Fraud (58,661)
1290000 Accrued Interest Receivable (1)
1299000 TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 4,427,199
1300000 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES
1310000 Investments(LAIF) Unrestricted 10,845,848
1320010 Investments Other 202
1320020 Investments(LAIF) (Restricted) FSS Escrow 92
1320030 Investments(LAIF) Building Reserve 1,105,524
1320040 Investments(LAIF) Equipment Reserve 128,205
1350000 Investments Restricted 0
1350010 Investment(LAIF) Restricted (Jack Capon Villa Trust) 1,459
1350031 Investments CAMP 7,840,520
1350100 Mortgage Receivable 114,919,193
1350103 Mortgage Receivable Jack Capon L. P. 25,431
1350105 Loan Receivable Security Deposit Loan 106,588
1350106 Loan Receivable ICD 20,163,568
1350107 Loan Receivable RCD/Stargell/Tri Pointe 2,000,000

Balance Sheet
Period = Dec 2023
Book = Accrual



Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Dec 2023
Book = Accrual

1350109 Loan Receivable Section 8 1,790,000
1360000 TOTAL INVESTEMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES 158,926,631
1400000 PREPAID EXPENSES
1420010 Prepaid Insurance Property 17,333
1420040 Prepaid Insurance Worker Comp (6,261)
1420050 Prepaid Other 47,193
1420051 Prepaid Rent 5,813
1420070 Escrow Deposits Property 363,350
1420095 Prepaid Expense Management Company 276,161
1430010 Replacement Reserve NorthMarq Loan 1,420,854
1440099 TOTAL PREPAID EXPENSES 2,124,443
1440105 INTERPROGRAM
1440110 Interprogram (Due From) 4,906,960
1440111 Interprogram Due From Sherman St FACSA 33,925
1440899 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 4,940,885
1500000 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 179,942,506
1590000 LONG TERM ASSETS
1600000 FIXED ASSETS
1609999 LAND AND BUILDINGS
1610000 Land 60,726,239
1620030 Buildings 36,317,895
1620031 Buildings Improvements 265,752
1620060 Construction In Progress 29,098
1629000 TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 97,338,984
1630040 Furniture and Equipment Dwelling 307,170
1630041 Furniture and Equipment Other 150,762
1650000 Leasehold Improvements 14,941,851
1660030 Accumulated Deprecation (34,375,207)
1660060 Accumulated Depreciation 3rd Party (12,612)
1699000 TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 78,350,948
1700000 ALL OTHER ASSETS
1740000 Other Asset 1,481,768
1770000 TOTAL ALL OTHER ASSETS 1,481,768
1800000 DEFERRED OUTFLOW
1800200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 2,168,053
1890000 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW 2,168,053
1900000 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
1900020 CIP Building Improvements 2,117,183
1900030 CIP Land Improvements 3,599
1900040 CIP Acquisition Legal 56,986
1900045 CIP Acquisition Title & Escrow Fee 8,239
1900050 CIP Appraisal (Land or Property) 11,000
1900060 CIP Demolition & Remediation 3,000



Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Dec 2023
Book = Accrual

1900070 CIP Others Acquisition Costs 828
1900100 CIP On Site Improvement 914,941
1900101 CIP GC Gen Requirements/OH/Profit 1,747,802
1900120 CIP Relocation cost Perm 918
1900125 CIP Relocation cost Temp 2,006
1900200 CIP Admin Expenses(including postage & advertising) 1,092
1900210 CIP Architectural & Engineering Fees 204,421
1900216 CIP Survey Fees 52,268
1900230 CIP Professional Services (Other) 103,001
1900235 CIP Project Administration 96
1900250 CIP Costs of Insurance 11,538
1900270 CIP Financing Cost Inspection Fees 89,951
1900280 CIP Insurance Costs During Construction 28,527
1900290 CIP Organization Legal 6,133
1900300 CIP Construction Loan Legal 95,544
1900315 CIP Construction Loan Fees 10,000
1900335 CIP Permanent Loan Fees 186,000
1900370 CIP Syndication Consultant 9,040
1900400 CIP TCAC Fee (Application,Reservation,Admin Fee, Deposit) 1,220
1900409 CIP Bond Other Fees 2,500
1900410 CIP Environmental Testing & Reports 84,173
1900420 CIP Permit & Fees (plan'g,build'g,public work,school dist) 51,593
1900430 CIP Utilities Fees 7,215
1900440 CIP Marketing Cost 13,759
1900460 CIP Market Study 6,000
1919999 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 5,830,572
1929999 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 87,831,341
1999999 TOTAL ASSETS 267,773,847
3000000 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
3005000 LIABILITIES
3100000 CURRENT LIABILITIES
3100500 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
3120010 Accounts Payable<= 90 Days 24,756
3120011 Accounts Payable CALPERS (employee portion) 549
3120013 Accounts Payable 457b Plan (employee portion) (2,400)
3120014 Accounts Payable Garnishment (employee portion) (129)
3120015 Accounts Payable Vision Insurance (employee portion) 607
3120016 Accounts Payable Life Insurance (employee portion) (792)
3120018 Accounts Payable PARS retirement (employee portion) (823)
3120019 Accounts Payable Flexible Spending Account(employee portion) 773
3120021 Employees Cobra (558)
3120022 Accounts Payable PERS 1959 Surv(Employee Portion) 41
3120023 Accounts Payable FSA Transit Plan 488



Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Dec 2023
Book = Accrual

3120024 Accounts Payable FSS 96,583
3120027 Accounts Payable Roth IRA 2,400
3120029 Accounts Payable 3rd Party Management Company 42,474
3120040 Accrued Compensated Absences Current Portion 172,149
3120070 Accrued Payables 228,684
3120075 Accrued Accounts Payable 3rd Party Management 252,386
3330100 Tenants Rents Payable 9,500
3339000 TOTAL ACCOUNT PAYABLE 826,689
3400000 SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD
3410010 Tenant Security Deposits 46,792
3410015 Tenant Security Deposits held with 3rd Party Management 462,465
3410999 Security Deposit Refund (1,221)
3419000 TOTAL SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD 508,037
3419900 OTHER LIABILITIES
3420000 Prepay Tenant Rent 44,174
3421000 Prepay Tenant Rent 3rd Party Management 58,342
3423000 Subsidy Suspense Clearing 1,312
3425000 Unearned Revenue 1,522,285
3430000 Current Portion of Long Term Debt Capital Projects 12,408,141
3440000 Current Portion of Long Term Debt Operating Borrowing 147,557
3449000 TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 14,181,811
3470000 INTERPROGRAM
3470050 Interprogram (Due to) 4,862,057
3471000 Due To/Due From Suspense Account (5,978)
3480000 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 4,856,079
3499000 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,372,616
3500000 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
3510100 Mortgage Loan Payable 25,439,419
3510130 Interest Payable City of Alameda Loan 1,173,889
3510140 Home Fund Loan #1 209,461
3510143 $3.6M Housing Authority Loan Payable 78,851,473
3510150 Housing Community Dev. Loan 916,400
3510157 Loan Payable Esperanza 1,790,000
3510160 Home Fund Loan #2 282,700
3540000 Accrued Compensated Absences Noncurrent 127,239
3570000 OPEB Liability (128,123)
3580000 Pension Liability (155,602)
3599000 TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 108,506,856
3999000 TOTAL LIABILITIES 128,879,472
4000000 Equity/Net Assets
4000001 EQUITY
4000100 DEFERRED INFLOW
4001000 Deferred Inflow of Resources 17,681,150



Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Dec 2023
Book = Accrual

4900000 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW 17,681,150
4999999 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
5010000 Net Investment in Capital Assets 24,337,632
5090000 Unrestricted 94,608,296
5120000 Unrestricted 2,265,986
5120010 Net Restricted Assets 1,311
5950000 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 121,213,224
5999900 TOTAL EQUITY 138,894,375
6000000 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 267,773,847



PT
D
Ac

tu
al

PT
D
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

%
Va

r
69

99
99

0
IN
CO

M
E

70
00

00
0
RE

VE
N
U
E

70
20

00
0
TE
N
AN

T
RE

VE
N
U
E

70
30

00
0
Te

na
nt

Re
nt
al
Re

ve
nu

e
2,
64

2,
22

3
2,
31

3,
53

3
32

8,
69

0
14

.2
1

70
30

04
0
La
te

Ch
ar
ge

s
8,
32

5
0

8,
32

5
N
/A

70
30

05
0
M
is
ce
lla
ne

ou
s
O
th
er

Ch
ar
ge
s

9,
78

6
0

9,
78

6
N
/A

70
30

06
0
Ta
x
In
cr
em

en
tP

ay
m
en

ts
fr
om

th
e
Ci
ty

of
Al
am

ed
a
(R
ec
ei
ve
d
in

Ja
nu

ar
y
20

24
an

d
ac
cr
ue

d
fo
rD

ec
em

be
r2

02
3)

1,
44

3,
49

0
1,
44

3,
48

8
2

0.
00

70
30

10
0
Te

na
nt

H
AP

Su
bs
id
y

4,
65

0,
81

1
4,
76

3,
29

0
11

2,
47

9
2.
36

70
30

11
0
Va

ca
nc
y
Lo
ss

38
5,
33

4
21

4,
47

4
17

0,
85

9
79

.6
6

70
30

12
0
Re

nt
Fr
ee

U
ni
t(
Re

cl
as
si
fie

d
as

a
re
du

ct
io
n
in

in
co
m
e
se
pa

ra
te
ly
)

11
1,
87

4
0

11
1,
87

4
N
/A

70
30

30
0
Co

m
m
er
ci
al
Re

nt
s

0
17

,0
94

17
,0
94

10
0.
00

70
40

00
0
O
th
er

Te
na

nt
Re

ve
nu

e
59

,5
90

18
,7
82

40
,8
08

21
7.
27

70
50

00
0
TO

TA
L
TE
N
AN

T
RE

VE
N
U
E

8,
31

7,
01

7
8,
34

1,
71

2
24

,6
96

0.
30

70
60

00
0
FE
D
ER

AL
G
RA

N
TS

70
60

06
0
Sh

el
te
rP

lu
s
Ca

re
Re

ve
nu

e
23

4,
82

2
23

0,
09

3
4,
72

9
2.
06

70
69

00
0
TO

TA
L
FE
D
ER

AL
G
RA

N
TS

23
4,
82

2
23

0,
09

3
4,
72

9
2.
06

70
79

00
0
O
TH

ER
G
RA

N
TS

70
80

00
0
O
th
er

G
ov

er
nm

en
tG

ra
nt
s
(R
ec
ei
ve
d
fo
rT

he
Po

pl
ar

in
on

e
pa

ym
en

t,
bu

dg
et
ed

m
on

th
ly
)

1,
29

9,
23

1
79

0,
40

0
50

8,
83

1
64

.3
8

70
89

00
0
TO

TA
L
O
TH

ER
G
RA

N
TS

1,
29

9,
23

1
79

0,
40

0
50

8,
83

1
64

.3
8

71
00

00
0
O
TH

ER
IN
CO

M
E

71
10

01
0
In
ve
st
m
en

tI
nc
om

e
U
nr
es
tr
ic
te
d

96
,9
42

10
0,
00

0
3,
05

8
3.
06

71
10

01
1
In
te
re
st
In
co
m
e
(H
ig
he

rt
ha

n
ex
pe

ct
ed

du
e
to

de
la
y
in

de
pl
oy

m
en

to
ff
un

ds
fo
rd

ev
el
op

m
en

tc
lo
si
ng

s)
28

9,
89

4
16

2,
50

0
12

7,
39

4
78

.4
0

71
10

02
0
In
te
re
st
on

Eq
ui
p.

Re
se
rv
e

1,
14

6
0

1,
14

6
N
/A

71
10

06
0
In
te
re
st

Re
pl
ac
em

en
tR

es
er
ve

9,
88

0
0

9,
88

0
N
/A

71
10

07
0
O
th
er

In
co
m
e

0
47

,7
89

47
,7
89

10
0.
00

71
10

07
5
La
un

dr
y
Co

m
m
is
si
on

35
7,
42

3
7,
45

8
10

0.
47

71
10

08
2
La
nd

Fe
e/
G
ro
un

d
Le
as
e
(P
re
pa

id
G
ro
un

d
Le
as
e
Re

co
gn

iti
on

O
nl
y
Re

co
rd
ed

O
nc
e
An

nu
al
ly
)

2,
68

2
11

5,
58

3
11

2,
90

1
97

.6
8

71
10

09
0
O
th
er

M
is
ce
lla
ne

ou
s
Re

ve
nu

e
1,
75

0
0

1,
75

0
N
/A

71
10

09
2
Pr
of
es
si
on

al
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
(A
cc
el
er
at
ed

Pa
ym

en
to

f$
30

0,
00

0
fr
om

Is
la
nd

Ci
ty

D
ev
el
op

m
en

t;
Pe

nd
in
g

D
ev
el
op

m
en

tF
ee

Re
ce
ip
ts
)

30
0,
00

0
20

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
50

.0
0

71
40

00
0
Fr
au

d
Re

co
ve
ry

26
0

26
N
/A

71
50

03
0
M
is
ce
lla
ne

ou
s
O
th
er

Re
ve
nu

e
1,
96

0
0

1,
96

0
N
/A

71
50

04
0
G
ai
n/
Lo
ss

on
Sa
le
of

Fi
xe
d
As

se
ts

9,
09

0
0

9,
09

0
N
/A

71
50

07
0
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
e

4,
07

5
0

4,
07

5
N
/A

71
59

00
0
TO

TA
L
O
TH

ER
IN
CO

M
E

71
7,
41

0
63

3,
29

5
84

,1
15

13
.2
8

80
00

00
0
H
U
D
G
RA

N
T

80
10

00
0
H
U
D
O
pe

ra
tin

g
G
ra
nt
s

18
,7
60

,3
76

18
,8
95

,7
50

13
5,
37

4
0.
72

80
20

00
0
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
es

fr
om

H
U
D

1,
33

6,
34

1
1,
21

8,
48

3
11

7,
85

8
9.
67

Bu
dg

et
Co

m
pa

ris
on

(w
ith

PT
D
)

Pe
rio

d
=
Ju
l2
02

3
D
ec

20
23

Bo
ok

=
Ac

cr
ua

l



PT
D
Ac

tu
al

PT
D
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

%
Va

r

Bu
dg

et
Co

m
pa

ris
on

(w
ith

PT
D
)

Pe
rio

d
=
Ju
l2
02

3
D
ec

20
23

Bo
ok

=
Ac

cr
ua

l

80
20

05
0
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
e
Ea

rn
ed

(F
ee

s
br
ok

en
ou

tb
el
ow

)
0

82
,9
50

82
,9
50

10
0.
00

80
20

11
0
PO

RT
In

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
es

19
,4
27

0
19

,4
27

N
/A

80
30

00
0
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
es

Pa
id
(P
O
RT

O
ut
s)

13
,0
60

0
13

,0
60

N
/A

81
00

10
2
EH

V
Pl
ac
em

en
tF

ee
1,
91

6
0

1,
91

6
N
/A

81
00

10
3
EH

V
Se
rv
ic
es

Fe
e

7,
74

0
0

7,
74

0
N
/A

81
00

12
0
TO

TA
L
H
U
D
G
RA

N
T
(P
as
st
hr
ou

gh
H
U
D
G
ra
nt
s
an

d
ne

ts
ou

tw
ith

H
AP

D
is
bu

rs
em

en
ts
)

20
,1
12

,7
41

20
,1
97

,1
82

84
,4
41

0.
42

89
99

00
0
TO

TA
L
RE

VE
N
U
E

30
,6
81

,2
19

30
,1
92

,6
82

48
8,
53

7
1.
62

90
00

00
0
EX

PE
N
SE
S

90
00

90
0
O
PE

RA
TI
N
G
EX

PE
N
SE
S

91
00

00
0
AD

M
IN
IS
TR

AT
IV
E

91
10

01
0
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Sa
la
rie

s
(V
ac
an

ci
es

in
bu

dg
et
ed

po
si
tio

ns
)

2,
62

9,
39

1
4,
45

5,
68

7
1,
82

6,
29

6
40

.9
9

91
10

02
0
Te

m
po

ra
ry

H
el
p

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e

10
5,
56

2
15

4,
44

0
48

,8
78

31
.6
5

91
20

00
0
Au

di
tin

g
Fe
es

(A
ud

it
Ex
pe

ct
ed

to
be

co
m
pl
et
e
no

la
te
rt
ha

n
M
ar
ch

20
24

,s
ub

st
an

tia
lb

ill
in
gs

ex
pe

ct
ed

Ja
nu

ar
y

th
ro
ug

h
M
ar
ch

20
24

)
2,
50

0
27

,5
00

25
,0
00

90
.9
1

91
30

00
0
O
ut
si
de

M
an

ag
em

en
tF

ee
s

16
2,
64

2
15

9,
64

2
3,
00

0
1.
88

91
50

01
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

M
ed

ic
al
/D

en
ta
l

37
1,
00

4
85

4,
16

2
48

3,
15

8
56

.5
7

91
50

02
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

PE
RS

/P
AR

S
25

4,
46

3
32

1,
25

7
66

,7
94

20
.7
9

91
50

03
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

FI
CA

37
,9
19

53
,8
77

15
,9
58

29
.6
2

91
50

04
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

SU
I

1,
59

7
7,
80

9
6,
21

1
79

.5
5

91
50

06
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

Li
fe
/L
TD

17
,8
99

19
,6
86

1,
78

7
9.
08

91
50

09
0
Ad

m
in

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
W
C

43
,3
06

59
,0
05

15
,7
00

26
.6
1

91
60

01
0
O
ffi
ce

Su
pp

lie
s/
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

38
,1
17

35
,0
00

3,
11

7
8.
91

91
60

03
0
D
ue

s
&
Su

bs
cr
ip
tio

ns
Pu

bl
ic
at
io
ns

60
0

2,
37

5
1,
77

5
74

.7
4

91
60

04
0
Po

st
ag
e

7,
97

5
5,
74

0
2,
23

6
38

.9
5

91
60

05
0
Te

le
ph

on
e

16
,5
08

0
16

,5
08

N
/A

91
60

06
0
Ba

nk
Ch

ar
ge
s
an

d
Ch

ec
k
Su

pp
lie
s

3,
86

0
15

,0
00

11
,1
40

74
.2
6

91
60

07
0
Co

m
m
is
si
on

er
s
M
ee

tin
g
Ex
pe

ns
e

1,
75

2
69

3
1,
05

9
15

2.
91

91
60

08
0
St
at
io
ne

ry
En

ve
lo
pe

sa
nd

Bu
si
ne

ss
Ca

rd
s

25
9

49
8

23
9

47
.9
6

91
60

09
0
Fo

rm
sa

nd
Co

pi
es
/P
rin

tin
g

9,
46

5
25

,0
00

15
,5
35

62
.1
4

91
60

10
0
Cl
as
si
fie

d
Ad

s
an

d
Pu

bl
ic
N
ot
ic
es
/o
ut
re
ac
h
m
at
er
ia
l

64
,8
48

50
,0
00

14
,8
48

29
.7
0

91
60

11
0
Le
ga
lE
xp
en

se
(T
hi
s
w
ill
be

ca
ug

ht
up

to
bu

dg
et

in
20

24
)

11
4,
77

0
30

0,
00

0
18

5,
23

0
61

.7
4

91
60

11
1
Pa

yr
ol
lc
ha

rg
e

4,
72

2
10

,0
00

5,
27

8
52

.7
8

91
60

11
3
O
ffi
ce

Re
nt

40
,7
88

42
,0
00

1,
21

2
2.
89

91
60

11
4
Ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Su

pp
or
t

3,
50

1
9,
49

5
5,
99

4
63

.1
3

91
60

11
5
O
rg
an

iz
at
io
n
Co

st
0

1,
29

9
1,
29

9
10

0.
00

91
60

12
0
Tr
ai
ni
ng

/C
on

fe
re
nc
es

an
d
Tr
av
el

39
,0
06

16
0,
62

3
12

1,
61

7
75

.7
2

91
60

13
0
M
em

be
rs
hi
p
D
ue

s
an

d
Fe
es

3,
44

9
13

,1
35

9,
68

6
73

.7
4

91
60

13
1
Ta
xe
s
&
G
ov

er
nm

en
tF

ee
s

1,
78

3
81

,0
17

79
,2
34

97
.8
0

91
60

16
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

Ac
co
un

tin
g
Se
rv
ic
es

19
,6
60

10
0,
00

0
80

,3
40

80
.3
4

91
60

17
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Se
rv
ic
es
/C
on

su
lta

nt
13

0,
45

2
28

,1
25

10
2,
32

7
36

3.
83

91
60

18
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

Ap
pl
ic
at
io
n
Se
rv
ic
e
Pr
ov

id
er

Ya
rd
i(
Ac

tu
al
s
br
ok

en
ou

tb
el
ow

in
lin

e
91

60
19

0)
7,
05

2
42

1,
75

3
41

4,
70

1
98

.3
3



PT
D
Ac

tu
al

PT
D
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

%
Va

r

Bu
dg

et
Co

m
pa

ris
on

(w
ith

PT
D
)

Pe
rio

d
=
Ju
l2
02

3
D
ec

20
23

Bo
ok

=
Ac

cr
ua

l

91
60

19
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

Co
m
pu

te
r/
Te

le
ph

on
e
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
/E
m
ai
l

21
9,
03

9
0

21
9,
03

9
N
/A

91
60

21
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

H
ou

si
ng

Pr
og

ra
m

Se
rv
ic
es

94
5

1,
62

5
68

0
41

.8
5

91
60

22
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

H
um

an
Re

so
ur
ce

Se
rv
ic
es

58
,2
05

5,
50

2
52

,7
03

95
7.
89

91
60

23
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

H
ou

si
ng

In
sp
ec
tio

n
Se
rv
ic
es

57
,4
57

50
,0
00

7,
45

7
14

.9
1

91
60

26
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

O
ffi
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

Le
as
e

7,
79

7
0

7,
79

7
N
/A

91
60

27
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

W
eb

H
os
tin

g/
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
/W

eb
Ad

s
1,
34

7
0

1,
34

7
N
/A

91
60

29
0
Co

nt
ra
ct
s

H
R
Re

cr
ui
tm

en
t

13
8,
02

4
50

,0
00

88
,0
24

17
6.
05

91
60

51
0
As
so
ci
at
io
n
D
ue

s
71

,6
56

81
,9
73

10
,3
17

12
.5
9

91
69

00
0
TO

TA
L
AD

M
IN
IS
TR

AT
IV
E

4,
68

9,
31

7
7,
60

3,
91

5
2,
91

4,
59

8
38

.3
3

92
00

00
0
TE
N
AN

T/
SO

CI
AL

SE
RV

IC
ES
/P
O
LI
CE

92
10

01
0
Te

na
nt

Se
rv
ic
es

Sa
la
rie

s
0

20
7,
29

2
20

7,
29

2
10

0.
00

92
10

03
0
Po

lic
e
Se
rv
ic
es
/S
ec
ur
ity

4,
21

8
0

4,
21

8
N
/A

92
10

09
0
Te

na
nt

Se
rv
ic
es

Sa
la
rie

s
3r
d
Pa

rt
y

29
9,
07

5
0

29
9,
07

5
N
/A

92
19

00
0
TO

TA
L
TE

N
AN

T/
SO

CI
AL

SE
RV

IC
ES
/P
O
LI
CE

(C
as
h
Ba

si
s
fr
om

pr
e
Ju
ly
20

23
in
vo

ic
es

in
fla

te
s
th
is
nu

m
be

rf
or

Li
fe
St
ep

s)
30

3,
29

3
20

7,
29

2
96

,0
01

46
.3
1

92
19

99
0
RE

LO
CA

TI
O
N

92
20

00
0
Te

na
nt

Re
lo
ca
tio

n
Co

st
s

38
5

7,
00

4
6,
61

8
94

.5
0

92
29

00
0
TO

TA
L
RE

LO
CA

TI
O
N

38
5

7,
00

4
6,
61

8
94

.5
0

92
30

00
5
TE
N
AN

T
SE
RV

IC
ES

EM
PL
O
YE
E
BE

N
EF
IT
S
AN

D
IN
SU

RA
N
CE

92
30

01
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

M
ed

ic
al
/D

en
ta
l

95
0

49
,3
50

48
,3
99

98
.0
7

92
30

02
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

PE
RS

/P
AR

S
1,
49

7
16

,0
86

14
,5
89

90
.6
9

92
30

03
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

FI
CA

0
3,
00

6
3,
00

6
10

0.
00

92
30

04
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

SU
I

0
48

3
48

3
10

0.
00

92
30

05
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

Li
fe
/L
TD

38
0

1,
21

8
83

8
68

.7
9

92
30

08
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit
s

O
th
er

1,
34

8
0

1,
34

8
N
/A

92
30

09
0
Te

na
nt

Sv
cs

Em
pl
oy

ee
Be

ne
fit

W
C

0
3,
48

4
3,
48

4
10

0.
00

92
39

00
0
TO

TA
L
TE

N
AN

T
SE
RV

IC
ES

EM
PL
O
YE
E
BE

N
EF
IT
S
AN

D
IN
SU

RA
N
CE

4,
17

6
73

,6
26

69
,4
50

94
.3
3

92
40

00
5
TE
N
AN

T
SE
RV

IC
ES

92
40

02
0
Te

na
nt

Se
rv
ic
e
Ac

tiv
iti
es

Co
nt
ra
ct
s
an

d
O
/S

Se
rv
ic
es

12
3,
41

2
14

3,
40

4
19

,9
92

13
.9
4

92
40

05
0
Te

na
nt
/S
oc
ia
lS
ev
ic
es

O
th
er

1,
45

4
0

1,
45

4
N
/A

92
49

00
0
TO

TA
L
TE

N
AN

T
SE
RV

IC
ES

12
4,
86

6
14

3,
40

4
18

,5
38

12
.9
3

93
00

00
0
U
TI
LI
TI
ES

93
10

00
0
W
at
er

12
8,
95

5
16

1,
74

7
32

,7
91

20
.2
7

93
20

00
0
El
ec
tr
ic
ity

53
,6
73

60
,2
32

6,
55

9
10

.8
9

93
30

00
0
G
as

40
,5
98

31
,8
85

8,
71

3
27

.3
3

93
80

01
0
Se
w
er

10
9,
63

4
90

,8
64

18
,7
70

20
.6
6

93
80

02
0
G
ar
ba

ge
24

3,
13

0
25

4,
41

8
11

,2
88

4.
44

93
99

00
0
TO

TA
L
U
TI
LI
TI
ES

57
5,
99

1
59

9,
14

6
23

,1
55

3.
86

93
99

99
0
M
AI
N
TE

N
AN

CE
94

39
00

0
TO

TA
L
M
AI
N
TE
N
AN

CE
CO

N
TR

AC
TS

(H
ig
he

rD
ef
er
re
d
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

It
em

s)
90

0,
65

6
70

4,
81

4
19

5,
84

2
27

.7
9

94
50

00
5
M
AI
N
TE

N
AN

CE
EM

PL
O
YE

E
BE

N
EF
IT
S

94
50

01
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

M
ed

ic
al
/D

en
ta
l

5,
65

1
16

,4
50

10
,7
99

65
.6
5

94
50

02
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

PE
RS

/P
AR

S
0

6,
28

4
6,
28

4
10

0.
00

94
50

03
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

FI
CA

86
4

86
6

2
0.
27



PT
D
Ac

tu
al

PT
D
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

%
Va

r

Bu
dg

et
Co

m
pa

ris
on

(w
ith

PT
D
)

Pe
rio

d
=
Ju
l2
02

3
D
ec

20
23

Bo
ok

=
Ac

cr
ua

l

94
50

04
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

SU
I

37
32

2
28

5
88

.5
6

94
50

05
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

Li
fe
/L
TD

26
0

40
5

14
6

35
.9
9

94
50

07
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

U
ni
fo
rm

s/
Sh

oe
s

22
0

0
22

0
N
/A

94
50

09
0
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
er

Be
ne

fit
s

O
th
er

81
,9
20

0
81

,9
20

N
/A

94
50

09
1
M
ai
nt

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
W
C

6,
42

0
4,
41

0
2,
01

0
45

.5
7

94
59

00
0
TO

TA
L
M
AI
N
TE
N
AN

CE
EM

PL
O
YE
E
BE

N
EF
IT
S

95
,3
70

28
,7
37

66
,6
33

23
1.
87

94
99

00
0
TO

TA
L
M
AI
N
TE
N
AN

CE
1,
39

5,
51

8
79

3,
26

9
60

2,
24

9
75

.9
2

95
00

00
0
G
EN

ER
AL

EX
PE

N
SE
S

95
00

10
0
In
te
re
st
Ex
pe

ns
e

52
8,
21

2
51

5,
18

6
13

,0
26

2.
53

95
00

20
0
O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
e

37
,5
50

82
,9
50

45
,4
0 0

54
.7
3

95
00

30
0
Cl
ai
m
's
Se
tt
le
m
en

tC
os
t

12
,9
47

0
12

,9
47

N
/A

95
20

00
0
Pr
ot
ec
tiv

e
Se
rv
ic
es

Co
nt
ra
ct

Co
st
s

1,
20

7
0

1,
20

7
N
/A

96
10

01
0
In
su
ra
nc
e

W
or
ke
rs
Co

m
pe

ns
at
io
n

22
,2
95

0
22

,2
95

N
/A

96
10

03
0
In
su
ra
nc
e

Pr
op

er
ty

23
3,
53

7
24

1,
82

2
8,
28

5
3.
43

96
10

04
0
In
su
ra
nc
e

Ve
hi
cl
e

1,
95

2
2,
41

3
46

1
19

.1
1

96
10

06
0
In
su
ra
nc
e

O
th
er

23
,9
25

35
,7
97

11
,8
72

33
.1
7

96
20

01
0
O
th
er

G
en

er
al
Ex
pe

ns
es

8,
81

3
15

,0
00

6,
18

7
41

.2
5

96
40

01
0
Ba

d
D
eb

t
Te

na
nt

A/
R

0
14

,3
15

14
,3
15

10
0.
00

96
98

00
0
TO

TA
L
G
EN

ER
AL

EX
PE

N
SE
S

84
4,
54

4
90

7,
48

2
62

,9
38

6.
94

96
99

00
0
TO

TA
L
O
PE

RA
TI
N
G
EX

PE
N
SE
S

7,
93

8,
09

0
10

,3
35

,1
37

2,
39

7,
04

8
23

.1
9

97
00

00
0
M
O
D
RE

H
AB

AN
D
SP
C
EX

PE
N
SE
S

97
00

50
0
Re

nt
to

O
w
ne

rs
Sh

el
te
rP

lu
s
Ca

re
(S
ec
ur
ity

D
ep

os
it
Lo
an

s)
14

,6
37

0
14

,6
37

N
/A

97
00

57
0
Re

nt
to

O
w
ne

rs
Be

ss
ie
Co

le
m
an

10
6,
53

4
0

10
6,
53

4
N
/A

97
00

80
0
PO

RT
In

(A
/R

Bi
lli
ng

s)
(N
eg
at
iv
e
Sh

ow
ca
se
s
Re

ce
ip
ts
fr
om

O
th
er

PH
As

)
38

2,
81

8
0

38
2,
81

8
N
/A

97
00

90
0
TO

TA
L
M
O
D
RE

H
AB

AN
D
SP
C
EX

PE
N
SE
S

26
1,
64

7
0

26
1,
64

7
N
/A

97
10

00
0
EX

TR
AO

RD
IN
AR

Y
EX

PE
N
SE
S

97
30

00
1
H
O
U
SI
N
G
AS

SI
ST
AN

CE
PA

YM
EN

TS
(V
O
U
CH

ER
)

97
30

01
0
H
ou

si
ng

As
si
st
an

ce
Pa

ym
en

ts
La
nd

lo
rd
s

19
,4
13

,6
70

19
,1
25

,8
43

28
7,
82

7
1.
5 0

97
30

02
0
H
ou

si
ng

As
si
st
an

ce
Pa

ym
en

ts
FS
S

33
,1
75

0
33

,1
75

N
/A

97
30

07
0
U
til
ity

Al
lo
w
an

ce
to

Te
na

nt
s

31
,4
41

0
31

,4
41

N
/A

97
39

00
0
TO

TA
L
H
O
U
SI
N
G
AS

SI
ST
AN

CE
PA

YM
EN

TS
(V
O
U
CH

ER
)

19
,4
78

,2
86

19
,1
25

,8
43

35
2,
44

3
1.
81

97
39

50
0
O
TH

ER
EX

PE
N
SE
S

97
40

00
0
D
EP

RE
CI
AT

IO
N
EX

PE
N
SE

(N
O
N
CA

SH
IT
EM

)
85

6,
50

0
85

6,
50

0
0

0.
00

97
80

00
0
La
nd

lo
rd

In
ce
nt
iv
es

41
,7
00

0
41

,7
00

N
/A

98
50

00
1
EH

V
Pr
el
im

in
ar
y
Fe
e
Ex
pe

ns
es

0
0

0
N
/A

98
50

00
2
EH

V
Pl
ac
em

en
t/
Is
su
an

ce
Re

po
rt
in
g
Fe
e
Ex
pe

ns
es

1,
25

3
0

1,
25

3
N
/A

98
50

00
5
EH

V
Se
rv
ic
es

Fe
e

O
w
ne

rI
nc
en

tiv
e

4,
00

0
0

4,
00

0
N
/A

98
50

00
6
EH

V
Se
rv
ic
es

Fe
e

O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
es

3,
74

0
0

3,
74

0
N
/A

98
50

00
7
EH

V
O
ng

oi
ng

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
Fe
e
Ex
pe

ns
es

14
,7
85

0
14

,7
85

N
/A

98
59

99
9
TO

TA
L
O
TH

ER
EX

PE
N
SE
S

92
1,
97

8
85

6,
50

0
65

,4
78

7.
1 0

99
93

00
0
TO

TA
L
O
TH

ER
FI
N
AN

CI
N
G

0
0

0
N
/A

99
96

00
0
TO

TA
L
EX

PE
N
SE
S

26
,3
63

,7
07

30
,3
17

,4
80

3,
95

3,
77

3
15

.0
0

99
98

00
0
N
ET

IN
CO

M
E
(A
CC

RU
AL

)
4,
31

7,
51

2
12

4,
79

8
4,
44

2,
31

0
10

2.
89

AD
D
:

D
EP

RE
CI
AT

IO
N
EX

PE
N
SE

(N
O
N
CA

SH
IT
EM

)
85

6,
50

0
85

6,
50

0
0

0



PT
D
Ac

tu
al

PT
D
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

%
Va

r

Bu
dg

et
Co

m
pa

ris
on

(w
ith

PT
D
)

Pe
rio

d
=
Ju
l2
02

3
D
ec

20
23

Bo
ok

=
Ac

cr
ua

l

LE
SS
:

M
U
ST

PA
Y
M
O
RT

G
AG

E
PR

IN
CI
PA

L
59

0,
33

3
59

0,
33

3
0

0
CA

SH
FL
O
W

(H
IG
H
ER

TH
AN

BU
D
G
ET
ED

YE
AR

TO
D
AT

E)
4,
58

3,
68

0
14

1,
37

0
4,
44

2,
31

0
3,
14

2.
33



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Janet Lee, Asst. Director of Finance  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending 
December 31, 2023.  

BACKGROUND 
California Government Code Sections 53600 and 53646 requires that the Housing 
Authority Finance Director file a quarterly report with the Board of Commissioners on 
the status of all investments.  
 
DISCUSSION 
The quarter-end report reflects the investment of the Agency.  Agency investments are 
covered by the provisions of the Housing Authority's Investment Policy that is approved 
annually by the Board of Commissioners.  This memorandum includes both the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and Island City Development's (ICD) 
investments.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As of December 31, 2023, AHA held $12,081,128 in Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF).  These funds are on demand and can be used for immediate needs.  The prior 
quarter balance was $11,973,159.  Interest is posted quarterly to the account by LAIF 
and the 3 months of interest from October through December 2023 earned will be 
presented in the January 2024 LAIF statement. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, AHA held $7,840,520 in the California Asset Management 
Program (CAMP).  These funds are on demand and can be used for immediate needs. 
 The prior quarter balance was $10,727,413.  AHA withdrew $6,000,000 then reinvested 
$3,000,000 during the quarter.  $3,000,000 was used towards grant funds to AAHTF for 
the development of Linnet Corner and the other $3,000,000 was reinvested due to the 
delay of a potential acquisition.  Interest is posted monthly to the account by CAMP. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, ICD held $15 in CAMP.  These funds are on demand and 
can be used for immediate needs.  The prior quarter balance was $15.  Interest is 
posted monthly to the account by CAMP. 



 
AHA Balances as of December 31, 2023: (LAIF $12,081,128, CAMP $7,840,520 
= Total $19,921,648) 
 
ICD Balances as of December 31, 2023: (CAMP $15) 
 
The key changes in the balance for the period ending December 31, 2023 are:  

Activity AHA-LAIF  AHA-CAMP ICD-CAMP 

Beg. Balance -  
   September 30, 2023 

  
$11,973,159 

  
 $10,727,413 

 
 $15 

Interest Income  $107,969   $113,107  - 

Net Withdrawal -  
   AAHTF grant - Linnet 
Corner 

 
-  

  
($3,000,000) 

 
 -   

Ending Balance -         
   December 31, 2023 

  
$12,081,128 

  
 $7,840,520 

 
 $15 

 
AHA's ordinary expenditure requirements for the next six months are more than 
sufficiently covered by two sources, namely: (1) anticipated revenues, grants, and 
subsidies, and (2) liquidity of current investments.  All investment actions executed 
since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Investment Policy.  The 
revised Investment Policy was approved by the Board of Commissioners in January 
2024.  The Executive Director will maintain a complete and timely record of all 
investment transactions.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners Accept the Quarterly Investment 
Report for the period ending December 31, 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. LAIF Statement for the quarter ending December 31, 2023 - AHA 
2. CAMP Statement for month ending December 31, 2023 - AHA 
3. CAMP Statement for month ending December 31, 2023 - ICD 
 
Respectfully submitted, 



 
Janet Lee, Asst. Director of Finance 










































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 



















































































































































































































































































































 

































































































































































































 

































































































































































































 






















































































































































































 











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 











































































































































































































































































































































 













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

















































































































































































































































































 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 































































































































 




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 



















































































































































































































































































































 

































































































































































































 

































































































































































































 






















































































































































































 











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 











































































































































































































































































































































 













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

















































































































































































































































































 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 































































































































 




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Joshua Altieri, Community Relations Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the 2024 Communications and Community Relations 
Report.  

BACKGROUND 
This 2024 Communications and Community Relations Report provides an overview of 
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s (AHA) communications and community 
relations program activities since 2021 and includes a future roadmap, as well.    
 
DISCUSSION 
Given the strong, interactive partnership between AHA and the City of Alameda 
community, AHA recognizes the need to invest resources into the development of a 
communications and community relations program.  This includes the hiring of a 
Community Relations Manager (CRM) in January 2021 and establishing an agency 
Ombudsperson program designed to address questions and concerns from the public, 
AHA residents, AHA program participants, and AHA landlords. 
  
The CRM’s role is to build positive brand equity, increase brand awareness, promote 
overall transparency, generate media coverage, and use storytelling to document how 
AHA is driving community impact among low-income households in the City of 
Alameda. In 2021, AHA was facing several communication challenges, including the 
need for upgrades and improvements to the agency's marketing database, branding 
strategy, community engagement activity, website, video assets, digital presence, and 
social media strategy.  To address these challenges, AHA created a set of goals 
encompassed in the 2021-22 Communications Plan.    
 
Moving forward, AHA needs to continue to leverage marketing assets, expand audience 
reach, maximize coverage of AHA agency accomplishments, and further expand 
community partnerships to benefit AHA program participants, AHA residents, and other 
AHA partners. AHA’s 2024 Communications Plan has identified the following core areas 
of focus for the agency's communications and community relations strategy. 
 
VIDEO CONTENT PRODUCTION  



Since 2021, AHA has created more than 19 minutes of produced video footage 
packaged into seven videos with topics ranging from AHA programs, AHA partnerships, 
AHA properties, and AHA’s effort to curb homelessness.  Not only is the sheer volume 
of production impressive, but the videos are being watched online, with the highest 
video garnering 1,350 video views.  The AHA videos were viewed 3,475 times in total.  
The 2021-22 Communications Plan set a goal to create new videos and web content, 
which has resulted in the creation of the following content:   

 AHA Overview Video https://vimeo.com/641680749  
 FSS Program Recruitment Video https://vimeo.com/641681076  
 Community Partnership Video https://vimeo.com/641680888   
 Animated logo Produced  (Added as production effect in all AHA videos)  
 New Website  (Launched in 2022 to positive reviews from AHA staff, 
participants, vendors, and leadership) 

 
AHA’s video content has been pushed to various communication channels, including 
social media, email, and AHA’s website. 
 
NEXT STEPS:  Potential AHA video projects could include an AHA history video 
for our upcoming milestone anniversary year.   North Housing will also need a 
video for the upcoming development of Block A (Estuary I, Estuary II, Linnet 
Corner). Staff are planning a recruitment video.           
  
WEBSITE  
In September 2022, the AHA launched two robust websites (www.alamedahsg.org and 
www.islandcitydevelopment.org), which can be translated into ten languages, are fully 
ADA accessible (WCAG 2.1 level AA), host all seven AHA videos, highlight upcoming 
AHA community events and public meetings, and serve as informational hubs for all 
AHA stakeholders.  In 2023, www.alamedahsg.org had over 88,000 visitors and the 
average engagement time was 1 minute and 22 seconds.  The function of the website is 
to also reduce the burden on AHA's administrative staff, so now AHA stakeholders 
(residents, landlords, etc.) can easily find information online instead of calling AHA 
offices.  Plus, because of the new website, AHA staff can quickly refer callers to 
resources on AHA’s website.    
 
NEXT STEPS:  Continue to perform website content QC review presence on a 
monthly basis. Work closely with staff and train new staff on how to perform site 
updates.    
  
SEARCH ENGINE OPTIMIZATION 
The increased social media presence, online content creation, combined with AHA’s 
new websites has vastly improved AHA’s online discoverability by search engines 
(Google, Yahoo, etc.).  In fact, in 2023, over 75,000 users 
discovered www.alamedahsg.org via organic search, which represents over 85% of 
AHA’s website traffic.  This demonstrates that AHA’s online resources can be easily 



searched for and found online by residents, program participants, landlords, and 
partners.   
 
NEXT STEPS:   Continue online content creation.  Monitor traffic on a monthly 
basis.  
  
SOCIAL MEDIA  
In 2021, AHA managed one social media account (LinkedIn) and only had 152 
followers. Since social media has become an integral part of daily life, AHA has 
recognized the need to utilize social media to effectively communicate with AHA’s online 
community.  AHA contacts its residents and program participants via Facebook, and 
utilizes LinkedIn to target AHA’s professional audience (vendors, future/current staff, 
partners).   As of Jan 24th, 2024, AHA’s Facebook account has 811 followers and AHA’s 
LinkedIn account has 785 followers, with a combined total of over 1,500 social media 
followers (which is 900% growth in social media followers since 2021).   A benefit of 
growing our in-house marketing audience reach (via email, social media, etc.) is that it 
reduces the need for AHA to spend money on paid advertising.      
 
NEXT STEPS:  Maintain content flow, on a frequent and consistent schedule, to 
both AHA’s LinkedIn and Facebook accounts. Utilize paid ad campaigns when 
required (recruitment campaign, for example).   
  
EMAIL   
Beyond social media, AHA has also streamlined the registration process for users to 
join AHA’s email subscriber group and, as a result, 12,974 email subscribers have been 
added to the email list, which is a 58% increase in the email subscriber list since 2021. 
As of January 2024, the AHA email subscriber list is at an all-time high of 22,111.  AHA 
has also utilized a high-volume email delivery strategy to distribute program-related 
content.  Since January 2021, AHA has sent just over 249,000 emails with a 50% email 
open rate and 7% click rate (percentage of people that clicked on a link in the email).     
  
 
NEXT STEPS:  Ensure that the online email registration process continues to 
work effectively.  Engage AHA staff to provide relevant information for electronic 
newsletters for AHA program participants, residents, and landlords.    
  
PUBLIC RELATIONS  
In 2023, AHA maintained a consistent cadence of press releases, highlighting AHA’s 
newsworthy activities, which resulted in three press releases for the year.  Not only is 
content creation critical, but equally important is gaining editorial coverage by AP media 
outlets and industry publications.  In all, AHA’s 2023 press releases were picked-up 832 
times by AP media outlets.  AHA builds brand equity, and greater visibility, via these 
press releases, as coverage can be regional or even national.      
 
The CRM has developed relationships with local media outlets, including the East Bay 
Times, Alameda Post, and other local media outlets.   These media relationships foster 



free, local editorial media coverage for AHA. Please use the following link to access 
recent AHA coverage in the Alameda Post: https://alamedapost.com/op-ed/housing-
authority-services-extend-beyond-just-housing/  
 
NEXT STEPS:  Publish press releases to garner media coverage for agency 
accomplishments.  Write advertorials to highlight other newsworthy agency 
accomplishments.  Further expand media relationships to broadcast TV.     
  
LOCAL COMMUNITY NETWORKING 
AHA’s CRM  and other staff maintains a steady schedule of informational presentations 
which highlight AHA programs, services, and development activity.  These 
presentations are conducted at numerous City Commissions and community 
organizations in the City of Alameda, including to the Alameda Unified School District, 
the Alameda City Council, the Alameda Chamber, the Rotary Club, the Kiwanis Club, 
the Social Services and Human Relations Board, the Recreation and Parks 
Commission, and many more.  AHA’s Community Relations Manager is currently 
attending the City of Alameda’s Leadership Program (the 2023-24 Cohort), which has 
fostered more exposure for AHA and expanded the agency’s network with other City of 
Alameda-based organizations and companies.   
 
NEXT STEPS:  Continue public presentations to keep the City of Alameda 
community informed regarding AHA’s efforts to bring more affordable housing to 
the City of Alameda. 
  
LANDLORD OUTREACH             
The AHA Landlord Portal is a valuable online tool, available to AHA landlords, which 
enables landlords to perform administrative tasks, which alleviates the administrative 
burden on AHA staff.  To boost adoption of the landlord portal among AHA landlords, 
the CRM conducts direct outreach to AHA landlords (via newsletters and email), hosts a 
monthly online landlord portal training, and works closely with AHA’s landlord liaison.  A 
total of 133 AHA landlords were registered on the portal in March 2023, and that 
number grew to 244 landlords on the portal in Jan 2024, which is 83% growth.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  Continue to host monthly Landlord Portal trainings for landlords 
and maintain a bi-annual schedule for quarterly landlord newsletters.  Push 
landlord recruitment messaging via social media and the AHA website, while 
continuing to provide timely customer service in response to portal-related 
inquiries.  
  
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS  
AHA’s expanded presence in the City of Alameda has involved partnering with various 
local community-based organizations and non-profits, including: the Alameda Food 
Bank, the City of Alameda Recreation & Parks Department, Alameda Family Services, 
the College of Alameda, the Alameda Firefighters Holiday Toy Program, the Alameda 
County Public Health Dept, the Center for Elders Independence, Drawbridge, LifeSteps, 
and many other local organizations.  These community partnerships enhance the quality 



of life for AHA residents and program participants.  Listed below are several highlights 
from 2022-2023: 

 In November 2022, AHA coordinated a free bike giveaway event for AHA’s family 
households. 

 Since COVID, AHA’s most vulnerable residents at AHA’s two largest senior 
communities (Independence Plaza and Anne B. Diament) continue to receive 
free food delivery on a bi-weekly basis, via AHA’s partnership with the Alameda 
Food Bank and LifeSteps.   

 The Alameda Food Bank also provides free snacks, fruit, and water for AHA 
youth programs, hosted every Wednesday at Esperanza Apartments.  

 The City of Alameda Recreation and Parks Department (ARPD) provides free bi-
weekly after-school recreational programming for AHA youth, via ARPD’s mobile 
recreational unit.  

 AHA contracts with Drawbridge (www.drawbridge.org) to provide bi-weekly art 
activities at Esperanza Apartments.   

 The goal of the Drawbridge and ARPD programs is to provide a safe space for 
young people in Esperanza (AHA’s largest family property) on a weekly basis.   

 Between 2020-2022, AHA staff coordinated with LifeSteps, during the holidays, 
to host toy distribution events for all AHA family households (on behalf of the 
Alameda Firefighter Toy Program).   

 AHA staff worked with the College of Alameda to coordinate holiday toy drives in 
2022 and 2023, which generated gifts for AHA households and the Alameda 
Firefighter Holiday Toy Program.    

 In 2023, AHA’s CRM also created a college/vocational college scholarship 
program, in conjunction with the Alameda Boys & Girls Club (ABGC) for AHA and 
AUSD high-school students who complete the college/career preparation 
curriculum at ABGC’s Diplomas to Degrees Center.    

 In Sept 2023, AHA partnered with the Rica Vista property owners, Lincoln 
Avenue Capital,  to host a community services event at Rica Vista apartments, 
which included AHA tabling alongside other community resources (Alameda 
Food Bank, Alameda County Food Bank, LifeSteps).  

 AHA secured 100 free tickets to two separate Oakland Athletics games during 
2023, which were distributed to AHA residents and program participants.    

  
NEXT STEPS: Continue to cultivate relationships with staff and leadership at the 
City of Alameda and local community organizations.  Procure services and 
resources which benefit AHA residents and housing program participants.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No financial impact.   
 
CEQA 
No CEQA  



 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the 2024 Communications and Community Relations Report.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Joshua Altieri 
Joshua Altieri, Community Relations Manager 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sean Prevette, Asst. Director of Administrative Services  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept Report on Housing Authority Records Disposition.  

BACKGROUND 
The Records Retention Policy and Procedure require the Executive Director to 
authorize the destruction of public and business records in accordance with Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) Records Retention Policy. Approval for 
destruction does not need to be secured prior to disposing of working drafts and 
originals of documents that have been scanned and stored electronically. The Executive 
Director will provide a written list of records that have been destroyed to the Board of 
Commissioners on an annual basis. This list shall not include any names of tenants 
and/or participants.  
 
DISCUSSION 
AHA sets aside time to review retained records and dispose of any records that are 
allowed under the Records Retention Policy. Attachment A shows the records that were 
disposed of since the last report to the Board of Commissioners.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no direct financial impact.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept Report on Housing Authority Records Disposition.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Attachment A Records Destroyed Report 
 
Respectfully submitted, 



 
Sean Prevette, Asst. Director of Administrative Services 



Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Rent Program Files 2022 and prior 1/13/2023

Wait List documents 2022 1/13/2023

Rent Program Invoices and sign-in sheets 2022 1/13/2023

Rent Program Survey 2022 1/13/2023

Check summaries and intercompany documents (2006-2010) 2022 1/13/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

2018 Annuals and Interims 2021 2/1/2023

2018 Annuals and Interims 2021 2/1/2023

2018 Annuals and Interims 2021 2/1/2023

2018 Annuals and Interims 2021 2/1/2023

Recruitments 2019 and prior 2022 3/31/2023

I-9 forms (termed employees) 2022 3/31/2023

Miscellanous working HR paperwork (past evaluation 
schedules, supervisor notes on staff performance)

2022 3/31/2023

RFP Proposals 2019 3/31/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 2/17/2023

Reception paperwork 2021 2/17/2023

Reception paperwork 2021 2/17/2023

Reception paperwork 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Lease and Contract 2021 2/17/2023

2018 Inspection Billing 2021 2/17/2023

Terminations 2019 and prior 2022 2/17/2023

Reception paperwork 2021 2/17/2023

New Move-In/Port-Ins 2021 2/17/2023

HUD Form-52676 2022 2/21/2023

2018 Management Reports and reviews 2021 2/21/2023

2011-2012 Timesheets 2018 2/21/2023

2019 Correspondence 2021 2/21/2023

2007 Back-up for Journal Entries that are in Yardi 2010 2/21/2023

2009 EPA Manifests 2015 2/22/2023

2012 Bid Appeal Paperwork 2014 2/22/2023

2016-2020 Toner Tracking 2022 2/22/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

2016 HQS 2019 3/20/2023

2016-2017 Annuals/Interims 2020 3/20/2023

2017-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018 Portability 2021 3/20/2023

2018 Portability  2021 3/20/2023

2018 Annuals/Interims 2021 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2018-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Portability 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/20/2023

Reception paperwork 2022 3/20/2023

Reception paperwork 2022 3/20/2023

Reception paperwork 2022 3/20/2023

Wait List documents 2022 3/15/2023

2018 Customer Surveys 2021 3/21/2023

2018 Wait List documents 2021 3/22/2023

2018 Wait List documents 2021 3/22/2023

2017-2019 Lease and Contracts 2022 3/22/2023

2017-2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/22/2023

2018 Informal Hearing Documents 2021 3/22/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

2018 Lease and Contracts 2021 3/22/2023

2018 Portability 2021 3/22/2023

2018 Admissions Paperwork 2021 3/22/2023

2018 Admissions Paperwork 2021 3/22/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

2019 Reception paperwork 2022 3/22/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2022 7/18/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2022 7/18/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2022 7/18/2023

SEMAP Documentation from 2018-2019 2021 7/19/2023

Annual Plan 2019 2021 7/19/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

COVID Cert Forms (electronic version kept) 2023 7/25/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2023 8/14/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2023 8/14/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2023 8/14/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior 2023 8/14/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior; Participants termed 
2019 and prior

2023 9/12/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior; Participants termed 
2019 and prior

2023 9/19/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior; Participants termed 
2019 and prior

2023 9/19/2023

Applicant Paperwork 2019 and Prior; Participants termed 
2019 and prior

2023 9/25/2023

IP PBV Denials 2023 9/25/2023

City Payment request form 2014 2019 9/25/2023

FY2013-2014 Documents (CAPER, Action Plan, 
Environmental Reviews)

2019 9/25/2023

FY2011-2012 Environmental Reviews 2017 9/25/2023

Applicant paperwork 2019 and prior 2023 10/17/2023

Miscellaneous HR paperwork (supervisor notes on staff 
performance and audits)

2023 10/19/2023

Property Management Phone log from 2018 2020 10/20/2023

Measure A City Lawsuit - AHA advisory letter to the City 
(1999)

2020 10/20/2023

Listing of tenants (2004) at complex where contract cancelled 2007 10/20/2023

Tenant referrals to Lifesteps (2019) 2022 10/20/2023



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

PARS Annual Report of AHA funds (2016-2019) 2022 10/20/2023

Compensation Studies 2019 2022 10/20/2023

2019 Annuals/Interims 2022 10/20/2023

Unsuccessful proposals (2018) 2019 10/20/2023

RA Checklists (2019) 2021 10/20/2023

Cancellation of vendor contract (2009) 2017 10/20/2023

2009-2011 IP Inspection Notices 2013 10/20/2023

2016 Unsuccessful proposal 2017 10/20/2023

Mileage logs 2014-2018 2020 10/20/2023

2018-2019 recruitments 2022 10/20/2023

Yardi Information - sample letters, how to guides 2011 12/19/2023

2019 unsuccessful PBV proposals 2021 12/19/2023

Documents from tenants termed and applicants removed 
2019 and prior 

2022 2/6/2024

Documents from tenants termed and applicants removed 
2019 and prior 

2022 2/6/2024

EIV documentation & Cyber Awareness Certifications for 
employees terminated 2021 & prior

2024 1/16/2024

PBV Initial Rent Study 9/2/09 
2014 2/6/2024

Relocation Services 2009 
                                                                                                     
                                             

2012 2/6/2024

Unsuccessful Proposal to Provide Legal Services for 
Voluntary Conversion June 12, 2008                                     

2012 2/6/2024



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

Income Survey 
2008                                                                                            
                                                                        

2013 2/6/2024

Income Survey 
2012                                                                                            
                                                                       

2017 2/6/2024

 Annual Board of Directors Meeting 
4/07                                                                                      
                               

2009 2/6/2024

 Annual Board of Directors Meeting 
4/06                                                                                      
                

2008 2/6/2024

Annual Board of Directors Meeting 4/05 
                                                                                     
                        

2007 2/6/2024

OSHA's Form 300-2009 
                                                                                                     
                                         

2014 2/6/2024

OSHA's Form 300-2008 
                                                                                                     
                                               

2013 2/6/2024

OSHA's Form 300-2007 
                                                                                                     
                                              

2012 2/6/2024

OSHA's Form 300-2006 
                                                                                                     
                                    

2011 2/6/2024

Board of Directors Meeting 4/5/07 
                                                                                               
               

2009 2/6/2024

Mail Machine Contract and Request for Quotes 12/26/08 
                                                                                     

2020 2/6/2024

Computer Equipment No Longer in Use 
                                                                                                     

2006 2/6/2024

Document Imaging Project Consultant (Caliber Assoc.) 3/98 
                                                                      

2000 2/6/2024

Co.                                        
2004 2/6/2024

Document Imaging Project Mis. Correspondence 
                                                                                          

2000 2/6/2024

Document Imaging Project Un
                                                                                

2000 2/6/2024

Document Imaging Project Unsucessful Proposal (Micro 
2000 2/6/2024



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

Document Imaging Project Unsucessful Proposal (Laser 
Fiche) 

2000 2/6/2024

                                                                                                     
                                     

2009 2/6/2024

RFP and related Information to Purchase 1997 (Minolta 5050) 
Copier 8/97 

2000 2/6/2024

Telecommunication System RFP 
2/6/01                                                                                      
                             

2011 2/6/2024

 Telecommunication System NetVersant Main. Contract 
8/1/02-7/31/07                                                               

2013 2/6/2024

Telecommunication System Pacific Bell Unsuccessful 
Proposal 2/14/01                                                                  

2003 2/6/2024

Telecommunication System VOX Network Solutions 
5/07                                                                                          

2017 2/6/2024

Telecommunication System XO Comm. (formerly Allegiance) 
Contract expires 12/31/06                                  

2013 2/6/2024

Telecommunication System VOX Network Solutions 
5/07                                                                                   

2017 2/6/2024

Telephone/Voicemail System (CAT Communications) 10/93 - 
Current                                                   

2006 2/6/2024

10/7/01                                                                                     
2008 2/6/2024

CALNET Integrated Services 1988-
12/3/08                                                                                
                                   

2015 2/6/2024

CALNET Contract Telephone Services 12/4/2008-1/9/12 2018 2/6/2024

2010                                                                                       
                            

2015 2/6/2024

11/15/11                                                                                   
                         

2016 2/6/2024

HUD Section 8 Summit,  Nashville,  TN  8/30 - 
9/3/98                                                              
                                    

2003 2/6/2024

3/30/11                                                                                    
2016 2/6/2024



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

Legislative Conference (Washington, D.C.) 3/28-
3/31/10                                                                                      

2015 2/6/2024

Legislative Conference (Washington, D.C.) 3/16-
3/18/09                                                         
                                

2014 2/6/2024

Legislative Conference (Washington, D.C.) 3/31-
4/2/08                                                                  

2013 2/6/2024

Norcal CAHA Retreat 
01/2011                                                                                       
                                               

2016 2/6/2024

National Conference, Washington, DC 10/31-
11/2/10                                                                                    

2015 2/6/2024

National Conference, Washington, DC 10/4-
10/6/09                                                                 
                                    

2014 2/6/2024

10/28/08                                                          
                                    

2013 2/6/2024

NorCal/Nevada NAHRO Chapter 2010 Winter Conference, 
Napa, CA 1/30-2/1/11                                      

2016 2/6/2024

NorCal/Nevada NAHRO Chapter 2009 Winter Conference, 
Monterey, CA 2/1-2/3/09                                      

2014 2/6/2024

NorCal/Nevada NARRO Chapter 2008 Winter Conference, 
Monterey, CA 2/3-2/5/08                                      

2013 2/6/2024

 No. Cal/Nevada Executive Director's Annual Retreat 2010 
(Napa)                                                                       

2015 2/6/2024

No. Cal/Nevada Executive Director's Annual Retreat 2009 
(Monterey)                                    

2014 2/6/2024

No. Cal/Nevada Executive Director's Annual Retreat 2008 
(Monterey)                                                                 

2013 2/6/2024

PSWRC/NAHRO 2010 Fall Workshop 11/6-11/9/10, 
Henderson, NV                                                                        

2015 2/6/2024

PSWRC/NAHRO 2009 Fall Workshop 11/14/09-11/17/09, 
San Diego, CA                                                  

2014 2/6/2024

San Francisco, CA                                               
2013 2/6/2024

SWRC/NAHRO 2010 Spring Regional Conference 5/2-
5/4/10, Scottsdale, AZ                               

2015 2/6/2024

PSWRC/NAHRO 2009 Spring Regional Conference 4/25-
4/28/09, Santa Barbara, CA                                         

2014 2/6/2024

PSWRC/NAHRO 2008 Spring Regional Conference 5/3-
5/6/08, Long Beach, CA                                  

2013 2/6/2024



DISPOSITION LOG

Description of Contents
Record Retention
Date (year) Date Disposed

Summer Conference 2010, Boston, MA 7/22-
7/24/10                                                      

2015 2/6/2024

Summer Conference 2009, Portland, OR 7/16-
7/18/09                                                                        

2014 2/6/2024

Summer Conference 2008, Nashville, TN 7/25-
7/27/08                                                                   

2013 2/6/2024

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA/NEVADA CHAPTER RELATED 
Bylaws 2/93                                                   
                                  

1997 2/6/2024

PACIFIC SOUTHWEST REGIONAL COUNCIL (PSWRC) 
RELATED Bylaws 2/94                                      

1999 2/6/2024

Diversified Data Management (DDM)       
                                                                                   
                            

2009 2/6/2024

Diversified Data Management (DDM) Data Processing 
Projects for 2003                           

2010 2/6/2024

BOC AdHoc Administration Committee Agenda 
6/3/14                                                                        

2019 2/6/2024

BOC AdHoc Administration Committee Agenda & Packet 
6/8/12                                              

2017 2/6/2024

Port. Strategy Review 2/15/17 by PFM               
2022 2/6/2024

2017                                                                                            
                                            

2022 2/6/2024

Structural Engineer that worked on RV 10 years 
prior)                             

2021 2/6/2024

Retreat)                                                                   
                                                                                             

2023 2/6/2024

end of recorded mins. w/current Hsg. 
Comm.)                                   

2022 2/6/2024



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Approve the Budget for Removal and Replacement of (30) Exterior 
Elevated Balconies at Anne B. Diament Plaza. Authorize the 
Executive Director to Sign a Contract with AmOne Construction 
Not to exceed $862,600.  

BACKGROUND 
On September 17, 2018, the California Legislature passed Senate Bill 721, Chapter 
455. This bill was passed in response to the June 16, 2015, tragedy in Berkeley, 
California where a balcony collapsed and 6 people died while 7 others suffered serious 
injuries.   
This law, SB 721, requires an inspection of exterior elevated elements, including decks 
and balconies, for buildings with 3 or more multifamily dwelling units by a licensed 
architect, licensed civil or structural engineer, a building contractor holding specified 
licenses, or an individual certified as a building inspector or building official, as 
specified. The bill requires the inspections, including any necessary testing, to be 
completed by January 1, 2025, with certain exceptions, and would require subsequent 
inspections every 6 years, except as specified. 
 
Anne B. Diament is owned by the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) and 
has no private lender debt.  
 
DISCUSSION 
There was a balcony inspection completed in late 2020 at the Anne B. Diament 
property by Applied Materials & Engineering, Inc. In general, the report noted that 24 
balconies were in need of replacement. Additionally, there were 6 other balconies on 
the property in various stages of disrepair. 
   
Since that time, three years, staff have noted that the repair scope has grown, and 
these repairs are now of the highest priority. The existing elevated balconies require 
extensive repairs, and/or full replacement in the very near future, some immediately. 

 
There are 21 first floor patios and 46 elevated balconies on this property. The elevated 



balconies with metal guardrails are in a variety of 2nd and 3rd configurations consisting 
of Type 5 (wood) construction, supported by a concrete slab on grade. 
   
 A staff assessment of the existing conditions of the residential balconies at the Anne B. 
Diament community was completed in July 2023 and found 30 balconies in need of 
replacement. 
   
Staff prepared and issued an RFP (Request for Proposals) soliciting bids for the work 
identified above and received 5 bids from qualified contractors. AmOne was selected 
as the most responsive bidder. The staff expects to negotiate the contract, secure 
funding and have the contractor mobilize and begin the remediation work by the end of 
March 2024. The construction will utilize prevailing wage rates.  

As of this date, it is not expected that any of the residents will need to relocate 
overnight, as all work is exterior work and will be done during the day. 
   
Prior to contractor mobilization, the staff and contractor will host another meeting with 
the residents to update them on the schedule as well as address what to expect during 
the process. The duration of time for the work on site is expected to be four to six 
months. A schedule will be published, posted in a public place, and (4) notices (2 
weeks, 1 week, 48 hrs.) will be posted on residents and adjacent neighbors' doors prior 
to repairs being made, as well as a notice of completion once the work is done. 
   
 The goal of this renovation is to address current and urgent needs.  It is anticipated 
that this will include full or partial replacement of approximately 65% of the current 
balconies. At that point, additional work can be performed on an annual or biannual 
basis to keep the structures in good condition. 

 
A summary of the soft and hard costs, as well as contingency is below. Staff 
recommends approval of the entire budget, as well as the Contract with AmOne 
Construction. Staff will be authorized to use contingency for unforeseen conditions and 
cost overruns. 
 



 
   
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Anne B. Diament has multiple sources of reserves and funds to cover some of the costs 
of these repairs. The remainder of costs will be applied to the AHA Reserve Policy - 
Preservation area.  The cost of the repairs, plus a 15% contingency for unanticipated 
costs or additional scope, is anticipated to be $862,600.    
 
With the Board of Commissiones' approval, staff will use project reserves, current cash 
flow and the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) reserves for the work.  
 
CEQA 
Not Applicable  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Budget for  Removal and Replacement of (30) Exterior Elevated Balconies at Anne 
B. Diament Plaza. Authorize the Executive Director to Sign a Contract with AmOne Construction 
Not to exceed $862,600. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 



 
Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Approve the Annual Intern Program and Continuation of a One-
Year Rotating Fellowship Program for Graduates of the Intern 
Program.  

BACKGROUND 
Since 2015, the Board has approved a Summer Internship Program which provides 
professional development opportunities to both undergraduate and graduate students. 
The internship is advertised at local colleges and universities, and many qualified 
applications are submitted. In 2023, AHA received forty applications. Annually, two to 
five students have been selected to participate in the program.   
 
In 2018-19, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) also participated in a 
year-long internship through the Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California. 
For 2024-2025, AHA is currently hosting a year-long intern in the Administration 
Department, whose focus is on emergency planning.   
 
In the past, the interns have worked on a multitude of projects including: research 
projects, presentations to the Board, organizing an annual summer “brown bag” learning 
program for staff, supporting programs at the Reading Room, helping  expand the 
Family Self-Sufficiency program, and assisting with a range of important tasks for 
various departments. The program was put on hold in 2020 due to COVID-19 and 
restarted successfully in 2022.  
   
In 2017, AHA received a NAHRO Agency Award of Merit in Housing and Community 
Development for the Summer Internship Program. Based on this success, and the 
ongoing need for qualified help, staff requests Board approval to renew the program. 
 Interns are generally paid an hourly salary though a temporary staffing service.   
 
DISCUSSION 
As the agency has sufficient projects to work on and qualified candidates available 
during non-summer periods, staff proposes to continue the Internship Program in 2024 
and to engage up to five interns, who may work at any point during the year, beginning 



in spring 2024.   
 
AHA will advertise these internship opportunities at a number of Bay Area colleges, 
including the College of Alameda, University of California at Berkeley, CSU East Bay, 
and San Francisco State University.   
  
The interns will continue to conduct research and work on projects that support the 
Housing Programs, Finance, Property Management, HR, Data and Policy, Housing 
Development, and Administrative Departments.  
  
Thanks to this variety of professional experience, several of our interns from prior years 
have gone on to other opportunities in affordable housing, economic development, and 
community service. AHA has hired some interns as permanent or temporary staff after 
the internship has ended, as it provides a source of qualified, available candidates 
familiar with the organization;. Nevertheless, AHA does not always have an entry level 
position to transition interns into, and they move to other organizations. Like other public 
agencies, AHA is struggling to hire qualified candidates for its positions.  
    
Staff is also proposing the creation of a One-Year Rotating Fellowship Program for 
graduates of the Intern Program. Successful graduates from the program will be eligible 
to be employed temporarily as Fellows. These positions will be in the areas listed 
above. Year-round training will be provided, but specific tasks and projects will also be 
assigned. The Fellowship Program was not active in 2023, due to staffing limitations.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
For 2024, staff is requesting a budget of $60,000 to cover five interns, paid at a higher, 
tiered rate of up to $25.00 per hour, to adjust for cost of living increases and for 
flexibility to address candidate education/training level. A $500 stipend would also be 
paid for travel expenses.  
 
The fellowship program would be an additional cost of approximately $80,000 per 
Fellow for one year, including salary and benefits. Fellowship opportunities would be 
limited to two positions, in the first year. Prior and 2024 graduates of the intern program 
may be given preference for this program. 
    
Current staffing vacancies have provided us with sufficient reserve funds to meet the 
cost of the intern program through June 2024 and these positions will be budgeted 
under temp salaries for the future fiscal year.   
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Annual Intern Program and Continuation of a One-Year Rotating 
Fellowship Program for Graduates of the Intern Program.  



 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Radha Mehta, Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Authorize the Executive Director to approve a contract between the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation and Transystems Corporation for Relocation 
Services for a not to exceed amount of Five Hundred Thousand 
dollars and Zero cents ($500,000.00) until February 28, 2027.  

BACKGROUND 
In May 2023, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) presented its 
Faircloth-to-RAD approach to the Board of Commissioners and received approval to 
expend its 120-unit Faircloth limit and undergo the Faircloth-to-RAD process at 
Independence Plaza. On June 21, 2023, the Board of Commissioners approved the 
necessary steps to complete Faircloth-to-RAD application process, including 
procurement of specialized relocation services. 
  
On August 21, 2023, the AHA released a Request for Proposals (RFP) seeking an 
experienced consultant to serve as Relocation Specialist and Move Coordinator to 
assist AHA and Property Managers. The procurement included services at 
Independence Plaza and also other AHA property portfolio on an as-needed basis. The 
services requires consultants to provide necessary and required relocation assistance 
to impacted tenants and households.  
 
DISCUSSION 
On September 28, 2023, AHA received proposals from four firms; 360 Relocation 
Consutants, Transystems, Autotemp, and RSG. The firms were reviewed based on 
experience, approach to the project, quality of services and cost proposal. The 
evaluation committee reviewed the proposals and determined three of the firms to have 
satisfactorily met the RFP requirements. Three firms were invited to an interview with 
the evaluation committee in November, 2023 to discuss approach to the project, 
relevant experience, and any clarifying questions the committee still had after reviewing 
the proposals. Based on the evaluation of proposals and the interviews, staff 
recommends awarding the relocation services contract to Transystems Corporation of 
an amount not to exceed $500,000. 



  
The cost proposal from Transystems charges between $3,300 to $3,820 per household 
for relocation and coordination services. The services would include: 

 Project management and consulting hours related to individual cases 
 Initial tenant interview 
 Needs assessment 
 Identification and coordination of temporary housing 
 Assistance with moving and storage 
 Payment of relocation assistance benefits 

 
The $500,000 contract amount would be sufficient to cover the relocation services 
required at Independence Plaza, as well as other AHA properties on an as-needed 
basis. Per the AHA's Procurement Policy, any contract greater than $250,000 or any 
firm whose cumulative contracts are greater than $250,000 must receive Board 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
It is intended that all costs under this contract will be recouped through other sources. 
Reimbursement for relocation costs will be requested of insurance, individual properties, 
or from recapitalization proceeds as available.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Executive Director to approve a contract between the Housing Authority of 
the City of Alameda, Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation and Transystems 
Corporation for Relocation Services for a not to exceed amount of Five Hundred 
Thousand dollars and Zero cents ($500,000.00) until February 28, 2027.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Transystems Consultant Services Agreement 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Radha Mehta, Management Analyst 



CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT

 
RECITALS

 TERM

 SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT



 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:

STANDARD OF CARE

INDEPENDENT PARTIES

IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT (IRCA):

NON-DISCRIMINATION:

 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS



INSURANCE

COVERAGE

(1) 

(2) Liability

(3) Automotive

(4) Professional Liability: 

SUBROGATION WAIVER



FAILURE TO SECURE

ADDITIONAL INSURED

SUFFICIENCY OF INSURANCE:

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENTS

 SUBCONTRACTOR APPROVAL



PERMITS AND LICENSES

REPORTS

(1) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

RECORDS



NOTICES

 

NO SMOKING, DRINKING OR RADIO USE

TERMINATION

 

COMPLIANCES

 GOVERNING LAW:



ADVERTISEMENT:

CONFIDENTIALITY:
Definition.

Nondisclosure and Nonuse Obligation.

Exclusions from Nondisclosure and Nonuse Obligations

Ownership and Return of Confidential Information and Other Materials

 WAIVER:

INTEGRATED CONTRACT



CAPTIONS:

EXHIBITS



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Relocation Specialist: 



Move Coordinator: 



o
o
o
o



EXHIBIT B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

Relocation Specialist 

Move Coordinator 





EXHIBIT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Commercial General Liability (CGL): 

Automobile Liability:

Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions):

IF APPLICABLE: Cyber Liability Insurance: 



IF APPLICABLE: Technology Professional Liability:  

o

o

OTHER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  

Additional Insured Status: :



Primary Coverage: 

 

Notice of Cancellation: 

Self-Insured Retentions:

Acceptability of Insurers:

Verification of Coverage: 

 

Subcontractors: 
 

Notification of claims: 

 

Special Risks or Circumstance: 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept conflict of interest letters from Goldfarb and Lipman for a 
number of transactions.  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority is under contract  with Goldfarb and Lipman ("Goldfarb") as 
General Counsel since 2014. As a large California-based legal firm Goldfarb, represents 
 many Public Housing Authorities, cities, counties and non profits. Although different 
Goldfarb partners work on any transaction where AHA and the other parties are 
contracted with Goldfarb, Goldfarb is required to issue a conflict letter and AHA is asked 
to sign these waiver letters. Since the Board selects and approves the general counsel, 
staff are informing the Board of these conflict letters.  
 
DISCUSSION 
This memo reflects two recent requests. A blanket waiver for issues relating the City of 
Alameda was brought to the Board previously in 2020. A blanket waiver for transaction 
with the County of Alameda will be forthcoming in March as there are many impacted 
properties.  
 
In the matter of the buyout of Shinsei Gardens, Goldfarb is representing the County of 
Alameda (a lender on the project) and AHA is represented by Downs, Pham and Kauai.  
  
AHA exploring a proposal from the Regional Housing Authority (RHA) to accept a 
transfer of their Faircloth allowance. Goldfarb will represent RHA in this transaction and 
Ayleshire Wybnder LLC will represent AHA.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  
 
CEQA 
none  
 



RECOMMENDATION 
Accept conflict of interest letters from Goldfarb and Lipman for a number of 
transactions.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Conflict Letter - RHA and AHA(3691530.1) 
2. Goldfarb Lipman Conflict Letter - Alameda County and City of Alameda Housing 

Authority - Shinsei Gar 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Vanessa Cooper 
Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 



 

1601\01\3691530.1 

February 8, 2024 

Gustavo Becerra 
Regional Housing Authority 
1455 Butte House Road 
Yuba City, California 95993 

Vanessa Cooper 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
701 Atlantic Avenue 
Alameda, California 94501 

Re: Consents to Potential Conflict of Interest 
Transfer of Faircloth Authority 

Dear Gus and Vanessa: 

We write this letter to request the consents of the Regional Housing Authority, a 
public body, corporate and politic ("RHA"), and the Housing Authority of the City of 
Alameda, a public body, corporate and politic ("AHA"), to the representation by 
Goldfarb & Lipman LLP ("Goldfarb & Lipman") of RHA in connection with the 
transfer of RHA's Faircloth authority to AHA (the "Transaction").  Goldfarb & Lipman 
will not be representing AHA in the Transaction. 

The specific purpose of this letter is to advise you of a potential conflict of 
interest of Goldfarb & Lipman due to the existing and continued relationships that 
Goldfarb & Lipman has separately with each of you, and the proposed representation of 
RHA in the Transaction as described below.  To undertake this representation, we are 
required to (1) disclose in writing our existing relationship with each of you, and 
(2) obtain the informed written consent of each of you to such potential conflict of 
interest, as described in this letter.  We believe that we will be able to provide competent 
and diligent representation to RHA in this matter. 

I. Existing Relationships. 

RHA is an existing client of Goldfarb & Lipman.  We represent RHA in general 
counsel matters and in some development matters, including the Transaction. 

AHA is also an existing client of Goldfarb & Lipman.  We represent AHA in 
general counsel matters and in some development matters, but not in connection with the 
Transaction.  We have and continue to represent AHA in connection with affordable 
housing projects in the City of Alameda. 



Regional Housing Authority 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
February 8, 2024 
Page 2 

1601\01\3691530.1 

II. Potential Conflict of Interest. 

While we are unaware of any current conflict of interest created by our existing 
relationships described in Section I above in relation to the Transaction, as attorneys, we are 
governed by specific rules relating to our representation of clients when potential conflicts of 
interest exist.  We must disclose certain information and obtain the informed written consents of 
each of you to represent RHA in connection with the Transaction as described in this letter, in 
accordance with Rules 1.1, 1.4, 1.6, 1.7, 1.8.2, 1.9, and 1.10 of the Rules of Professional Conduct 
of the State Bar of California (the "CRPC"). 

Our representation of RHA in connection with the Transaction could potentially create a 
conflict of interest for Goldfarb & Lipman related to, among other matters, information we have 
regarding AHA that could be relevant to the Transaction, but due to our duty of confidentiality 
and loyalty, we would be unable to disclose such information to RHA.  At this time, we do not 
believe that there is an actual conflict of interest for Goldfarb & Lipman, and we believe that we 
can competently represent RHA in the Transaction and still maintain our independent judgement 
and duty of loyalty to each of you in unrelated matters.  In addition, we do not believe that we 
have obtained any confidential information from AHA which is material to our proposed 
representation of RHA in the Transaction that is material to our continued representation of AHA 
in unrelated matters. 

However, if an actual conflict should arise related to the Transaction in which:  (i) the 
interest of AHA is now adverse to the interest of RHA, that would affect our independent 
judgment and our duty of loyalty to each of you in the unrelated matters; (ii) the issue of dispute 
in the Transaction is substantially related to the same issue in which we have represented either 
of you in other matters; or (iii) we have obtained any confidential information from RHA that is 
material to our representation of AHA, or any confidential information from AHA that is 
material to our representation of RHA, we would need to determine if we could continue  to 
represent RHA in the Transaction.  In reaching our decision, we would first need to determine if 
we could competently continue such representation, notwithstanding the adversity, and after such 
determination, we would further need to obtain the informed written consent of each of you. 

III. Informed Written Consent. 

You should thoroughly review and consider the matters discussed in this letter, and 
consider seeking independent counsel before providing your consent.  If, after such review, each 
of you consents to Goldfarb & Lipman representing RHA in the manner outlined above, please 
sign and return the attached consent form (i) acknowledging that you have been advised of the 
past and continuing relationships of Goldfarb & Lipman with each of you; (ii) acknowledging 
that you have been advised to Rules 1.1, 1.4, 1.6, 1.7, 1.8.2, 1.9, and 1.10 and the potential 
conflict of interest associated with our representation of RHA in the Transaction; and (iii) that 
you nevertheless consent to our representation of RHA in connection with the Transaction. 



Regional Housing Authority 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
February 8, 2024 
Page 3 

1601\01\3691530.1 

If you have any questions regarding this letter or our representation of each of you please 
call us before signing and returning the enclosed copy of this letter. 

Sincerely, 

 

JOSHUA J. MASON 
Attorney for RHA 

 

JHAILA R. BROWN 
Attorney for AHA 



Regional Housing Authority 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
February 8, 2024 
Page 4 

1601\01\3691530.1 

Consent 

Goldfarb & Lipman has explained to each of you:  (i) the past and continuing 
relationships of Goldfarb & Lipman with each of you, and (ii) CRPC Rules 1.1, 1.4, 1.6, 1.7, 
1.8.2, 1.9, and 1.10 and the potential conflict of interest in relation to the proposed representation 
by Goldfarb & Lipman of RHA in the Transaction and the possible consequences of this conflict.  
Each of the undersigned nevertheless consents to representation by Goldfarb & Lipman of RHA 
in the Transaction and gives approval to such representation as described in this letter. 

We understand that we have the right to seek independent counsel before signing this 
consent or at any future time. 

RHA: 

REGIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY,  
a public body, corporate and politic 

By: ____________________________________ 
Gustavo Becerra 
Executive Director 

AHA: 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
ALAMEDA,  
a public body, corporate and politic 

By: ____________________________________ 
Vanessa Cooper 
Executive Director 











    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Conduct the Public Hearing for the Annual Plan and Moving to 
Work Supplement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) was accepted into the Moving to 
Work (MTW) Demonstration Expansion under the Landlord Incentives Cohort to test the 
effectiveness of landlord incentives in 2022. The AHA is required to comply with the 
MTW Operations Notice while participating in the MTW Demonstration Program and as 
such, needs to submit an MTW Supplement with its Annual Plan every year. As part of 
the Annual Plan and MTW Supplement process, the AHA must allow for public 
comment and review of these plans.   
 
DISCUSSION 
HUD requires that the Annual Plan and MTW Supplement be made available for public 
comment 45 days prior to the public hearing. These documents were posted to the 
AHA’s website and distributed to locations in the City of Alameda for public comment on 
December 5, 2023. The public comment period closed on January 17, 2024, and the 
AHA did not receive any comments in relation to its Annual Plan and Moving to Work 
Supplement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. The AHA held a public meeting to discuss its 
Agency-Specific Waivers on January 26, 2024, and there were no comments received. 
The Resident Advisory Board (RAB), representing the interests of the participants in the 
Housing Choice Voucher program, reviewed and commented on the MTW Supplement 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and the Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. None of the 
comments resulted in changes to the proposed Annual Plan. The attached MTW 
Supplement Draft for Fiscal Year starting July 1, 2024, includes MTW activities being 
considered for submission to HUD for approval as well as those activities from previous 
MTW Supplements that have been approved by HUD. 
   
 At this time, the AHA is requesting one MTW Operations Notice activity and three 
Agency-Specific Waivers listed below: 

 2024-01 HAP Contracts Signed Up to 120 Days 



 2024-02 Initial Paperwork Good for Up to 210 Days 
 2024-03 Include Internet in Utility Allowance 
 2024-04 17.c. Local, Non-Traditional Activity – Housing Development Programs 

 
Now, the AHA is coming before the Board of Commissioners to conduct a public 
hearing regarding its Annual Plan and Moving to Work Supplement for Fiscal Year 
2024-2025.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Not Applicable.  
 
CEQA 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Conduct the Public Hearing for the Annual Plan and Moving to Work Supplement for 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Attachment A - February 2024 Public Hearing Presentation 
2. Attachment B - DRAFT Annual Plan FY 2024-2025 
3. Attachment C - DRAFT FY 2023 2024 MTW Supplement 
4. Attachment D - DRAFT Impact analysis for ACTIVITY 2024-01 HAP Contracts 

Signed Up to 120 Days 
5. Attachment E - DRAFT Impact analysis for ACTIVITY 2024-02 Initial Paperwork 

Good For Up to 210 Days 
6. Attachment F - DRAFT Impact analysis for ACTIVITY 2024-03 Include Internet in 

Utility Allowance 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Sepideh Kiumarsi 

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst 



































Streamlined Annual
PHA Plan
(HCV Only PHAs) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 03/31/2024

 

 
 

                       Page 1 of 8                   form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024)  

Purpose.  The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning 
including changes to these policies, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the 

- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families 

Applicability.  The Form HUD-50075-HCV is to be completed annually by HCV-Only PHAs.  PHAs that meet the definition of a Standard PHA, Troubled 
PHA, High Performer PHA, Small PHA, or Qualified PHA do not need to submit this form. Where applicable, separate Annual PHA Plan forms are 
available for each of these types of PHAs. 

Definitions.   

(1) High-Performer PHA  A PHA that owns or manages more than 550 combined public housing units and housing choice vouchers, and was designated as a 
high performer on both the most recent Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) and Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) 
assessments if administering both programs, or PHAS if only administering public housing. 

(2) Small PHA - A PHA that is not designated as PHAS or SEMAP troubled, that owns or manages less than 250 public housing units and any number of vouchers 
where the total combined units exceed 550. 

(3) Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Only PHA - A PHA that administers more than 550 HCVs, was not designated as troubled in its most recent SEMAP 
assessment and does not own or manage public housing.   

(4) Standard PHA - A PHA that owns or manages 250 or more public housing units and any number of vouchers where the total combined units exceed 550, and 
that was designated as a standard performer in the most recent PHAS and SEMAP assessments. 

(5) Troubled PHA - A PHA that achieves an overall PHAS or SEMAP score of less than 60 percent. 
(6) Qualified PHA - A PHA with 550 or fewer public housing dwelling units and/or housing choice vouchers combined and is not PHAS or SEMAP troubled.   

A.  
 
PHA Information. 
 

A.1 
 
PHA Name:  HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA                                                  PHA Code: CA062 
PHA Plan for Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY):  07/2024 
PHA Inventory (Based on Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) units at time of FY beginning, above)  
Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs): 1960 
PHA Plan Submission Type:   Annual Submission                   Revised Annual Submission  
 
Availability of Information.  In addition to the items listed in this form, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to the public.  
A PHA must identify the specific location(s) where the proposed PHA Plan, PHA Plan Elements, and all information relevant to the public hearing 
and proposed PHA Plan are available for inspection by the public.  Additionally, the PHA must provide information on how the public may 
reasonably obtain additional information of the PHA policies contained in the standard Annual Plan but excluded from their streamlined 
submissions.  At a minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans, including updates, at the main office or central office of the PHA.  PHAs are strongly 
encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on their official website.   
 
 
 

 PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a joint Plan and complete table below)   

Participating PHAs PHA Code Program(s) in the Consortia 
Program(s) not in the 

Consortia 
No. of Units in Each Program 

Lead HA:  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

    

     

     

     

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
    

Page 2 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

B.  Plan Elements.    

B.1 
Revision of Existing PHA Plan Elements.   
 
a)  Have the following PHA Plan elements been revised by the PHA since its last Annual Plan submission? 
 
Y    N  

    Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs.      
    Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection, and Admissions.   
    Financial Resources.  
    Rent Determination.   
    Operation and Management.   
    Informal Review and Hearing Procedures.   
    Homeownership Programs.   
    Self Sufficiency Programs and Treatment of Income Changes Resulting from Welfare Program Requirements.   
    Substantial Deviation.   
    Significant Amendment/Modification.  

 
(b)  If the PHA answered yes for any element, describe the revisions for each element(s): 
 
The AHA revised the timeline for which tenant discoveries must be received and when tenant discoveries and briefs must be sent to hearing 
officers. 

B.2
 
New Activities.  Not Applicable 
 



 
    

Page 3 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

B.3
 
Progress Report.  

Provide a description of the -Year PHA Plan.
 
GOAL 1: WORK WITH COMMUNITY PARTNERS TO OPTIMIZE AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE ALAMEDA 
COMMUNITY. 
 
Regarding the North Housing Project, a 12-acre former Naval site, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) has undertaken demolition 
of existing buildings and entitlement approvals, and incurred holding costs for security, fencing, insurance, and ongoing landscape maintenance. In 
June 2023, the Public Works Department approved the North Housing Phase I backbone improvements plan, which enables the site infrastructure 
and soil stabilization work to begin at North Housing Block A. In February 2023 the AHA received funding from the State of California Housing 
and Community Development Department for the Hawthorn Suites on Webster Street which will be known as Poppy Place. The AHA is working 
with Building Futures and Alameda Point Collaborative to provide services for this site. In September 2023, the AHA closed permanent financing 
for Rosefield Village, a site of 92 units of affordable, work force housing, and transitioned the property to stabilized operations thereby finishing the 
process to increase  
months, with more than 150 housing units, including over 70 units reserved for permanent supportive housing. To inform and educate the public, 
the AHA consistently distributes a quarterly tenant newsletter and biennial newsletters for landlords and government officials and holds an annual 
workshop for landlords. The AHA also publicly presents to the Alameda City Council and its commissions, and the Board of AUSD, as needed, and 
holds monthly meetings with AHA landlords about the Landlord portal and quarterly meetings with various local organizations. The Authority has 
strengthened existing relationships by maintaining and expanding se
emphasize the importance of landlord participation.  In 2022, an extensive landlord survey was conducted in addition to the survey conducted 
annually.  The Authority continues to refer landlords to the city's rental and residential rehabilitation program.  
 
GOAL 2: USE RESOURCES EFFICIENTLY TO OPERATE IN A SUSTAINABLE MANNER. 
 
The Authority continues to utilize, expand, and research automated accounting systems to improve overall performance. One example of this is the 
implementation of the AHA claim management process which streamlines claims related to incidents from incident reporting to insurance 
reimbursement. An automated system for staff to scan and submit invoices for approvals has been fully implemented and a journal entry approval 
process has been automated and utilization has become standard for new vendors. This has vastly improved efficiencies in disbursement and 

-line Landlord and Vendor Portals has been expanded, as has utilization of Yardi Rent Café 
online reporting of income changes between annual recertifications for participants. A recent customer survey produced by the AHA has shown that 
utilization of the Landlord Portal has increased by 25% in the last year. The AHA has also launched its Intake Portal for participants and applicants. 
The AHA is exploring an online platform for submissions of Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA) processing and owner rent increase requests.  

nt increases. Property 
rehabilitation finished according to the near-term capital improvements plan including the repair of the balconies at Independence Plaza and 
replacement of the roof at Anne B. Diament. Data from Capital Needs Assessments, appraisals, and accessibility studies are being utilized to 
conduct financial feasibility analyses on Independence Plaza, China Clipper, and Esperanza regarding needs and opportunities for renovation. The 
AHA has also implemented a risk prevention program to conduct site visits of properties to identify current and potential risks that need to be 
corrected. Regarding operating in a more efficient manner, the AHA has auctioned off some of its vehicles, has created an environmental plan and 
an environment committee to discuss environmentally friendly practices and initiatives, and completed the transfer of property operations to a 3rd 
party management company. The Authority received an executed Moving To Work (MTW) Amendment to the Annual Contributions Contract 
(ACC) dated March 23, 2022, officially designating the Authority as an MTW Agency. The Authority will spend the next four years (starting July 
1, 2023) studying the effects of landlord incentives in the Housing Choice Voucher program on the retention and recruitment of landlords, including 

s requested MTW 
Operations Notice activities and Landlord Incentives Cohort activities from its MTW Supplements for FY 2022-2023 and FY 2023-2024 resulting 
in a total of 12 approved activities which were all implemented July 1, 2023. These activities include landlord incentives and pre-qualifying 
inspections to encourage more landlords to participate in the HCV program. Th
triennial reexamination MTW activity has allowed staff to conduct in-person reexaminations which will allow staff to assist participants needing 
assistance or training on how to complete an annual or interim recertification through the online portal. 
 
GOAL 3: RETAIN AND RECRUIT EXCELLENT STAFF. 
 
The Authority continues its 6- to 12-month training plan process for new employees, with extensive cross training for all staff. Online training 
continues to be expanded, particularly for new hires, including agency policies and procedures, Yardi software training, and mandatory training 
such as Fair Housing, Sexual Harassment, cyber training, customer service, and specialized software.  The annual Brown Act training continues to 
be provided in person. In 2021, staff were provided with a two-part video online live training on diversity, equity and inclusion, and a training that 
provided an overview of informal hearings. Staff in the Housing Programs Department received trainings for Housing Quality Standards (HQS) 
inspections and updated training for the Housing Choice Voucher program including eligibility, rent calculation, and continued occupancy in 2022.  
In 2023, the AHA has also hosted several training courses for staff including, but not limited to, an asset management training in March 2023, a 
two-day supervisor training in May and June 2023, the Housing Choice Voucher Supervisor and Manager training in June 2023, a Defensive Driver 
training through July and August 2023 and quarterly procurement trainings. AHA staff also enroll in weekly Nelrod trainings provided through its 
membership in that organization.  The AHA has created a pilot program, which staff has already utilized, to provide stipends to staff to be used for 
career development and training. Monthly staff meetings are now held in-person and include department reports each month to facilitate broader 
cross-agency communications, updates on work in progress, and presentations from the event committee regarding broader social and 
environmental justice topics. The Events Committee also plans and facilitates monthly staff events which promote staff interaction and foster job 
satisfaction. The AHA held a Board Retreat in August 2023 to facilitate discussion and receive feedback and suggestions from the Board of 
Commissioners regarding program improvements. The AHA also held an agency luncheon that brought together and celebrated the 

ogram, and 
the Alameda Food Bank. An update to the public sector compensation studies was completed and implemented in 2022, including all exempt and 
non-exempt positions with the exception of contract staff such as the Resident Manager and Executive Director positions. The public sector 
compensation studies were updated in July 2023 for Director and Exempt level positions. Ergonomic assessments are completed for all new hires, 
typically within two weeks, and for ongoing staff at their request to assess and improve workspaces. During this review period there were also 
thirteen new hires across almost all departments and six staff received promotions on either a permanent or acting basis. The AHA is also looking to 
hire assistant directors for most departments to retain staff and have cross-training for staff. 



 
    

Page 4 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

 
GOAL 4: ENSURE FINANCIAL PREPAREDNESS FOR FUTURE CHALLENGES. 

The AHA has created dashboards for asset management and property management to review progress and make informed decisions. In addition, the 
etrics along with others 

from property management are included in the monthly Board of Commissioners packet which is publicly available. In 2022, the Authority 
onitor the progress of key elements in real-time 

on both the property management side and the Housing Choice Voucher side.  The AHA has received continued Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) 
funding for 2023 and is contracted with a professional social services provider to offer enhanced online services for FSS participants. At the end of 
March 2023, there were 23 active participants in the FSS program due to 5 graduations and in April 2023, 3 recruitment events were held for the 
FSS program.  The FSS coordinator continues to provide services including, but not limited to, personal coaching of life skills, communication with 
tenants and landlords, and changes in annual recertification procedures, referrals to legal and mediation services, College of Alameda Career and 
Employment Center, and Alameda County Social Services, and one-on-one and virtual monthly check-ins. The AHA continues to provide social 
services which are available to participants, applicants, and tenants. These include Legal Assistance, Housing Counseling, Fair Housing 
Consultation and Referral Services. The AHA has revised its organizational chart to include several positions to help support the implementation of 
MTW, new development projects, and increased operational needs. The AHA has received 10 Stability Vouchers that it applied for in 2022 and 
continues to receive funding for Emergency Housing Vouchers and Housing Assistance Payments. A local housing trust fund was created in 2021 
to leverage funds.  In June 2023, the Board authorized the Executive Director to fund the North Housing Master Plan costs of $4,000,000 with short 
to midterm use of AHA reserves, agency operating funds, and HUD Moving-To-Work (MTW) fungibility. ICD has also received Reserve Policy 
permanent loan commitments totaling $12,938,000 for the North Housing project, and $8 million dollars for the Poppy Place Hotel Conversion 
project. Predevelopment funds up to $7,500,000 have been approved for the three phases of the North Housing Plan. The Authority presented a 
formal Reserves Policy to the Board of Commissioners in October 2021, with an amendment to the Reserves Policy in May 2022. This included an 
emphasis in sufficient operating and housing assistance payment reserves with preparation for future housing development and deferred 

. 
 
GOAL 5: MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE DATA INTEGRITY AND COLLECTION. 
 
The AHA continues to review and update systems to ensure that it stays current with industry practices and up-to-date on system security. After 
rising concerns about ChatGPT, the AHA IT Governance Committee discussed the issue and in July 2023 the AHA prohibited the use of AI 
technologies, including accessing websites like ChatGPT or similar platforms, and preventing the entry of AHA data into AI systems. This policy 
will protect sensitive data and PII, maintain the integrity of proprietary and internal information, and ensure compliance with data protection 

-related operations including new SOPs for creating 
recurring work orders in Yardi and processing IT support tickets. In 2021 the physical servers and back-up systems were upgraded, with greatly 
improved security, storage, and access features. Additional hardware, including laptops and cell phones, was deployed to staff.  In 2021, the 
Authority implemented a comprehensive cyber awareness program consisting of integrated software solutions to combat attacks and provide staff 
training to increase awareness of cyber-attacks.  In 2023, the AHA has also expanded the use of Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) for its systems. 
The AHA has researched and is looking to launch SharePoint which is a secure way to share documents. The AHA continues to expand and 
optimize its paperless and mobile integration, including online forms, automated communications, and online capability to complete regular 
recertifications, interim recertifications, and the intake process. The AHA also moved its vendors and landlords to use Electronic Funds Transfer 
(EFTs). The AHA implemented an online Board meeting solution including specialized software 
The AHA also purchased equipment to allow for hybrid meetings.  The AHA partnered with ECS Imaging to provide training of its Laserfiche 
repository for all staff. The AHA has also created online forms for its training requests, reimbursement requests, MTW landlord incentives and 
vacancy loss payments, and MTW hardship forms. The AHA has also worked with its online vendor to update its systems to more easily implement 
its triennial reexamination and HQS inspection MTW activities. The HR department has selected to use HMIS software and will begin 
implementing the software starting with onboarding which automates the onboarding process. Additionally, the HR department collects information 
from employees who are leaving the AHA and presents the exit data once every two years. 
 
GOAL 6: IMPROVE THE QUALITY OF LIFE OF RESIDENTS WHILE MAINTAINING EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE OPERATIONS OF 
HOUSING AUTHORITY UNITS. 
 
The Authority launched the Ombudsman program in 2021, which is a solution-oriented community resource available to all Authority tenants, 
program participants, landlords, and other community organizations that represent Authority tenants or clients. Since then, the Ombudsperson 
program has received 238 inquiries. This program reinforces our existing educational materials and continues to provide resident supportive 
services for all tenants and participants in the programs operated by the Housing Programs De
Drawbridge, and City of Alameda Recreation and Parks Department Mobile Recreation Program have weekly activities for children living at all 
AHA properties and the Alameda Food Bank continues to provide food at these activities. Alameda Food Bank provides food and LifeSTEPS 
manages food distribution to AHA properties twice a month at two different properties. LifeSTEPS continues to conduct in-person meetings with 
residents to provide aid and link families to financial and social service agencies. The Boys and Girls Club partnership continues to allow access to 

m the California 
Association of Public Information Officers for exceeding industry standards in quality and achievement. In the beginning of 2023, the AHA 
reinstated our in-person Rent Café Workshops to assist with the online recertification and interim portal. The AHA also provides letters explaining 
available supportive services for those facing eviction and has quarterly social services meetings for all participants. The AHA has also done 

ogram and worked with LifeSTEPS to help 
participants apply for the program. Educational materials on Fair Housing laws and reasonable accommodation under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act is provided at briefings, terminations, and at various points of contact with applicants and participants. In 2021, we launched an 
online Reasonable Accommodations Request form and continued to provide fair housing information through newsletters.  The Language Access 
Plan (LAP) update was completed, and outreach continues to be conducted in all languages listed in the updated LAP. 
 
GOAL 7: EXPAND HOUSING CHOICE THROUGHOUT THE CITY OF ALAMEDA. 
 

2023, the Pulte Homes 
townhomes were fully purchased. In addition, the AHA stepped in to avoid foreclosure on a moderate-income inclusionary unit, taking ownership 
so that this home would retain the affordability restrictions. The Housing Development Department continues to work on Estuary I, Estuary II, and 
Linnet Corner (also referred to as the North Housing Project). Estuary I will provide 45 units of permanent supportive housing for formerly 
homeless individuals (including an award of 40 PBVs), Estuary II will provide 46 units of permanent supportive housing for formerly homeless 



 
    

Page 5 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

individuals (selected for an award of 40 PBVs), and Linnet Corner will provide 64 affordable units for seniors aged 62 years and over with 16 of 
these units for senior, homeless veterans (including an award of 40 PBVs). Rosefield achieved 100% lease up of its tax credit units (89 units, 
including 23 project-based voucher units) as of October 31, 2022. Permanent Loan Conversion for Rosefield Village occurred in September 2023. 
In March 2023, 200 applicants were selected from the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) waitlist and to date AHA staff have issued 71 vouchers. In 
March 2023, there was a ceremonial signing event at Rica Vista Apartments which preserves the affordability of up to 132 units at the Rica Vista 
Apartments for the next 55 years which was a collaborative effort between the AHA, the City of Alameda, and Lincoln Avenue Capital. On June 5, 
2023, the AHA was notified it was receiving an allocation of ten (10) Stability Vouchers (SV) effective July 1, 2023. The AHA reached an 
agreement with the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) to reallocate 20 Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) vouchers 
to the AHA. This was approved by the HACA Board of Commissioners, and the transfer is set to happen at the beginning of 2024. The AHA is 
working on a similar agreement with the Housing Authority of the City of Oakland (OHA). In 2021, the Authority was awarded fifty-seven (57) 
Emergency Housing Vouchers (EHV) from HUD, which were all issued and all, but one voucher, has been leased up. The AHA has also signed its 
contract renewals for the Moderate Rehabilitation and Shelter Plus Care programs. The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) plans to 
implement a Faircloth to RAD (Rental Assistance Demonstration) conversion to utilize all its 120-unit Faircloth limit at Independence Plaza. In 
June 2023, AHA staff presented this plan to the Board of Commissioners and received approval from the Board of Commissioners to move ahead 
with this process. At this time the AHA has decided to ultimately convert all 120 units through RAD, which uses a Public Housing process to create 
project-based voucher units. Specific units and households have not been selected yet within the development to undergo this process. Additionally, 
the AHA is also collaborating with the HUD Field Office and other Public Housing Authorities within the State of California to explore options to 
assume more Faircloth Authority or partner with those PHAs to develop their Faircloth Authority. In 2022 the Authority signed two Housing 

.  The Authority also 
completed two Request for Proposals resulting in the selection of an additional 160 units under the Project-Based Voucher program.  During 2021, 
Housing Assistance Payments Contracts were signed on 50 new Project-Based Voucher (PBV) units including 25 under the Veteran Affairs 
Supportive Housing (VASH) program.  The Authority received over 22,000 applications during its 2021 wait list opening. 
 

B.4
 
Capital Improvements.  Not Applicable  
 

B.5
 
Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.   
 
(a) Were there any findings in the most recent FY Audit?   

 
Y    N   N/A 

      
 

(b) If yes, please describe:  
 

C. Other Document and/or Certification Requirements. 

C.1 
 
Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Comments.    
 

(a) Did the RAB(s) have comments to the PHA Plan?  
 

Y     N    
     

 
(b) If yes, comments must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA Plan.  PHAs must also include a narrative describing their 

analysis of the RAB recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations. 
 
These will be included upon receipt. 

C.2 
 
Certification by State or Local Officials.  
 
Form HUD 50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan , must be submitted by the 
PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. 

C.3 
 
Civil Rights Certification/ Certification Listing Policies and Programs that the PHA has Revised since Submission of its Last Annual Plan.  
 
Form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP, PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations  
Including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed, must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. 
 

C.4 
Challenged Elements. If any element of the PHA Plan is challenged, a PHA must include such information as an attachment with a description of 

 to the public. 
(a) Did the public challenge any elements of the Plan? 

Y     N    
     

 If yes, include Challenged Elements. 
 
This will be updated if any elements are challenged.   

D.  
 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).  



 
    

Page 6 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

Instructions for Preparation of Form HUD-50075-HCV 
Annual PHA Plan for HCV-Only PHAs 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

A. PHA Information. All PHAs must complete this section.  (24 CFR §903.4)   
 
A.1  Include the full PHA Name, PHA Code, PHA Type, PHA Fiscal Year Beginning (MM/YYYY), Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs), 

PHA Plan Submission Type, and the Availability of Information, specific location(s) of all information relevant to the public hearing and proposed 
PHA Plan. 

 
 PHA Consortia: Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete the table. (24 CFR §943.128(a))   

B.      Plan Elements.  All PHAs must complete this section. (24 CFR §903.11(c)(3)) 
 

B.1 Revision of Existing PHA Plan Elements. PHAs must: 

Identify specifically which plan elements listed below that have been revised by the PHA. To specify 
 

 
  Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs.  Provide a statement addressing the housing needs of low-income, very 

low-income and extremely low-
the jurisdiction served by the PHA and other families who are on the Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists. The statement must identify the 
housing needs of (i) families with incomes below 30 percent of area median income (extremely low-income); (ii) elderly families (iii) households with 
individuals with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups residing in the jurisdiction or on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-
based assistance waiting lists. The statement of housing needs shall be based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information 
provided by HUD, and generally available data.  The identification of housing needs must address issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, 
size of units, and location. Once the PHA has submitted an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH), which includes an assessment of disproportionate housing 
needs in accordance with 24 CFR 5.154(d)(2)(iv), information on households with individuals with disabilities and households of various races and ethnic 
groups residing in the jurisdiction or on the waiting lists no longer needs to be included in the Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing 
Housing Needs. (24 CFR § 903.7(a)).  
 
The identification of housing needs must address issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and location. (24 CFR §903.7(a)(2)(i))  
Provide a description of the ways in which the PHA intends, to the maximum extent practicable, to address those housing needs in the upcoming year and 

(24 CFR §903.7(a)(2)(ii))   
 

  Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection, and Admissions.  
or tenant eligibility, selection and admission including admission preferences for HCV. (24 CFR §903.7(b)) 

  Financial Resources.  A 
HCV funding and other anticipated Federal resources available to the PHA, as well as tenant rents and other income available to support tenant-based 
assistance.  The statement also should include the non-Federal sources of funds supporting each Federal program, and state the planned use for the 
resources. (24 CFR §903.7(c)) 

 

D.1
 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH). 

outlined in an accepted Assessment of Fair Housing 
(AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5). Use the chart provided below.  (PHAs should add as many goals as necessary to overcome fair 
housing issues and contributing factors.)  Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA is not obligated to complete this 
chart.  The PHA will fulfill, nevertheless, the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) enacted prior to August 17, 2015. See  Instructions for 
further detail on completing this item.  
 

Fair Housing Goal: Not Applicable 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal  

 

Fair Housing Goal:  Not Applicable 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal  

 

Fair Housing Goal:  Not Applicable 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal  

 
 
 

 



 
    

Page 7 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

  Rent Determination.  A statement of the policies of the PHA governing rental contributions of families receiving tenant-based assistance, 
discretionary minimum tenant rents, and payment standard policies. (24 CFR §903.7(d))    

 
  Operation and Management.  A statement that includes a description of PHA management organization, and a listing of the programs administered 

by the PHA. (24 CFR §903.7(e)).   
 

  Informal Review and Hearing Procedures.  A description of the informal hearing and review procedures that the PHA makes available to its 
applicants. (24 CFR §903.7(f))   

 
  Homeownership Programs.  A statement describing any homeownership programs (including project number and unit count) administered by the 

agency under section 8y of the 1937 Act, or for which the PHA has applied or will apply for approval. (24 CFR §903.7(k))   
 

  Self Sufficiency Programs and Treatment of Income Changes Resulting from Welfare Program Requirements.  A description of any PHA 
programs relating to services and amenities coordinated, promoted, or provided by the PHA for  assisted families, including those resulting from the 

, for the enhancement of the economic and social self-sufficiency of assisted families, including programs provided 
subject to Section 3 of the Housing and Community Development Act 

of 1968 (24 CFR Part 135) and under requirements for the Family Self-Sufficiency Program and others.  Include th
and actual size of the FSS program) and means of allocating assistance to households.   (24 CFR §903.7(l)(i)) Describe how the PHA will comply with 
the requirements of section 12(c) and (d) of the 1937 Act that relate to treatment of income changes resulting from welfare program requirements.  (24 
CFR §903.7(l)(iii)).    

  Substantial Deviation.  PHA must -Year Plan. (24 CFR §903.7(r)(2)(i))     
 

  Significant Amendment/Modification.  -Year and 
Annual Plan.  
 

  

B.2 New Activities.  This section refers to new capital activities which is not applicable for HCV-Only PHAs.  

B.3  Progress Report.  s in 
meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-Year PHA Plan. (24 CFR §903.11(c)(3), 24 CFR §903.7(r)(1)) 

B.4    Capital Improvements.  This section refers to PHAs that receive funding from the Capital Fund Program (CFP) which is not applicable for HCV-Only 
PHAs 

B.5 Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.  If 
findings in the space provided.  (24 CFR §903.7(p))    

C. Other Document and/or Certification Requirements. 
         

C.1   Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. If the RAB had comments on  submit the comments as an attachment to the 
(24 CFR §903.13(c), 24 CFR §903.19)   

C.2 Certification by State of Local Officials.  Form HUD-50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the 
Consolidated Plan, must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. (24 CFR §903.15).  Note:  A PHA may request to change 
its fiscal year to better coordinate its planning with planning done under the Consolidated Plan process by State or local officials as applicable. 

C.3 Civil Rights Certification/ Certification Listing Policies and Programs that the PHA has Revised since Submission of its Last Annual Plan.  Provide 
a certification that the following plan elements have been revised, provided to the RAB for comment before implementation, approved by the PHA board, 
and made available for review and inspection by the public. This requirement is satisfied by completing and submitting form HUD-50077 ST-HCV-HP, 
PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations Including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed . 
Form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP, PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations Including PHA Plan 
Elements that Have Changed must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.  This includes all certifications relating to Civil 
Rights and related regulations.  A PHA will be considered in compliance with the certification requirement to affirmatively further fair housing if the 
PHA fulfills the requirements of §§ 903.7(o)(1) and 903.15(d) and: (i) examines its programs or proposed programs; (ii) identifies any fair housing issues 
and contributing factors within those programs, in accordance with 24 CFR 5.154; or 24 CFR 5.160(a)(3) as applicable (iii) specifies actions and 
strategies designed to address contributing factors, related fair housing issues, and goals in the applicable Assessment of Fair Housing consistent with 24 
CFR 5.154 in a reasonable manner in view of the resources available; (iv) works with jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to 
affirmatively further fair housing that require the PHA's involvement; (v) operates programs in a manner consistent with any applicable consolidated plan 
under 24 CFR part 91, and with any order or agreement, to comply with the authorities specified in paragraph (o)(1) of this section; (vi) complies with 
any contribution or consultation requirement with respect to any applicable AFH, in accordance with 24 CFR 5.150 through 5.180; (vii) maintains records 
reflecting these analyses, actions, and the results of these actions; and (viii) takes steps acceptable to HUD to remedy known fair housing or civil rights 
violations. impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources 

 housing; and assures that the 
annual plan is consistent with any applicable Consolidated Plan for its jurisdiction. (24 CFR §903.7(o)).  

C.4 Challenged Elements. If any element of the Annual PHA Plan or 5-Year PHA Plan is challenged, a PHA must include such information as an attachment 
to the Annual PHA Plan or 5-  
to the public. 

D.   Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH). 



 
    

Page 8 of 8                           form HUD-50075-HCV (03/31/2024) 

D.1   Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. The PHA will use the answer blocks in item D.1 to provide a statement of its strategies and actions to implement 
each fair housing goal outlined in its accepted Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5) that states, in relevant 

uding any plans incorporated 

which the PHA is the responsible program participant  whether the AFH was prepared solely by the PHA, jointly with one or more other PHAs, or in 
collaboration with a state or local jurisdiction  and specify the fair housing strategies and actions to be implemented by the PHA during the period covered by 
this PHA Plan. If there are more than three fair housing goals, add answer blocks as necessary.  

Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will not have to complete section D., nevertheless, the PHA will address its obligation to 
affirmatively further fair housing in part by fulfilling the requirements at 24 CFR 903.7(o)(3) enacted prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it examines its 
own programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable 
fashion in view of the resources availabl

Furthermore, under Section 5A(d)(15) of the U.S. Housing Act 
of 1937, as amended, a PHA must submit a civil rights certification with its Annual PHA Plan, which is described at 24 CFR 903.7(o)(1) except for qualified 
PHAs who submit the Form HUD-50077-CR as a standalone document.   

This information collection is authorized by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section 5A to the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, 
as amended, which introduced the Annual PHA Plan.  The Annual PHA Plan provides a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and 

s of the public for serving the needs of 
low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families.   

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 6.02 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  HUD may not collect this information, and respondents 
are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number. 

  The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, 
U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to 
obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit.  The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality 



1 52

NOTE FROM THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

EXPLANATORY NOTE TO PUBLIC REVIEWERS OF THE PROPOSED 
MOVING TO WORK SUPPLEMENT FILLABLE FORM 



2 52

Sections of the MTW Supplement:

Information to be Collected for MTW Activities 



3 52

Questions 

MTW SUPPLEMENT TO THE ANNUAL PHA PLAN 

Purpose.

Applicability.

Definitions.

Local, Non-Traditional Activities



4 52

Safe Harbors

Substantially the Same Requirement

A.  PHA INFORMATION 
PHA Name
PHA Code
MTW Supplement for PHA Fiscal Year Beginning (MM/DD/YYYY)

PHA Program Type:

MTW Cohort Number: 
MTW Supplement Submission Type:  

 B.  NARRATIVE 
B.1 MTW Supplemental Narrative. 



5 52

C.  MTW WAIVERS AND ASSOCIATED ACTIVITIES 

NOTE: MTW agencies are reminded that all MTW Waivers and associated activities 
must be implemented in accordance with the MTW Operations Notice and within 



6 52

its safe harbors unless a Safe Harbor or Agency-Specific Waiver approval is 
provided by HUD, in which case, the activity utilizing the Safe Harbor or Agency-
Specific Waiver must be implemented in accordance with the terms of the approval. 

Screener: 

Core Questions: 



7 52

Custom Questions: 

 

1.  Tenant Rent Policies  

 

2.  Payment Standards and Rent Reasonableness   
 

 

 
 

 

3. Reexaminations   
 



8 52

3. Reexaminations   
 

 

4.  Landlord Leasing Incentives  
 

 

 

 

5.  Housing Quality Standards (HQS)  
 

 

 
 

 

6.  Short-Term Assistance  
 

 

7.  Term-Limited Assistance   
 

 

8.  Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)  
 

 

9.  Project-Based Voucher Program Flexibilities   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



9 52

10.  Family Self-Sufficiency Program with MTW 
Flexibility  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11.  MTW Self-Sufficiency Program  
 

 

 

12.  Work Requirement   
 

 

13.  Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for 
Economic Progress (PH) 

 

14.  Moving On Policy  
 

 

 

 

15.  Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH)  
 

16.  Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing 
Policy (PH) 

 

 

17.  Local, Non-Traditional Activities  
 
 



10 52

17.  Local, Non-Traditional Activities  

 
 

1.w. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV) 

 



11 52

1.w. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV) 

2.b. Payment Standards  Fair Market Rents (HCV) 

 



12 52

2.b. Payment Standards  Fair Market Rents (HCV) 



13 52

3.b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households 



14 52

3.b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households 

 

 

 

 



15 52

3.b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households 



16 52

3.d.  Self-Certification of Assets 

 

 

 
 

 



17 52

3.d.  Self-Certification of Assets 



18 52

4.a. Vacancy Loss  



19 52

4.a. Vacancy Loss  

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 



20 52

4.c. Other Landlord Incentives 



21 52

4.c. Other Landlord Incentives 

 

 

  

 



22 52

4.c. Other Landlord Incentives 

 
 

 
 



23 52

5.a. Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections 

 

 

 
 

 



24 52

5.d. Alternative Inspection Schedule 

 

 

  

 

 
 



25 52

5.d. Alternative Inspection Schedule 
 

 



26 52

9.a. Increase PBV Cap  

 

 

 
 

 



27 52

9.b. Increase PBV Project Cap 

 

 

 
 

 



28 52

9.c. Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned Projects without 
Improvement, Development, or Replacement  

 

 

  

 



29 52

9.c. Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned Projects without 
Improvement, Development, or Replacement  

 
 

 
 

17.c. Housing Development Programs 



30 52

17.c. Housing Development Programs 

 

 

.   



31 52

17.c. Housing Development Programs 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 



32 52

Cohort 4.2 Front-End Vacancy Loss Payment 

 

 

  

 



33 52

Cohort 4.2 Front-End Vacancy Loss Payment 

 
 

 
 



34 52

D.  SAFE HARBOR WAIVERS 
D.1. Safe Harbor Waivers seeking HUD Approval: 

E.  AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVERS 
E.1. Agency-Specific Waivers for HUD Approval: 



35 52

ACTIVITY 2024-01: HAP Contracts Signed Up to 120 Days 

 

 



36 52

 

ACTIVITY 2024-02: Initial Paperwork Good for Up to 210 Days 

 

 

 



37 52

ACTIVITY 2024-03: Include Internet in Utility Allowance 

 



38 52

 

 

E.2. Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for which HUD Approval has been Received: 

ACTIVITY 2022-13: Allow Owner Referrals Under Project-Based Voucher 
Program   



39 52

ACTIVITY 2022-13: Allow Owner Referrals Under Project-Based Voucher 
Program   

 



40 52

ACTIVITY 2022-13: Allow Owner Referrals Under Project-Based Voucher 
Program   

 

 



41 52

ACTIVITY 2022-14: Project-Based Voucher Right Sizing   

 



42 52

ACTIVITY 2022-14: Project-Based Voucher Right Sizing   

 

 



43 52

ACTIVITY 2023-01: Special Circumstance Admissions   

 

 



44 52

ACTIVITY 2023-01: Special Circumstance Admissions   

 

 



45 52

ACTIVITY 2023-02: Project-Based Voucher Contract Rent Increases   

 



46 52

ACTIVITY 2023-02: Project-Based Voucher Contract Rent Increases   

 

 



47 52

ACTIVITY 2023-03: Project-Based Voucher First Year Moves   

 



48 52

ACTIVITY 2023-03: Project-Based Voucher First Year Moves   

 

 



49 52

ACTIVITY 2023-05: Flexible Subsidy Standards in Project-Based Voucher 
Admissions   

 



50 52

ACTIVITY 2023-05: Flexible Subsidy Standards in Project-Based Voucher 
Admissions   

 

If previous questions is subset.   

  
If above questions is subset.   

If above questions is subset. 
 

 
 

 



51 52

F. PUBLIC HOUSING OPERATING SUBSIDY GRANT REPORTING 

G. MTW STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS  
G.1. 75% Very Low Income  Local, Non-Traditional. 

G.2. Establishing Reasonable Rent Policy. 

G.3. Substantially the Same (STS)  Local, Non-Traditional 

G.4. Comparable Mix (by Family Size)  Local, Non-Traditional 

G.5. Housing Quality Standards 



52 52

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I.  EVALUATIONS 

J. MTW CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 















    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Paris Howze, Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Monthly Development Report for Linnet Corner and 
Adopt the Authorizing Resolution No. 1068 for the Ground Lease 
and Cash Loans and Approve the Financing and Ownership 
Structure for Linnet Corner  

BACKGROUND 
Linnet Corner, also referred to as North Housing Senior Apartments, is the proposed 
new construction of a single, four (4) story residential building, with 64 units. The 64 
units will include 40 studio units and 23 one-bedroom units targeting seniors aged 62 
and over. There will also be one two-bedroom dedicated as a manager’s unit. 
Affordability levels will range between 30% and 40% of the Area Median Income (AMI). 
The project will also have 25% or 16 units serving formerly homeless/homeless senior 
veterans. Amenities will include a community room, dedicated property management 
and service provider offices, shared parking, a laundry room, a resident garden, and a 
roof terrace. 
 
The Housing Development Department provides monthly reports on projects under 
construction where either The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) or Island 
City Development (ICD) is acting as developer and provides performance guarantees. 
The project is expected to close construction financing on February 29, 2024. 
  
Please see previous Board reports for project details before this month's update.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Permit 
The City of Alameda issued the project’s building permit on February 1, 2024.  
 
January 2024 Actions 
In January 2024, the Board adopted Resolution No.1067 authorizing the ground lease, 
cash loans, and approving the financing structure for Linnet Corner. Staff are working 
with lenders and investors for all the underwriting and due diligence approvals 



necessary to close construction financing on or around February 29, 2024. The TCAC 
and CDLAC readiness deadline is March 4, 2024, and staff is seeking a five (5)-day 
hardship extension for an updated readiness deadline of March 11, 2024, due to the 
change in permanent lender which is required to deliver the needed permanent 
mortgage with more favorable terms. The permanent lender will be California 
Community Reinvestment Corporation (CCRC). CCRC is a financial partner with ICD at 
Littlejohn Commons and is a well-recognized transaction partner in the affordable 
community. Updated sources are included as an attachment.  
 
Ground Lease Structure 
The Partnership will serve as the owner of the improvements and AHA will remain as 
the owner and lessor of the land; the Board approved an option to ground lease the 
property. To meet investor requirements, the ground lease will be structured as an 
operating lease with an appraised restricted value of $1,540,000 with 4.25% of that to 
be annual soft rent accruing at the Applicable Federal Rate (AFR). There may be a hard 
annual payment of up to $15,000, and any unpaid rent due will be subject to net cash 
flow with a lease term of at least 99 years. Staff are working with all lenders to confirm 
the structure is amenable to all parties and can be supported by the project. 
  
Timing on the State of California Funds 
Linnet Corner received state financing from the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) in Multifamily Housing Program Funds (MHP), Veterans and 
Homelessness Prevention Program (VHHP) Funds, and Infill Infrastructure Grant (IIG) 
Funds for a total commitment of $20,635,312. Only the IIG funds will be available during 
construction. Additionally, per the 2022 Reserve policy, AHA provided a $2,438,000 
commitment to the project which was matched by an award of $1,000,000 in HCD Local 
Housing Trust Funds for a total commitment of $3,438,000 through the Alameda 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund (AAHTF), which is administered by the Alameda 
Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC). AAHC has already made the $2.4 million 
funding available as a pre-development loan. It is expected that final approval to utilize 
the Local Housing Trust Funds will not be available until June 2024. Thus, the project 
will continue to rely on the unsecured pre-development loan from AAHC until it can 
convert to the permanent AAHTF loan of $3.4 million.  
 
Unchanged Deal Terms 
A sole member LLC (ICD Mabuhay LLC) serves as the general partner of the tax credit 
partnership, Mabuhay and Lakehurst LP (Partnership). Island City Development is the 
sole member of the general partner LLC. AHA is the initial limited partner and will be 
replaced by Enterprise as the investor. Project financing for Linnet Corner includes 
investor equity through the sale of 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits. Additionally, 
the project received $945,000 from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco 
(FHLB) in Affordable Housing Program (AHP) funds. Financing also includes General 
Partner Equity, projected contribution of $301,000 in developer fee, and an estimated 
deferred developer fee of $1,500,000. The Partnership and the Housing Authority 
executed the Agreement to Enter into a Housing Assistance Payment Contract (AHAP) 
in October 2023 for 40 of the 64 total units. There are no updates on the operation 



terms for this development. 
 
The Housing Development Department Report on this agenda discusses ongoing 
guarantees. AHA will be required to provide construction completion, tax credit delivery, 
and operating guarantees, along with ICD, for the life of the permanent mortgage and 
through the 15-year initial tax credit compliance period. The financial guarantees will be 
reflected in AHA’s financial statements as “contingent liabilities”. The construction 
guarantee will be released at construction completion and conversion to permanent 
financing.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Board previously authorized a pre-development loan to ICD of $10,000,000 for 
costs associated with master planning, carrying costs, demolition, and redevelopment 
work for Block A of the North Housing project, which includes 155 units of permanent 
supportive and senior housing, including the Linnet Corner project. Funds are disbursed 
to ICD on an as-needed basis. This pre-development loan will be separated into four 
parts, for the three projects at Block A, and the remainder of North Housing. For the 
Block A projects, the pre-development loan will convert into the expected permanent 
financing that have been approved by the Board. 
  
Please refer to the attached chart summarizing pre-development expenses through 
January 31, 2024 (Attachment 1). 
  
The Board previously approved a permanent loan of $2,438,000 in AAHTF funds for the 
project.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Development Report for Linnet Corner and Adopt the Authorizing 
Resolution No. 1068 for the Ground Lease and Cash Loans and Approve the Financing 
and Ownership Structure for Linnet Corner  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. North Housing Expenses Chart Through January 31, 2024 
2. Linnet Corner - Updated Proposed Sources 
3. Linnet Corner - Summary of Resolution Revisions 
4. Linnet Corner - Authorizing Resolution No. 1068 
5. Linnet Corner - Authorizing Resolution - Redline 1067 vs. 1068 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 



Paris Howze, Project Manager 



North Housing Block A Predevelopment Expenses Chart Through January 31, 2024

North Housing Block A Total
The Estuary I -  45 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs), $1,958,598 has been reclass to 
permanent sources at loan closing. The remaining costs will be reclass by the 
next construction loan draw. $71,330
The Estuary II -  46 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,209,665
Linnet Corner -  64 units (includes predevelopment, pro rata shares of master 
plan, demolition, and land carrying costs) $1,502,340

Grand Total $2,783,335
Anticipated Soil Stabilization Costs $5,003,993
Predevelopment Funds Remaining $254,074

North Housing Total
Remaining Nine (9) Acre Land Carrying Costs and Site Predevelopment 
(includes master planning and demolition) 
*Shown for informational purposes only $4,000,000



w
w
w
.a
la
m
ed

ah
sg
.o
rg

U
p

d
a
te

d
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

o
u

rc
e
s

To
ta

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
os

t
$5

3,
69

3,
26

0 
(~

$8
38

,9
57

 P
U

)

CC
RC

 -
Ta

x-
Ex

em
pt

 P
er

m
 L

oa
n

$4
,2

35
,9

00

H
CD

 -
M

H
P

$1
3,

47
4,

99
5

H
CD

 -
VH

H
P

$4
,8

67
,2

01

H
CD

 –
IIG

 (v
ia

 S
po

ns
or

 L
oa

n)
$2

,2
93

,1
16

FH
LS

B 
–

AH
P 

(v
ia

 B
an

k 
of

 M
ar

in
)

$9
45

,0
00

AA
H

C 
–

AH
H

TF
 &

 L
H

TF
$3

,4
38

,0
00

De
fe

rr
ed

 D
ev

el
op

er
 F

ee
$1

,5
12

,0
87

Sp
on

so
r L

oa
n

$3
00

,0
00

G
P 

Eq
ui

ty
$1

,0
00

Ta
x 

Cr
ed

it 
Eq

ui
ty

 –
Fe

de
ra

l
$2

2,
62

5,
96

1



w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ah

sg
.o

rg

L
in

n
e
t 

C
o

rn
e
r 

(N
H

 S
e
n

io
r 

H
o

u
si

n
g

)|
 C

it
y
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
, 

A
la

m
e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

, 
C

A



w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ah

sg
.o

rg

•
U

p
d
at

ed
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
le

n
d
er

 t
o
 r

ef
le

ct
 C

al
if
or

n
ia

 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

R
ei

n
ve

st
m

en
t 

C
or

p
or

at
io

n
 (

C
C
R
C
) 

as
 

th
e 

n
ew

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

le
n
d
er

 r
ep

la
ci

n
g
 B

an
k 

o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a
•

U
p
d
at

ed
 r

es
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

ta
xa

b
le

 t
ai

l 
am

ou
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

as
 a

lw
ay

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

fi
n
an

ci
n
g
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 b
u
t 

n
o
t 

p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

d
et

ai
le

d
 w

it
h
in

 p
ri
o
r 

re
so

lu
ti
o
n



w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ah

sg
.o

rg

•
A

cc
e
p

t 
th

e
 M

o
n

th
ly

 U
p

d
a
te

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

p
t 

th
e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 R
e
so

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o
. 

1
0

6
8

 f
o

r 
th

e
 G

ro
u

n
d

 
L
e
a
se

 a
n

d
 C

a
sh

 L
o

a
n

s 
a
n

d
 A

p
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
n

ci
n

g
 

a
n

d
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
L
in

n
e
t 

C
o

rn
e
r



Linnet Corner Resolutions 1 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No.1068
Linnet Corner (North Housing Seniors) 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the “Housing Authority”) is 
the owner of that certain land located at 2000 Lakehurst Circle in the City of Alameda (the 
“Land”), which is commonly referred to as Linnet Corner (North Housing Seniors).

WHEREAS, Island City Development, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
(“ICD”) ICD has formed and is the sole member and manager of ICD Mabuhay LLC, a 
California limited liability company (the “LLC”), and the LLC has formed and is the sole 
general partner of Mabuhay and Lakehurst LP, a California limited partnership (the 
“Partnership”), with the Housing Authority as the initial sole limited partner of the 
Partnership. 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority and the Partnership are parties to that certain Option 
Agreement effective as of November 17, 2021, between the Housing Authority and ICD, 
as assigned pursuant to that certain Assignment of Option Agreement dated January 1, 
2023, between ICD and the Partnership (as assigned, the “Option Agreement”) with 
respect to the Land. 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority intends to record an “Affordable Housing 
Agreement” against the Land prior to entering into the Ground Lease (as defined below). 
The form of such agreement was approved by the Board on October 18, 2017. 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority, as 
lessor, to enter into a ground lease and memorandum of ground lease with the 
Partnership as lessee, with respect to the Land for a term of 99 years, and upon such 
terms and conditions as deemed necessary or appropriate by an officer of the Housing 
Authority (the “Ground Lease”). 

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to acquire, rehabilitate, construct, own and operate 
64 units of affordable housing (including 1 manager’s unit) on the Land (the Partnership’s 
leasehold interest in the Land and fee interest in the improvements, including the 
affordable housing, now or hereafter located thereon is collectively referred to herein as 
the “Project”). 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to 
obtain a loan from Bank of Marin, Bank of America, N.A. a national banking association, 
or another bank or lender of Affordable Housing Program funds in an amount not to 
exceed $945,000 (the “AHP Funding Loan”) and to lend the proceeds thereof to the 
Partnership. 

 



Linnet Corner Resolutions 2 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Housing Authority deems 
it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to assist in the acquisition, 
rehabilitation, construction and development of the Project by the Partnership by:  
(i) withdrawing as limited partner from the Partnership and facilitating the admission of an 
affiliate of Enterprise Housing Credit Investments, LLC, as nominee, or a substitute 
investor (“Investor”) as a 99.99% limited partner in the Partnership in exchange for capital 
contributions to the Partnership of approximately $22,000,000, (ii) amending and restating 
the agreement of limited partnership of the Partnership (the “Partnership Agreement”) 
to provide for such other matters as may be required by the Investor, and (iii) entering 
into the Guaranty Agreement (the “Guaranty Agreement”) for the benefit of the 
Partnership and the Investor (collectively, the “Syndication”). 

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to obtain the following financings for the Project, 
which will be secured by liens on the Project (“Secured Financings”): 

(a) A recourse construction loan (the “Senior Loan”), from California 
Municipal Finance Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of California (“Governmental Lender”), in the 
approximate tax-exempt amount of $27,184,366 and in the approximate taxable amount 
of $4,583,222, which Senior Loan is anticipated to convert to a nonrecourse permanent 
loan in the approximate amount of $4,300,000 following stabilization of the Project and 
certain other conditions.  The Senior Loan is anticipated to be funded by the proceeds of 
a loan (the “Funding Loan”) made to Governmental Lender from Bank of America, N.A., 
a national banking association (in such capacity, the “Initial Funding Lender”), in the 
approximate tax-exempt amount of $27,184,366 and in the approximate taxable amount 
of $4,583,222, which Funding Loan is anticipated to be secured by an assignment of 
Governmental Lender’s rights, title, and interests in and to the Senior Loan, and which 
Funding Loan is anticipated to be purchased by California Community Reinvestment 
Corporation or another permanent lender (in such capacity, the “Permanent Funding 
Lender”) in the approximate amount of $4,300,000, in connection with the conversion of 
the Senior Loan. 

(b) A loan from the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“HCD”) of MGP funds in an amount not to exceed $13,474,995. 

(c) A loan from HCD of VHHP funds in an amount not to exceed 
$4,867,201. 

(d) A loan from ICD of HCD IIG grant funds in an amount not to exceed 
$2,293,116. 

(e) A loan from Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation of Local 
Housing Trust Fund Program funds from HCD and matching funds in an aggregate 
amount not to exceed $3,438,000. 



Linnet Corner Resolutions 3 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601 

(f) A loan from the Housing Authority of the proceeds of the AHP 
Funding Loan; alternatively, the Partnership may borrow such funds directly from Bank of 
Marin, Bank of America, N.A. a national banking association, or another bank or lender.

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority for the 
Housing Authority to enter into interest rate swaps, caps, collars, floors (including any 
option), amendments or supplements thereto, and assignments or terminations thereof,
from time to time to hedge or otherwise manage interest rate exposure in relation to 
assets or liabilities of the Housing Authority (collectively, the “Swap Documents”). 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the AHP Funding Loan, the Secured Financings and the 
Syndication, the lenders and the Investor may require that the Housing Authority (a) 
guaranty the payment and performance by ICD, the Partnership, and/or the LLC of their 
obligations under the documents evidencing and securing the Secured Financings and 
the Syndication, and guaranty timely lien-free completion of the Project and make certain 
indemnities (the “Guaranties”), and/or (b) assign the Housing Authority’s interest in any 
fees from the Partnership as security for the Secured Financings and the Syndication (the 
“Security Assignments”), and/or (c) provide the Housing Authority’s fee interest in the 
Land as security for the Secured Financings (the “Deeds of Trust”), and the Board deems 
it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to make and enter into the 
Guaranties, Security Assignments and Deeds of Trust. 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to 
execute and deliver any and all documents or agreements necessary or advisable for the 
acquisition, development, financing, construction, rehabilitation, management, operation 
and maintenance of the Project, including, but not limited to, all grant deeds, deeds of 
trust, UCC financing statements, regulatory agreements, assignments of rents, leases, 
income and profits, general assignments, construction contracts, architect agreements, 
grant agreements, development agreements (with the Housing Authority as developer), 
sub-development agreements, management agreements, service contracts, housing 
assistance payments contracts and similar or related agreements for housing subsidies, 
and any other types of agreements (collectively, the “Project Documents”). 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interest of the Housing Authority to enter 
into condominium documents and related association documents, to grant any easement 
and/or a dedication of a portion of the Project, as may be necessary, to the City and/or 
the County of Alameda, or other public body, and to execute such documents and to 
perform such actions as may be required in order to obtain all necessary and appropriate 
entitlements, permits and any other authorization for the acquisition, development, 
management or operation of the Project and for any waiver of entitlement or similar fees 
(collectively, the “Entitlement Documents”).

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interest of the Housing Authority to 
execute such documents (including, without limitation, any indemnities and guaranties) 
and to perform such actions as may be required in order to obtain all necessary and 
appropriate title insurance (owner and lender policies) for the Project and for any waiver 
of entitlement or similar fees (collectively, the “Title Documents”). 



Linnet Corner Resolutions 4 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has approved a housing assistance payments contract
to be entered into with the Partnership, an agreement to enter into a housing assistance 
payments contract, or such other agreement or document in connection with a project-
based voucher assistance (collectively, the “HAP Documents”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves and is 
authorized to enter into the following transactions and documents, as applicable:

1. Affordable Housing Agreement;
2. Ground Lease; 
3. AHP Funding Loan; 
4. Partnership Agreement, the Guaranty Agreement and the Syndication; 
5. Secured Financings;  
6. Swap Documents; 
7. Guaranties, Security Assignments and Deeds of Trusts; 
8. Project Documents; 
9. Entitlement Documents; 
10. Title Documents; 
11. HAP Documents; and 
12. Such other documents, agreements and contracts deemed necessary or 

advisable by an officer of the Housing Authority in furtherance of these 
resolutions and/or to assist in the development of the Project (collectively, 
the “Transaction Documents”), using its own independent judgment. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director, 
or her designee to accept the Transaction Documents subject to any minor conforming, 
technical or clarifying changes approved by the Executive Director or her designee and 
Housing Authority counsel.  The Executive Director, or her designee, are hereby further 
authorized and directed to take such further actions including financial changes up to a 
limit of $1,500,000 and execute and record such documents as are necessary to accept 
the Transaction Documents. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all actions previously taken by the Housing Authority, 
or its employees, officers and agents in connection with the Project or the transactions 
described herein are hereby ratified and approved. 



Linnet Corner Resolutions 5 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601 

******

ATTEST:

Vanessa M. Cooper Carly Grob, Chair
Executive Director/Secretary Board of Commissioners
 
Adopted: 
 
 

Date 



Linnet Corner Resolutions 1 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No.1067.________

Linnet Corner (North Housing Seniors)

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the “Housing Authority”) is 
the owner of that certain land located at 2000 Lakehurst Circle in the City of Alameda (the 
“Land”), which is commonly referred to as Linnet Corner (North Housing Seniors).

WHEREAS, Island City Development, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
(“ICD”) ICD has formed and is the sole member and manager of ICD Mabuhay LLC, a 
California limited liability company (the “LLC”), and the LLC has formed and is the sole 
general partner of Mabuhay and Lakehurst LP, a California limited partnership (the 
“Partnership”), with the Housing Authority as the initial sole limited partner of the 
Partnership.

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority and the Partnership are parties to that certain Option 
Agreement effective as of November 17, 2021, between the Housing Authority and ICD, 
as assigned pursuant to that certain Assignment of Option Agreement dated January 1, 
2023, between ICD and the Partnership (as assigned, the “Option Agreement”) with 
respect to the Land.

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority intends to record an “Affordable Housing 
Agreement” against the Land prior to entering into the Ground Lease (as defined below). 
The form of such agreement was approved by the Board on October 18, 2017.

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority, as 
lessor, to enter into a ground lease and memorandum of ground lease with the 
Partnership as lessee, with respect to the Land for a term of 99 years, and upon such 
terms and conditions as deemed necessary or appropriate by an officer of the Housing 
Authority (the “Ground Lease”).

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to acquire, rehabilitate, construct, own and operate 
64 units of affordable housing (including 1 manager’s unit) on the Land (the Partnership’s 
leasehold interest in the Land and fee interest in the improvements, including the 
affordable housing, now or hereafter located thereon is collectively referred to herein as 
the “Project”).

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to 
obtain a loan from Bank of Marin, Bank of America, N.A. a national banking association, 
or another bank or lender of Affordable Housing Program funds in an amount not to 
exceed $945,000 (the “AHP Funding Loan”) and to lend the proceeds thereof to the 
Partnership.



Linnet Corner Resolutions 2 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Housing Authority deems 
it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to assist in the acquisition, 
rehabilitation, construction and development of the Project by the Partnership by:  
(i) withdrawing as limited partner from the Partnership and facilitating the admission of an 
affiliate of Enterprise Housing Credit Investments, LLC, as nominee, or a substitute 
investor (“Investor”) as a 99.99% limited partner in the Partnership in exchange for capital 
contributions to the Partnership of approximately $22,000,000, (ii) amending and restating 
the agreement of limited partnership of the Partnership (the “Partnership Agreement”) 
to provide for such other matters as may be required by the Investor, and (iii) entering 
into the Guaranty Agreement (the “Guaranty Agreement”) for the benefit of the 
Partnership and the Investor (collectively, the “Syndication”).

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to obtain the following financings for the Project, 
which will be secured by liens on the Project (“Secured Financings”):

(a) A recourse construction loan (the “Senior Tax-Exempt Loan”), from 
California Municipal Finance Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of California (“Governmental Lender”), in the 
approximate tax-exempt amount of $27,184,366 and in the approximate taxable amount 
of $4,583,222, which Senior Tax-Exempt Loan is anticipated to convert to a nonrecourse 
permanent loan in the approximate amount of $4,300,000 following stabilization of the 
Project and certain other conditions.  The Senior Tax-Exempt Loan is anticipated to be 
funded by the proceeds of a loan (the “Funding Loan”) made to Governmental Lender 
from Bank of America, N.A., a national banking association (in such capacity, the “Initial 
Funding Lender”), in the approximate tax-exempt amount of $27,184,366 and in the 
approximate taxable amount of $4,583,222, which Funding Loan is anticipated to be 
secured by an assignment of Governmental Lender’s rights, title, and interests in and to 
the Senior Tax-Exempt Loan, and which Funding Loan is anticipated to be purchased 
under a by California Community Reinvestment Corporation or another permanent lender 
(in such capacity, the “Permanent Funding Lender”) in the approximate amount of 
$4,300,000, in connection with the conversion of the Senior Tax-Exempt Loan.

(b) A loan from the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“HCD”) of MGP funds in an amount not to exceed $13,474,995.

(c) A loan from HCD of VHHP funds in an amount not to exceed 
$4,867,201.

(d) A loan from ICD of HCD IIG grant funds in an amount not to exceed 
$2,293,116.

(e) A loan from Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation of Local 
Housing Trust Fund Program funds from HCD and matching funds in an aggregate 
amount not to exceed $3,438,000.



Linnet Corner Resolutions 3 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601

(f) A loan from the Housing Authority of the proceeds of the AHP 
Funding Loan; alternatively, the Partnership may borrow such funds directly from Bank of 
Marin, Bank of America, N.A. a national banking association, or another bank or lender.

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority for the 
Housing Authority to enter into interest rate swaps, caps, collars, floors (including any 
option), amendments or supplements thereto, and assignments or terminations thereof, 
from time to time to hedge or otherwise manage interest rate exposure in relation to 
assets or liabilities of the Housing Authority (collectively, the “Swap Documents”).

WHEREAS, as a condition of the AHP Funding Loan, the Secured Financings and the 
Syndication, the lenders and the Investor may require that the Housing Authority (a) 
guaranty the payment and performance by ICD, the Partnership, and/or the LLC of their 
obligations under the documents evidencing and securing the Secured Financings and 
the Syndication, and guaranty timely lien-free completion of the Project and make certain 
indemnities (the “Guaranties”), and/or (b) assign the Housing Authority’s interest in any 
fees from the Partnership as security for the Secured Financings and the Syndication (the 
“Security Assignments”), and/or (c) provide the Housing Authority’s fee interest in the 
Land as security for the Secured Financings (the “Deeds of Trust”), and the Board deems 
it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to make and enter into the 
Guaranties, Security Assignments and Deeds of Trust.

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Housing Authority to 
execute and deliver any and all documents or agreements necessary or advisable for the 
acquisition, development, financing, construction, rehabilitation, management, operation 
and maintenance of the Project, including, but not limited to, all grant deeds, deeds of 
trust, UCC financing statements, regulatory agreements, assignments of rents, leases, 
income and profits, general assignments, construction contracts, architect agreements, 
grant agreements, development agreements (with the Housing Authority as developer), 
sub-development agreements, management agreements, service contracts, housing 
assistance payments contracts and similar or related agreements for housing subsidies, 
and any other types of agreements (collectively, the “Project Documents”).

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interest of the Housing Authority to enter 
into condominium documents and related association documents, to grant any easement 
and/or a dedication of a portion of the Project, as may be necessary, to the City and/or 
the County of Alameda, or other public body, and to execute such documents and to 
perform such actions as may be required in order to obtain all necessary and appropriate 
entitlements, permits and any other authorization for the acquisition, development, 
management or operation of the Project and for any waiver of entitlement or similar fees 
(collectively, the “Entitlement Documents”).

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interest of the Housing Authority to 
execute such documents (including, without limitation, any indemnities and guaranties) 
and to perform such actions as may be required in order to obtain all necessary and 
appropriate title insurance (owner and lender policies) for the Project and for any waiver 
of entitlement or similar fees (collectively, the “Title Documents”).



Linnet Corner Resolutions 4 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has approved a housing assistance payments contract 
to be entered into with the Partnership, an agreement to enter into a housing assistance 
payments contract, or such other agreement or document in connection with a project-
based voucher assistance (collectively, the “HAP Documents”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves and is 
authorized to enter into the following transactions and documents, as applicable:

1. Affordable Housing Agreement;
2. Ground Lease;
3. AHP Funding Loan;
4. Partnership Agreement, the Guaranty Agreement and the Syndication;
5. Secured Financings; 
6. Swap Documents;
7. Guaranties, Security Assignments and Deeds of Trusts;
8. Project Documents;
9. Entitlement Documents;
10. Title Documents;
11. HAP Documents; and
12. Such other documents, agreements and contracts deemed necessary or 

advisable by an officer of the Housing Authority in furtherance of these 
resolutions and/or to assist in the development of the Project (collectively, 
the “Transaction Documents”), using its own independent judgment.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director, 
or her designee to accept the Transaction Documents subject to any minor conforming, 
technical or clarifying changes approved by the Executive Director or her designee and 
Housing Authority counsel.  The Executive Director, or her designee, are hereby further 
authorized and directed to take such further actions including financial changes up to a 
limit of $1,500,000 and execute and record such documents as are necessary to accept 
the Transaction Documents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all actions previously taken by the Housing Authority, 
or its employees, officers and agents in connection with the Project or the transactions 
described herein are hereby ratified and approved.



Linnet Corner Resolutions 5 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
026.006/572601

******

ATTEST:

Vanessa M. Cooper Carly Grob, Chair
Executive Director/Secretary Board of Commissioners

Adopted:

Date 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Accept the Quarterly Development Report; Approve a $2,100,000 
Predevelopment Loan and 20 year Option to Ground Lease to 
Island City Development; Authorize the Executive Director or 
Designee to Negotiate and Execute the Predevelopment Loan and 
Option Agreement for The Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue).  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) purchased the property at 2615 
Eagle Avenue for $2,500,000 in March 2022 to develop the site as affordable housing. 
AHA anticipates that the site will serve 40-50 families, with up to 25% supportive 
housing units if required by funding sources. The development will have a preference 
for Alameda Unified School District (AUSD) staff, as well as a live/work preference for 
Alamedans. 
 
In December 2023, the Board agreed to enter into a $3.4 million pre-development loan 
from Capital Impact Partners to fund the acquisition and pre-development of this site for 
up to four years.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Funding 
AHA has received approximately $3 million from the City of Alameda redevelopment 
funding for this development. The redevelopment funding is available on a 
reimbursement basis and will remain as permanent financing to the development. 
 
In October 2021, the Board approved a Reserve Policy commitment for site acquisition 
costs. The funds have been utilized and subsequently repaid by the Capital Impact 
redevelopment loan. 
 
In May 2022, the Board approved an option to ground lease to Island City Development 
(ICD) which expired in December 2023. A draft of the new Option Agreement is 
attached. The terms will remain the same except for the expiration date will be the end 



of February 2044. Additionally, the Board approved a short-term commitment of 
$500,000 with the ability to loan up to $4,400,000, if funds were not used for other 
developments. Please see agenda item 10I Quarterly Overview Report for the Housing 
Development Department for an overview of the 2023 Reserve Policy. 
 
Staff requests that the Board approve a $2,100,000 pre-development loan to ICD 
sourced from the $4,400,000 permanent commitment to be used for project costs to 
reach readiness for financing applications. The proceeds will be spent on entitlement 
activities, studies, and drawings up to 50% completion. A detailed pre-development 
budget is attached and shows the uses of the Capital Impact pre-development loan, as 
well as AHA funds. It is anticipated that the AHA pre-development loan will be 
reimbursed by permanent commitments available for use during pre-development and 
any outstanding balance to be reimbursed or rolled into permanent commitments once 
the project begins construction. 
 
The table below summarizes the previous actions by the Board for pre-development 
and permanent commitments to The Poplar (formerly Tilden Commons). 
 

–  AHA Predevelopment and Permanent Commitments to The Poplar Previous 
Actions 

Date Action Follow up Current AHA 
commitment 

10/2021 Reserve 
Policy Commitment 

Site purchase for 
$2.5 million using 
AHA funds. 

Property purchased 
March 2022. Funds 
repaid by other pre-
development 
sources. 

$0 

5/2022 Reserve 
Policy Commitment 

$500,000, with a 
spring back up to 
$4.4 million. Option 
to ground lease. 

$500,000 not 
utilized. 

Up to $4.4 million 
available for 
permanent 
financing. ICD 
requesting use of 
up to $2.1 million of 
this for pre-
development 
(2/2024). 

 
Design and Permit 
The development will not require CEQA review and is zoned for the planned use. The 
site will have to submit drawings for a ministerial design review process on objective 
design standards, and for offsite public works approvals. 
 
Procurement 
Staff has begun procurement for the architect, civil engineer, demolition and abatement, 



and environmental consultant. 
 
Community Outreach 
A press release was issued after escrow closed and a quarterly newsletter regarding all 
pipeline developments is posted on the AHA website. Staff anticipates holding 
community outreach meetings in 2024. 
 
Environmental Mitigation 
The property was formerly used as a maintenance and storage yard by AUSD to 
facilitate their daily operations. Additional testing will be required to assess the full 
extent of the residual impacts in order to determine the appropriate plan for mitigation 
and/or remediation. 
 
Staff submitted a grant application for Equitable Community Revitalization Grant 
(ECRG) funds from the Department of Toxic Substances Control Office of Brownfields 
in October 2023. ECRG awards are anticipated to be announced in late February 2024. 
If awarded grant funds, staff anticipates conducting additional site testing this spring 
2024.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The current Reserve Policy commitment is zero. The City redevelopment funding, 
Capital Impact predevelopment loan, and potential ECRG grant are all available on a 
reimbursement basis. The project needs access to capital to move the project forward 
and demonstrate that costs have been expended for outside sources of funding to be 
disbursed. This request is for a $2,100,000 predevelopment loan for upfront costs 
associated with design, demolition, entitlement and permitting, environmental testing 
and mitigation, and any additional fees and carrying costs. It is anticipated that the AHA 
predevelopment loan will be reimbursed or may be rolled into a permanent commitment 
as the project begins construction. 
 
The Capital Impact loan provides up to $3,337,000 in predevelopment funding to 
replenish the funds previously used by AHA on site due diligence and acquisition, and 
to be used on future work to prepare the site for the new development. $691,543.56 in 
Capital Impact loan proceeds are remaining as of January 31, 2024. 
 
Please refer to the attached predevelopment budget summarizing the sources and uses 
for the project through financing readiness and remaining loan proceeds (Attachment 1). 
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Development Report; Approve a $2,100,000 Predevelopment 
Loan and 20 year Option to Ground Lease to Island City Development; Authorize the 
Executive Director or Designee to Negotiate and Execute the Predevelopment Loan and 



Option Agreement for The Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue).  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Att1_The Poplar Predevelopment Budget 
2. Att2_The Poplar Ground Lease Option Agreement 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager 



  

The Poplar � Predevelopment Budget
 

Uses Costs AHA Loan 
Capital Impact 

Loan
Acquisition $2,500,000 $0 $2,500,000 
Carrying Costs $733,700 $343,700 $0 
Design Consultants $800,000 $229,960 $570,040 
Entitlements & Permitting $175,000 $175,000  $0 
LIHTC and Financing Fees $446,960 $180,000 $266,960 
Environmental Costs $600,000 $600,000  $0 
Contingency $181,340 $181,340 $0 

Total $5,437,000 $2,100,000 $3,337,000 
    

AHA Loan
Capital Impact 

Loan 
Amount Expensed through January 31, 2024  $2,645,456.44 

Remaining Loan Available  $691,543.56 

 



2615 Eagle Avenue Option Agreement 1 

OPTION AGREEMENT 

Agreement
and between Housing Authority Seller
a California nonprofit public benefi Purchaser

RECITALS 

A. Seller is the owner of the land located in the City of Alameda, CA 94501, and 
described as 2615 Eagle Avenue further described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

Land includes improvements (the 
Improvements

B. Purchaser desires to procure, and Seller desires to grant, an option to enter into a 
ground lease with respect to the Land upon the terms and provisions as hereinafter set forth.  The 
leasehold interest in the Land and the fee interest in any Improvements to be developed on the 

Property

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Grant of Option.  For One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Seller does hereby grant to Purchaser the 
exclusive right and option to Option

2. Exercise of Option.  Purchaser may exercise its Option at any time during the period 
Option Term

giving written notice thereof to Seller.  In the event the Purchaser does not exercise its Option 
during the Option Term, this Agreement shall become null and void and neither party hereto shall 
have any other liability, obligation or duty hereunder.   

3. Contract For Ground Lease.  In the event that the Purchaser exercises the Option, 
unless otherwise mutually agreed, both parties agree to execute a contract in accordance with the 
following terms and conditions: 

(a) Ground Lease.  The ground lease for the Land shall have the following 
terms:  (a) have a term of no less than 99 years; (b) have base rent equal to the appraised fair market 
value of the Land, and (c) such other terms and conditions agreed upon by Seller and Purchaser. 

(b) Financing.  Seller agrees to provide seller takeback financing for up to 100% 
of the ground lease base rent; bearing interest at the applicable federal rate; with a term of 55 years 
(or a lesser term if elected by Purchaser); secured by a mortgage against the Property; subordinate 
to a senior construction to permanent bank loan and any other loans from governmental agencies; 
repaid from residual receipts (after payment of developer fee, general partner management fee of 



2615 Eagle Avenue Option Agreement 2 

$25,000 per year with an annual increase of 3%, and an investor asset management fee of $5,000 
per year with an annual increase of 3%); and subject to commercially reasonable terms, including 
those in favor of an investor, for low income housing tax credit projects. 

(c) Closing Date.  The closing date shall be on any date during the Option Term 
as may be selected by Purchaser, provided that Purchaser shall make good faith efforts to provide 
30 days prior notice of the closing date. 

(d) Closing Costs.  The Purchaser and Seller shall each pay their respective 
costs of closing the purchase in accordance with custom in the city in which the Property is located. 

(e) As Is.  Except as specifically provided in writing by Seller, Purchaser shall 

endorsements as Purchaser shall reasonably require, subject only to those monetary encumbrances 
recorded against the Property as agreed to in writing by Purchaser. 

(f) Subdivision.  Seller and Purchaser shall cooperate in causing the Land to be 
a separate legal parcel under applicable law, which shall be a condition precedent to closing under 
this Agreement.  At the election of Purchaser, Purchaser may cause the Land to be further 
subdivided into 2 separate legal parcels or converted to a condominium with 2 condo units, in 
which case (1) Seller shall reasonably cooperate with such subdivision or conversion efforts, and 
(2) this Agreement shall be replaced with 2 separate option agreements for the 2 parcels or units, 
each with the same terms and conditions as in this Agreement. 

(g) Representations, Warranties and Covenants.  Seller hereby represents, 
warrants and covenants as follows: 

(i) Except as otherwise permitted by Purchaser in writing in its sole 
discretion, Seller shall (A) maintain and operate the Property in its current condition and operation; 
(B) not enter into any lease, agreement or contract or a modification thereof (including existing 
loans or liens on the Property) affecting the Property unless such lease, agreement or contract shall 
terminate upon transfer of the Property or is approved by Purchaser in its sole discretion; (C) 
comply with all material contracts, agreements and obligations with respect to the Property; (D) 
maintain current amounts of fire, extended coverage, hazard and other insurance for the Property; 
and (E) not sell, assign, dispose of or further encumber the Property. 

(ii) Seller shall not commit or permit any act that would diminish or 
s rights under this Agreement. 

(iii) Seller shall within 20 days of the date hereof provide to Purchaser 
all documents, contracts, agreements and other information regarding the Property that is within 
the possession or control of Seller. 

(iv) During the Option Term, Purchaser and its agents shall have the 
right, upon reasonable notice and during reasonable times and without unreasonably interfering 
with the normal operation of the Property, to enter upon the Property to conduct inspections and 
testing (including surveying and environmental 
books and records with respect to the Property.  Seller shall reasonably cooperate with Purchaser 



2615 Eagle Avenue Option Agreement 3 

in inspecting and evaluating the Property, applying for or obtaining financing for the Property and 
obtaining entitlements or permits with respect to the Property. 

4. General Provisions. 

(a) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between 
the parties, and supersedes all prior negotiations, drafts, and other understandings which the parties 
may have had concerning the subject matter hereof. 

(b) Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

(c) Successors.  The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, 
and shall be binding upon, the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties 
hereto.  Seller agrees that Purchaser shall have the right to assign this Agreement or to nominate 
another person (including, without limitation, a limited partnership controlled by Purchaser) to 
take title to the Property 

(d) Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by 
written documents signed by all parties hereto. 

(e) Severability.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted so as to be effective and valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this Agreement 
is held to be prohibited by, or invalid under, applicable law, the remainder of this Agreement and 
any other application of such provision shall not be affected thereby. 

(f) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each such counterpart shall be deemed to be an original instrument.  All such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

(g) Notice.  Any notice, demand, request, consent or other communication 
which either party desires or is required to give to any other party shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given when either: (a) delivered in person or by facsimile transfer, or (b) sent 
by overnight courier or first-class registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, return receipt 
requested, addressed to such party at the address 
Agreement.  Either party may designate another address for itself at any time upon written notice 
to the other party. 

(h) Headings.  The titles and headings of the various sections of this Agreement 
have been inserted only for convenience of reference.  They are not part of this Agreement and 
may not be used to construe or interpret any of the terms hereof. 

(i) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the law of the State of California. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



2615 Eagle Avenue Option Agreement 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set 
forth above. 

SELLER: 

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, 
a public body corporate and politic 

 
 
By:      
 Vanessa Cooper 

Executive Director 

Address: 

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
701 Atlantic Avenue 
Alameda, CA 94501 
Attn: Executive Director 

PURCHASER: 

Island City Development,  
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation  

By:      
 Vanessa Cooper  
 President 

Address: 

Island City Development  
c/o Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
701 Atlantic Avenue 
Alameda, CA 94501 
Attn: Executive Director 
 



2615 Eagle Avenue Exhibit A Option Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

 

 

 



2615 Eagle Avenue Exhibit A Option Agreement 

 

 

 

 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

February 21, 2024  

Re: Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the 
approved Moving To Work activities and other procedural updates.  

BACKGROUND 
The Administrative Plan for the Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP) for the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) establishes the policies and procedures 
whereby AHA will administer HCVP tenant-based and project-based rental assistance 
programs under contract to HUD and in accordance with applicable statutes, HUD 
regulations, and state and local law.   
 
In March 2022, the AHA was designated a Moving to Work (MTW) Agency with the 
Landlord Incentives Expansion Cohort.  This allows the AHA to request waivers of 
regulations from HUD through the Annual Plan and MTW Supplement process.  In order 
to implement some activities, a revision of the Administrative Plan is required.    
 
DISCUSSION 
This revision is to implement the MTW activities that HUD approved in December 2023. 
 From the MTW Supplement for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, two activities were approved: 
2022-14: Project-Based Voucher Right Sizing and 2022-01: 2.b. Payment Standards – 
Fair Market Rents (HCV).  Activity 2.b. Payment Standards – Fair Market Rents (HCV) 
was previously approved but has since been revised to include an Agency Specific 
Activity (2022-12 Payment Standard Increases).  From the MTW Supplement for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024, HUD approved Activity 2023-02 Project-Based Voucher Contract Rent 
Increases. 
 
This revision also provides a clear time frame for processing Requests for Tenancy 
Approval (RFTA) to ensure timely responses and allows for retroactive extensions for 
abatement of units that failed Housing Quality Standards (HQS) inspections.   
 
Lastly, the revisions include updates to the list of federally mandated exclusions from 
annual income which HUD publishes annually and was included in the Federal Register 
on January 31, 2024.  



 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Not Applicable.  
 
CEQA 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the approved Moving To 
Work activities and other procedural updates.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. February 2024 Administrative Plan Revisions BOC Presentation  
2. February 2024 Administrative Plan Revisions 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Sepideh Kiumarsi 

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst 



w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ah

sg
.o

rg

Fe
b
ru

ar
y 

2
1
, 

2
0
2
4



w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ah

sg
.o

rg

A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 M

T
W

 A
ct

iv
it
ie

s
2
0
2
2
-1

4
: 

Pr
o
je

ct
-B

as
ed

 V
ou

ch
e
r 

R
ig

h
t 

S
iz

in
g

2
0
2
2
-0

1
: 

2
.b

. 
Pa

ym
en

t 
S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

Fa
ir
 M

ar
ke

t 
R
en

ts
 (

H
C
V
)

Pl
ea

se
 n

o
te

 t
h
at

 t
h
is

 a
ct

iv
it
y 

w
as

 p
re

vi
o
u
sl

y 
a
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

u
t 

h
as

 s
in

ce
 b

ee
n
 

re
vi

se
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
n
ew

 p
ay

m
en

t 
st

an
d
ar

d
s 

a
t 

re
n
t 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
(p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 2

0
2
2
-1

2
 P

ay
m

en
t 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 I
n
cr

ea
se

s)
.

2
0
2
3
-0

2
 P

ro
je

ct
-B

a
se

d
 V

ou
ch

e
r 

C
o
n
tr

ac
t 

R
en

t 
In

cr
ea

se
s

R
eq

u
es

ts
 f

or
 T

en
an

cy
 A

p
p
ro

va
l 
(R

FT
A
) 

ti
m

ef
ra

m
e

R
et

ro
ac

ti
ve

 H
o
u
si

n
g
 Q

u
al

it
y 

S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

(H
Q

S
) 

ex
te

n
si

o
n
s

U
p
d
a
te

s 
to

 l
is

t 
of

 f
e
d
er

al
ly

 m
an

d
at

ed
 e

xc
lu

si
o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 a
n
n
u
al

 
in

co
m

e



 

 

 

1. Revise Chapter 1, Section 1-II.B. HCV Program Basics to incorporate 
approved MTW activities. 

 

 

 



 

 

2. Revise Chapter 5, Section 5-II.B. DETERMINING FAMILY UNIT (VOUCHER) 
SIZE [24 CFR 982.402] to incorporate MTW changes. 

3. Revise Chapter 5, Section 5-II.C. EXCEPTIONS TO SUBSIDY STANDARDS 
to incorporate approved MTW activities. 

5-II.C. EXCEPTIONS TO SUBSIDY STANDARDS  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

4. Revise Chapter 6, Section 6-I.M. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FROM ANNUAL 
INCOME to be in compliance with the updated list of exclusions from annual 
income as states in Federal Register Notice 6126. 

6-I.M. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FROM ANNUAL INCOME Other exclusions 
contained in 24 CFR 5.609(c) that have not been discussed earlier in this 
chapter include the following:  



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

5. Revise Chapter 6, EXHIBIT 6-2: ANNUAL INCOME EXCLUSIONS to be in 
compliance with the updated list of exclusions from annual income as 
states in Federal Register Notice 6126. 

Sources of Income Excluded by Federal Statute from Consideration as Income for 
Purposes of Determining Eligibility or Benefits  



 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

6. Revise Chapter 8, 8.II.F. INSPECTION RESULTS AND REINSPECTIONS 
FOR UNITS UNDER HAP CONTRACT to allow for retroactive HQS 
extensions. 

Extensions  

 

7. Revise Chapter 9, 9-I.B. REQUESTING TENANCY APPROVAL [Form HUD-
52517] to explicitly define the Request for Tenancy timeline and procedure.  

8. Revise Chapter 11, 11-III.B. CHANGES IN PAYMENT STANDARDS AND 
UTILITY ALLOWANCES to incorporate approved MTW activities. 

Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.505]  



 

 

9. Revise Chapter 16, 16-V.D. HAP CONTRACT YEAR, ANNIVERSARY AND 
EXPIRATION DATES [24 CFR 983.207(c) and 983.302(e)] to incorporate 
approved MTW activities. 

16-V.D. HAP CONTRACT YEAR, ANNIVERSARY AND EXPIRATION DATES [24 CFR 
983.207(C) AND 983.302(E)] 



 

 

 

10. Revise Chapter 16, 16-VII.C. MOVES to incorporate approved MTW 
activities. 

16-VII.C. MOVES 

Overcrowded, Under-Occupied, and Accessible Units [24 CFR 983.259]




